Jefferson County Planning Commission
Agenda
April 26, 2021 meeting

7:00 P.M. – Zoom Video Conference
NOTICE is hereby given to any and all persons that the following will be considered at a Public Meeting by the
Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission to be held on Monday, April 26th, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. via Zoom
Video Conference. This meeting format is being utilized in the interest of public safety. All reports will be
posted online at https://www.jfcountyks.com/agendacenter (click on arrow next to Planning Commission) no later
than Wednesday, April 21st.
To view or participate in the Zoom meeting, please request the meeting link by calling (785)403-0000, option
3, or emailing kwoodward@jfcountyks.com. You will be provided with instructions and given the option to
participate in a practice meeting in advance.
The County will provide a method for individuals without access to the internet or a telephone – and only
such persons – to observe or participate in the meeting from the Jefferson County Courthouse. Face masks are
required at all times inside all County facilities.
To provide written public comment: Written public comment must be received by the Planning and Zoning
Department by 3 pm on Monday, April 26th to be included in the meeting materials. Send correspondence
electronically to kwoodward@jfcountyks.com, or mail to P.O. Box 628, Oskaloosa, KS 66066, or place it in the
drop box by the south entrance of the Courthouse. Comments placed in the drop box should be marked for the
Planning Commission.
Item 1:

CALL TO ORDER

Item 2:

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Item 3:

ROLL CALL

Item 4:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – March 22, 2021 Meeting

Item 5:

PUBLIC HEARINGS
HEARING PROCEDURE:
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.
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Staff Report Presentation
Commission Questions of Staff Report
Applicant Presentation
Public Comment (Proponent then Opponent)
Applicant Rebuttal
Commission Action

SUBMITTAL OF EXHIBITS FOR THE
RECORD:
A.
B.
C.
D.

Jefferson County Zoning Regulations
Jefferson County Subdivision Regulations
Jefferson County Comprehensive Plan
All Visual Aid Presentations with Aerial
Maps, Site Plans, and Plats
E. All Application Files in their Entirety
Including Staff Reports

I.

Z2021-02: A request to consider a change in zoning from Suburban Residential and Agricultural to
Rural Residential (resulting from a boundary shift enlarging a residential parcel) at property located
at 7538 Wellman Rd, McLouth, KS 66054. This request is brought by owners Brett and Shelley
Mullenix of the same address.

II.

Z2021-03: A request to consider a change in zoning from Suburban Residential and Agricultural to
Agricultural (to facilitate an associated Ag Lot Split application) at property located at 6207 58th St,
Meriden, KS 66512. This request is brought by owners Michael and Angela Casey of the same
address.

III.

DP2021-01: A request to consider an amended Development Plan for planned
improvements at an existing Agritainment farm business permitted as conditional use
CU2002-01. This request is on property located at 5991 17th St, Grantville, KS 66429 and
is brought by owners Julie and Gary Starr of Gary’s Berries at the same address.

Item 6:

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC ON ITEMS THAT ARE NOT ON THE AGENDA
(Agenda Schedule Allowance: 30 minutes or 5 minutes per spokesperson)

Item 7:

OLD BUSINESS, GENERAL STAFF REPORT
I.
II.

Item 8:

NEW BUSINESS
I.
II.

Item 9:

Procedures pertaining to required attendance for applicants at public hearings.
Consider potential draft text amendment TA2021-01 to sections of the Zoning and
Subdivision Regulations pertaining to application requirements and Zoning
Certificate/building permit procedures. DEFERRED

Election of Officers for 2021
Identification of topics for the joint Planning Commission/Board of County Commissioners
meeting on May 3, 2021 at 2 pm

ADJOURNMENT

Protest Petitions: Any protest petition must be filed in the Office of the County Clerk within 14 days from the conclusion of the public
hearing held by the Planning Commission.
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Jefferson County Planning & Zoning
Oskaloosa, Kansas
UNOFFICIAL
UNOFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
Minutes of Planning Commission
Meeting of March 22nd, 2021
*The below Minutes are a summation of the meeting that took place VIA ZOOM
Item 1.

Call to Order.

Item 2.

Approval of the Agenda

Commissioner Phillips moved to accept the agenda as presented and Secretary Scherer seconded.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Johnson
Chairman

Matt
Scherer
Secretary

Stephen
Phillips

Gale
Rudolph

Tim
Benyshek

Vacant

Vacant

Aye

Aye

Aye

Aye

--

--

Paul
Johnson
Chairman

Matt
Scherer
Secretary

Stephen
Phillips

Gale
Rudolph

Tim
Benyshek

Vacant

Vacant

Present

Present

Present

Present

--

--

DNV
Motion Passed 4-0
Item 3.

Item 4.

Roll Call

Present

Approval of the February 22nd, 2021 meeting minutes

Chairman Johnson asked if there were any corrections for the minutes. Chairman Johnson asked for a motion to
approve the minutes. Commissioner Benyshek moved to approve the minutes as presented and Commissioner Rudolph
seconded.
Chairman Johnson: I'm going to take the privilege to ask two or three items about these minutes, before we take a final
vote on it. On page five, Commissioner Matt asked about whether we have rules that says that applicants for a particular
case have to be present or I guess virtual in this setting for their particular case. Have we determined what our rules are on
that particular case?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, I think we determined that was something you wanted, but it was not adopted in the bylaws
formally. I am not sure if state statute addresses that. You may be able to defer a meeting for a period of time if the applicant
isn't there. So, I don't know except that you did make and pass a motion, but it's not in the bylaws.
Chairman Johnson: If commissioners are acceptable to this, I guess I would like to review that in our April meeting as
to whether we need to put it in the bylaws or what are the administrative procedures to, what's our comfort level with
having applicants available for their particular case? If, that's acceptable to everybody, then we'll put that on the April
agenda?
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Commissioner Rudolph: I agree, I think that if they're going to be presenting a case, they should at least be present to see
the outcome.
Chairman Johnson: Okay, so we'll put that down on the April agenda and kind of tie that down as to the requirements
for applicants in their particular cases. Kelly, I want to ask you about page five here about halfway down, it says that staff
recommended the commission discuss required level of urban services for new subdivisions and noted the county has a
1997 resolution that establishes minimum construction standards for roads and subdivisions. So, is that where we get to
the point of, if it comes off a hard top or a paved road, then a subdivision has to have paving within it?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): The resolution that was adopted separately from any of our subdivision regulations, says that in
a subdivision, the roads have to be paved. Because this is not included in the subdivision regulations, it's kind of obscure.
People can easily lose track of that. There's a rumor that they have to be paved, but then it took us a while to find where
that rule actually was. So, my suggestion is just that you can discuss the rule, as you're saying, you know, add more nuances
to it or whatever, but I think it needs to be part of the subdivision regulations so it's clear.
Chairman Johnson: If we wanted to do that, we would have to add it to the subdivision regulations, which is not in place
now?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Correct.
Secretary Scherer: Excuse me, Paul.
Chairman Johnson: Go ahead Matt.
Secretary Scherer: I don't believe that's our resolution, or our motion. That's County Commissions?
Chairman Johnson: So, we can make a recommendation to the County Commission that it would be part of the
Subdivision Regulations?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That’s correct.
Secretary Scherer: And I have a further question Paul. I understood and apparently incorrectly, that that resolution was
whether or not the county would consider taking a road into the county road system. It was an interior road (inaudible)
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I don't remember reading that in there. Let me see if I can pull it up.
Secretary Scherer: I could easily be wrong if it doesn't come up (inaudible)
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Erin and I are both looking. Sometimes in the myriad of files we go, ok, where did we put that?
Chairman Johnson: So, restate your comment again, Matt.
Secretary Scherer: My recollection was that that was a condition in order for the County to take interior roads into the
County road system as opposed to being just a flat-out requirement.
Chairman Johnson: So maybe I'm a little unclear here, so if we require that if they're coming off of a paved road, they
have to have a paved interior road for a subdivision, then the question is, what is the county's obligation to that?
Secretary Scherer: Actually, my recollection was that you're correct, that if there's a paved county road, there has to be
a paved entrance. But from what I understood what Kelly said was, any subdivision, that had interior roads (inaudible)
based upon the County Commission's resolution.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Okay, Erin found it. Let me share my screen if you want.
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Commissioner Rudolph: Yes, please.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): What it says…. setting the following minimum construction standards for roads and streets in
subdivisions in Jefferson County, not otherwise provided for in the subdivision regulations of Jefferson County, to be as
follows. And then it has earthwork, pavement, drainage, and terms, and under pavement it says width 24 feet, six inches
asphaltic concrete BM-2 surface.
Commissioner Phillips: This is Steve, when was that put into place?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That was on March 11, 1996. No, no, that's the one that replaces. August 4, 1997.
Commissioner Phillips: I'd be curious to know whether there's been any subdivision since that. Or if that acts as effective
preclusion on subdivisions.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Erin said Meril Vanderpool has built the subdivision out there by the golf course, since then,
and Village Green Subdivisions. So, I do think there's been several but I'm not sure yet if it's a deterrent.
Commissioner Phillips: It's got to be.
Secretary Scherer: I live in a subdivision which has its own road, and it's never been taken into the County system. We
always just assumed it was because it wasn't built to standards, but it predates 1996.
Chairman Johnson: Well, it's probably something we're going to revisit in this comprehensive plan anyway, as to
subdivision regulations. I don't want to dwell on this point. We have a lot of things to talk about tonight, so I was just
curious about the ramifications for subdivision development in Jefferson County and it gets into affordability and the
question of whether subdivisions can live with good gravel. I wanted to discuss that as we go forward with the comp plan,
and how our zoning and subdivision regulations correlate with that.
Chairman Johnson: Kelly, another item I had on the minutes was the paragraph before that. Do we have a County Land
Bank in Jefferson County?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yes, we do.
Chairman Johnson: And maybe Tim can explain this but who or what is that?
Commissioner Benyshek: Best way I know how to describe it Paul is the land bank was created in the county I mean,
and feel free anybody to jump in to correct me, but we have several properties, especially in some of these subdivisions,
that where there are several vacant lots that there have been, I mean, essentially I look at it as the ownership has forfeited
the ground, they're not paying taxes on the property, they're not maintaining the properties, they have no intention of
reclaiming the property. Therefore, the county has stepped in through whatever legal process that there is to essentially
take that property back and place it in the County Land Bank. You can go right in the courthouse, just down the hall and
see the maps right in front of the Treasurer's Office of all the properties that are listed in the County Land Bank, or that are
in county ownership that they have for resale. And it's my understanding that when they're owned by the County Land
Bank, it is an easier process for the treasurer to resell those properties than going through the traditional foreclosure route
and tax sale.
Chairman Johnson: That’s very helpful. Any other comments on that particular item?
Secretary Scherer:
resolution?

Paul, I don't have a comment, but I would like to ask Kelly if she could send me a copy of that

Kelly Woodward (Staff): Of the road one or creating a land bank?
Secretary Scherer: The road one.
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Kelly Woodward (Staff): I haven't looked at the governing document for the land bank here, but I know that it often opens
up mechanisms like Brownfield, you can remediate Brownfield properties, you can assemble properties together for
development, it makes it easier to offer some incentives, also. So, that's a really good thing we should look at while we're
updating the comprehensive plan and see how that might be utilized to the fullest extent for the subdivision.
Chairman Johnson: So, does the County Commission or the County Treasurer? Who administers this?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Generally, the treasurer is working with the County Commission.
Chairman Johnson: Okay. Very helpful. A couple other items on these minutes. One, do we have a timeline on when
we're going to see from the Army Corps, a new Perry Lake plan timeline?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): When you will see the draft plan? Is that what you're thinking, Paul?
Chairman Johnson: Yes.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I think it was nine months or so. It wasn't right away. They haven't even started creating the
plan.
Chairman Johnson: And explain to me again, what is the importance of this Perry Lake plan as far as the county and us
drawing up a new comprehensive land use plan?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, typically, our county comprehensive plan would have a recreation element. And a lot of
the recreation amenities we have, are, of course at Perry, and they have their own kind of agenda and governance going
on. So if we can create a solid vision of some recommendations, then I think they'll take them seriously. I don't know if
they will do them, but it might open up opportunities for partnerships to make them happen.
Commissioner Rudolph: Do we already have anything that's possibly in writing? With any kind of partnership between
them?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Erin, are you aware of the county having any kind of an agreement with them? I know lots of
organizations do like Audubon, and the schools and private businesses and scouts organizations, for example.
Commissioner Rudolph: And is there anything comparable, maybe in some of the comprehensive plans that you've looked
at that might have similar possible possibilities of a partnership?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That is possible? I can think about that and start looking for that.
Secretary Scherer: Pardon me, the State of Kansas is usually considered a partner through the Kansas water office as
well and possibly Wildlife and Parks.
Chairman Johnson: So, one last comment about the minutes, I don’t want to drag this on, but on page eight, the second
staff comment down it says staff recommended amendment to regulations making the minimum lot size and suburban
residential districts two acres instead of one acre to align with the current health department regulations for onsite
wastewater systems, or even three acres to align with regulations for raising animals on small lots. If in reworking of our
comprehensive plan or reworking of how we're going to handle cluster developments in this county, and would have
possibly more common septic system opportunities for smaller lots and you know, or even, do we have any apartment
complexes in Jefferson County?
Commissioner Rudolph: I believe in Meriden, there might be like four plexs or something like that. I think maybe there
might be one that has six in it.
Chairman Johnson: I think those are handled by the city, right? Like they're in Meriden? Obviously, we might be talking
about what's available in rural parts or around Lake Perry, for example.
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Kelly Woodward (Staff): Erin says there are some duplexes, but she can't think of any apartments.
Chairman Johnson: I mean, I can understand why you're trying to sync up with what the health department's saying in
terms of, if developments only going to happen on certain size lots, then this is the size it has to be for their own septic
system.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, it helps the Health Department enforce that regulation if we're not doing something that's
counteractive to it. So, we're both on the same page.
Chairman Johnson: Well, thanks for everybody’s patience on some comments about the minutes, so I would take a
motion for the adoption of the minutes at this point.
Secretary Scherer moved to adopt the minutes as presented and Commissioner Rudolph seconded.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Matt
Stephen
Gale
Johnson
Scherer
Phillips
Rudolph
Chairman
Secretary
DNV
Aye
Aye
Aye
Motion Passed 4-0
Item 6.

Public Comment: There was none.

Item 7.

Old Business

Tim
Benyshek

Vacant

Vacant

Aye

--

--

Chairman Johnson: We're on to Item 7, old business, general staff report, consider initiation of potential text amendments,
TA2021-01, to selections of the zoning and subdivision regulations pertaining to application requirements and zoning
certificate building permit procedures.
Kelly Woodward (Staff):
correct? I'm assuming.

So, we didn't have any public that wanted to speak on anything not on the agenda? Is that

Chairman Johnson: I'm going to leave it up to Anna to tell me if anybody else is plugged into this exciting meeting.
(Anna said there was not any other public logged in).
Kelly Woodward (Staff): For item seven, we deferred this last time. All I'm asking you to do is just to initiate the
potential amendment. And that doesn't mean we're discussing it; doesn't mean we have a draft for you or anything like
that. It just means that you are directing staff to research the issue and draft some recommendations. And what this
pertains to is the zoning and subdivision regulations for application requirements and zoning certificate and building
permit procedures. And it all started because there was a question about whether proof of available water supply was
required at time of application for an ag lot split. And it was the attorney’s position that the way the ordinance is
currently written, it's not required at time of agriculture lot split, it is required for plats. If the county does want to require
a proof of water supply with Ag Lot splits, we would need to amend the regulations to be clear on that. Or if we don't
think it's necessary, for instance, at that time, but we want to make sure that we at time of building permit approval, we
make sure they have proof of water supply, then we will want to also clarify that. We do have some other just kind of
housekeeping things that need to be clarified in the permit section of the zoning regulations, so this is just asking you to
consider initiating that text amendment tonight.
Chairman Johnson: So, what's the timeline? Would you bring that then to the April meeting?

Page 7 of 156

5

Mar. 22nd, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – Unofficial
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Think we could have it by the April meeting.
Chairman Johnson: Are we permitted by state statute to require a water source for an Ag Lot split?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yes, I think you can.
Chairman Johnson: If we write that, if we adopt that as part of our subdivision regulations, or zoning regulations, then
we’re legal to do that.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I believe so, but I will run the draft of any amendments that we propose past the attorney
before you see them, and I can ask that question to make sure.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman? I think I understand what you said that you've got more than just the water
availability issue on your list of to dos, but do you need a broader motion than just dealing with water?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I put a requested action at the bottom of the memo and left it pretty broad in that it just
pertains to application requirements and zoning certificate/building permit procedures.
Commissioner Phillips: Why do we want to do this?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I would like you to do it because there's a lack of clarity in the current regulations and I think
it makes it hard for there to be consistency, from zoning administrator to zoning administrator, when it's not clear if it's
required or not. There's a best practice that we've been requiring it that they have to fill out this form, but it doesn't
actually say that in the regulations clearly. And actually, our procedures mention a zoning certificate, but they don't even
call it a building permit but building permit is what we're calling it, so I want to make it clear that a zoning certificate and
the building permit are basically the same thing here for instance. It's not big changes, it's just small things.
Commissioner Phillips: I guess I'm wondering if we need proof of water for an agricultural lot split though. My
impression is that most of those are within the family, by people who know pretty much what they're doing. I don't want
to put hurdles in where we don't need it.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Right and if you all reached a consensus that it's not needed at that time, then we would not
make changes to the regulations on that point, but we might have other draft changes that you would find necessary. But
initiating it doesn't mean you have to adopt anything. You don't have to make any changes if you don't want to.
Secretary Scherer: And about my point out, we could actually state that it's not required on an ag split and there
wouldn't be any confusion (inaudible) in the future.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah. And so typically, if you initiate something, and then you would follow up with a
recommendation to either amend it or not amend it, and send that to the county commission, and then they would take
action on your recommendation.
Chairman Johnson: Ag lot splits can be sold to anybody? Right. It’s not mandatory that it's within a particular family?
Commissioner Phillips: No, it's not. But I think of the ones we've seen that I remember, it's been within a family, but
certainly it's not required.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I have already been in contact with other jurisdictions through the planner network that’s set
up and asking them if they do it, or they don't do it, and so I could bring you that information, and that would help you
with your decision.
Chairman Johnson: I guess for timing purposes, probably what makes sense to me is that you bring a draft suggestion
to us in April, and then we can look at that and debate it and then you know, act on it, if we need to, or don't need to, by
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May or June. Unless you think some of this has a certain immediacy that we need to respond to it in the very near
future?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, I'm a little confused, I think. It would just be initiating it so that you would be directing
us to look at this, create that draft, bring it back when it's ready, and then you'll consider it at that time. Whatever
timeframe is good for you guys. I'm not saying there's any rush. But I would like it to be initiated, so we know that's on
our work schedule and that's what we're doing. If you don't want to look at it, I don't want to spend time on it either.
Chairman Johnson: So maybe I need a motion from commissioners to ask for that draft proposal to be ready for the
April meeting?
Commissioner Rudolph: I so initiate, Mr. Chairman, I would like to initiate a potential text amendment to the TA202101 and see if it's an actual need that this county could use or not for the April meeting.
Secretary Scherer: I second.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Matt
Stephen
Johnson
Scherer
Phillips
Chairman
Secretary
DNV
Aye
Aye
Motion Passed 4-0

Gale
Rudolph

Tim
Benyshek

Vacant

Vacant

Aye

Aye

--

--

Chairman Johnson: I'm not sure how out of order this might be at this point. Matt raised the question about whether in
the March meeting, we needed to handle elections at this point for the next year for Chairman, Vice Chairman and
Secretary of the Planning Commission. So, I will leave it up to the body whether they want to take up that particular item
right now, or whether they would prefer to hold that to the April meeting.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, since I brought it up, I'll just say I don't have any preference, particularly, although I
don't remember the last time we actually did it in March.
Chairman Johnson: By the bylaws, isn't March the meeting we should be handling elections? Comments by
commissioners on how we should handle this item.
Commissioner Rudolph: Well, at this point, Mr. Chairman, I so move that we keep the positions that are current until
next year.
Secretary Scherer: As I said, before we actually started the meeting tonight, the only question I have is whether or not
Paul is term limited here. I just don't know. I don't remember when Paul started as Chair. I actually don't remember
what the term limit is either to be honest.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Maybe that's something we need to research for the next meeting.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, I'd be willing to move that we postpone elections till next month, so we can have it
on the agenda properly.
Commissioner Rudolph: I second.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Matt
Stephen
Johnson
Scherer
Phillips
Chairman
Secretary
DNV
Aye
Aye
Motion Passed 4-0
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Rudolph

Tim
Benyshek

Vacant

Vacant

Aye

Aye
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Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, I have a question. I don't think I have the latest version of the bylaws, and I was
wondering if staff could provide them.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): We'll send the bylaws to everybody.
Secretary Scherer: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Item 8.

New Business:

Chairman Johnson: So, on to new business here, item 8. Updating the Jefferson County, Kansas comprehensive plan
part one goals.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): All right. So just getting started in this process it occurred to me that probably one of the first
things we ought to do is come to some kind of consensus on what are the goals for looking at the comprehensive plan
and considering amendments. And so, I did prepare some potential examples of goals, and also suggested that maybe
you'd like to kind of kick off the process by having a joint meeting with the county commission to discuss some
recommended project goals, make sure we're on the same page from the beginning. I can put the draft goals up on the
screen, or we can just randomly discuss goals, we can discuss the ones I recommended, whatever you would like to do, I
want to hear from you. What you think the goals should be? It would be good to come to consensus on a manageable
number of goals that we could put out on a project web page, so other people know what you're trying to accomplish.
Commissioner Phillips: If I could I think we need to decide what the current plan isn't, how it isn't working, what
decisions we're reaching that we don't like. I worry, are we changing, are we looking to a new plan when we haven't
defined what's wrong with the old plan? I think that's the starting point that I'm not clear on.
Secretary Scherer: I concur with Steve about that. Since we have an existing plan, we ought to grow from it rather than
just start over.
Chairman Johnson: Other comments? I like the idea of having a joint meeting with county commission about all of
this. Kind of, you know, I certainly appreciate the thoughts about, you know, what we like and don't like about the
existing comprehensive plan and what we're trying to do to improve that as such. But having a meeting of the minds with
the County Commission seems to make a lot of sense, as we move down the road here.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I did get them a copy of the plan conformance report. I don't know if they've read it, but at
least they have the same information that you guys have been presented with so far. I certainly don't think we need to
throw out the old plan at all. I mean, I'm looking at this as an update, not a replacement.
Chairman Johnson: Although our plan could be more, as you say, more visually attractive, easy to read document. So,
you do that in a format of kind of executive summary of the highlights, and then for those who want to deal more into the
substance.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That's often how it goes, and sometimes communities just really focus on putting the
strategies and goals up front, and then you know, the profile information and those other things in the appendices, so that
you get right to the meat of the plan to begin with and have that other kind of reference material or supportive material in
the appendices.
Chairman Johnson: Well, I like your item 7, as far as a future land use map and plan to give people a visual portrayal
of thoughts about development in this county.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): There are county plans I've seen where they'll just tackle one chapter or one topic a year for
potential updates. So maybe one year they look at amending their land use section, maybe another year, they'll amend the
profile, or recreation or whatever. So, you don't always have to bite the whole thing off if you don't want to either. You
could start with the future land use and we probably need to at some point, incorporate the census data in there too,
because that's useful when you're trying to get grants and things and you need that information.
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Commissioner Phillips: Maybe that's the most important thing so that we know what we have.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): What we have as far as population, demographics, market data, that kind of information?
Secretary Scherer: I think that's one of the most important things you can do just because what we have in the existing
plan is now 20 years old.
Commissioner Phillips: Where have the changes occurred over those 20 years?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): So that information will probably be available towards the end of the year is my
understanding. The census data.
Chairman Johnson: Yeah, I don't think the state census data is coming out till August 1 at this point. So, I don't know
how that translates down the county level at this point. I looked at your projected timeline and to have this adopted by
June 2022 seems like quite a challenge especially if we take it as segments that you know, we might consider as such.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, it's an aggressive timeline. It would mean prioritizing this work. One of the other
things you can do in the beginning, Steve, along with the other information on the census and other background
information is start getting that community engagement in there because it's sometimes easier to do it before summer
vacation hits. And then like, you know, do it while school is in session, not during summer vacation. That might be one
of the things we want to start first.
Commissioner Phillips: Makes sense.
Secretary Scherer: You're assuming there's going to be a summer vacation this year?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah. I'm hoping.
Chairman Johnson: Yeah, I don't think that, you know, I'm not sure how we wrap our heads around the availability of
public input around vaccination availability and comfort levels, you know, what this covid 19 pandemic is, has done to
social interaction and comfortableness. Some of this, we really need to do face to face, I think, with community groups
and townships and having, you know, fairly, somewhat face to face dialogue with different groups of people in the
county.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, and I think it's the next item. No, it's the one after that, where I'd suggested some
different methods, but I kind of liked the “meeting in a box” idea that you could create the whole format and mechanism
for the discussion and then put it out there to people, for them to kind of run their own little public engagement and then
get back to you. Create a worksheet with what you're trying to find out. It would take some time to put that together, too.
Commissioner Rudolph: Now, Jefferson County does not have an interactive page for the public, do they? I mean, I
can see where you can contact but I don't see.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I would really like us to have a specific project page or site for a comp plan for them to
respond.
Commissioner Rudolph: Yeah, because I did look at some of the ones that you had suggested out there. I did enjoy the
being able to go and just, I mean, it was user friendly on the two that I looked at. It was easy to get to, I liked that you
were able to put your comments in, in right there on the page with your email. But I don't see that we've got anything
that offers that.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That's probably something we would need some help with, I think. So, I could start looking
for people who would be willing to help create that kind of a project web page, or website.
Commissioner Rudolph: No, definitely, with everyone going to the web now that would be so handy.
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Chairman Johnson: So, Kelly, what input do you need from the Planning Commission as far as setting a more firm
timeline on when we're going to actually get this done? And secondly, how to balance everything that you and Erin are
doing in the office at this point, versus outside needs? Are you going to think about this for a while and come back to us
about your thoughts of what level of outside consultation is probably essential?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, I would really like the idea of starting with having you guys meet with the County
Commission and discussing what do we really want to achieve in this update process. And then we can come up with a
plan of attack. You know, there again, I don't want to work on something that somebody thinks is not even needed or not
appropriate. So, I really need some direction on what would be the goals. You know, ones that I put out, there are ones
that I think are potentially good goals, but I definitely think that needs to come from you and from the County
Commission, and then that's kind of like the base of the whole deal. So, if you want to give the goals a little bit more
thought and suggest to me a time that you might want to meet with them via zoom. I suppose that I don't know. They're
not too big meeting on zoom, either. But Erin, do you have any suggestions on that, how we can maybe do that? They
meet every Monday during the day, which might not work for a lot of you. But I could talk to them about whether they
would be willing to just get on a zoom meeting to talk with you about this one thing, you know, the goals for updating
the comprehensive plan.
Commissioner Phillips: It's much easier for me to meet during the day if it is on zoom than it is, you know, because I
work in Topeka then I have to drive to Oskaloosa. So, a meeting on Mondays is doable. Any Monday is probably doable
for me.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, that might work really good, because they would be there together in the meeting. You
guys could join by zoom on the big screen, they would be able to see you all. I think that would work right, Anna? Yeah.
So, if you picked a certain Monday, I can put you on the agenda.
Chairman Johnson: When was the last time the Planning Commission met with the County Commission?
Secretary Scherer: Believe it never has in my tenure, maybe in yours.
Chairman Johnson: I would certainly welcome the opportunity, but I’m getting into gardening season so I’m a lot
closer to my farm, so I would drive in for such an event.
Secretary Scherer: I don’t want to be a spoilsport, but isn't that technically a meeting of the county Planning
Commission? And needs to be public?
Commissioner Phillips: Yeah, that's doable, though.
Secretary Scherer: Yeah, just takes a little more time. And we're not going to do it next Monday.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, I wouldn't want to hit them with it right away. We need to give them a heads up and so
they'll have time to think about it, too. Maybe in a month, you know, or something?
Chairman Johnson: I don't know if it's a fair question to you Kelly, but what is your sense of an interest on the part of
the County Commissioners to even produce a new comprehensive plan?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): And I haven't talked to David Christy about it, but when I had my interview, and Lynn and
Richard were there, that was something they talked about with me, and they seemed very interested in doing.
Chairman Johnson: Did they raise issues about inadequacies of what we have now or
Kelly Woodward (Staff): no, no, no, they just
Chairman Johnson: What improvements they would like, you know, I mean it's just that it's 20 years old so it's time to
do it again.
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Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, I think they just were thinking generally it needed to be updated and then there were
some issues that they would like to see covered or thought about during the process.
Commissioner Rudolph: I don't even think Jefferson County has a vision statement in what I'm seeing so yeah, there
can be some updates on here.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Even just a visual update would be really great.
Commissioner Rudolph: Yeah, definitely.
Chairman Johnson: Is it fair to ask what, would they list for our consideration some of the issues that they have with
the comp plan at this point.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I could meet with them during the department head portion of the meeting or even before the
meeting and ask if they're willing to do that. But then I won't meet with you for another month.
Chairman Johnson: Well, you could send out notes about it, right?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, yes, I could do that. I just thought it would be a great opportunity for you guys to talk
together.
Chairman Johnson: Well, I'm all for it. I mean, I think we need to be able to same, you know, playing field or
whatever, this sports lexicon that, that we have, and they're clearly the ones that are going to have to adopt anything that
we've proposed, so it'd be nice to start out on an understanding of kind of where we're headed.
Commissioner Phillips: Yeah, I'd sure like some direction from them. We've gotten very little feedback and it makes
things difficult.
Secretary Scherer: And I just checked and none of the commissioners were commissioners when we adopted the last
one.
Chairman Johnson: Lynn was elected pretty close after that though wasn’t she?
Secretary Scherer: I don't know, I just, I just checked the three commissioners’ names.
Chairman Johnson: Let's talk a little about the timeline here. So maybe in a couple months, we'll try to set up on a
Monday meeting with the commissioners to start the process. And then we'll maybe get a sense from them about what
kind of timeline they're looking at for, you know, the eventual adoption of a new comp plan. And then they give us some
specifics about particular goals.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): It is my understanding that there is some money put aside, that's been being put aside to help
with the update as well.
Chairman Johnson: Do you think they'll be a player in how we need to set up community engagement or stakeholder
input?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I think it'd be good to ask them about the strategies.
Commissioner Phillips: This is Steve, something I wish that I knew was the economics of development. What kind of
development costs the county more in services than it brings in in tax revenue? And that's something I just have no clue
about. And I don't know if there is an expert that can advise us on that, or if there's a treatise or an article on that.
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Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, I mean, there's a lot of information out there about sprawl, rural sprawl, urban sprawl,
and how it's more costly, but I think it would be useful like you're saying to have some more specific information to the
county situation and the county finances specifically.
Chairman Johnson: Let's see, are you talking about potential impact fees, and how the county has to respond in terms
of Sheriff or roads, or you know, would development cost me and the county in terms of responding to those needs?
Commissioner Phillips: Yes, exactly. And, you know, does the density of development matter, does the size of the
house matter? I just have no clue on any of that.
Chairman Johnson: I had a county commissioner I knew from Douglas County that sent me an analysis about, I want
to say it's I don't know if it's the right name of the county but it's around Lincoln, Nebraska, I want to say Lancaster
County, but anyway, they did an assessment of what kind of value a home would have to have to pay for all of the fees
that the county was going to have to provide and this was 15-20 years ago and at that point in up there it was if you didn't
build a house over a quarter of a million dollars, you know, for the property taxes generated, then the county was losing
money. Now, I don't know if that place in Jefferson particularly and, and I'm worried about, you know, pricing out, you
know, a lot of people who could relocate here.
Secretary Scherer: I might remind everyone we had our own county commissioner a few years ago who, I believe used
a Texas example that had similar results that it just cost the county more than most of the homes that were built then the
county brought in, I guess you'd say. But I'm not sure, I think that's particularly not a good analysis, since it was a
completely different environment.
Chairman Johnson: It's something we've shied away from and it's not, while on occasion, we've talked a little bit about
it, you know, that in our zoning cases and planning cases, we don't ask questions about how much property taxes this
development going to bring in. What's a quarry going to do in the northern part of the county, you know, term in terms of
value? I mean, it seems like that's been outside of our scope of concern or consideration.
Commissioner Phillips: But I think there's a difference between not considering it with individual parcels. But the need
to consider it when you're making a big picture set of rules. I certainly wouldn't want to make those considerations with
individual parcels. Big picture, I think they need to be taken into account somehow.
Secretary Scherer: Yeah, I have to concur with Steve completely on that. That's an individual parcel, we had no
business doing that. In the comprehensive plan, that's one of the things that we really should be (inaudible).
Chairman Johnson: Well, for what it's worth, this lobbyist sitting where I do and watching state finances and county
finances, and all promises the State made to reimburse counties for various taxes and, and city county sharing. And,
yeah, the state took away property tax on business, machinery, etc. And then the county doesn't. I mean, it survives on its
own, but it doesn't. I mean, it's a mixed bag as to how you put the revenue package together for these counties to
function.
Secretary Scherer: I know, it's not exactly a segue but I would like to go back to something Kelly suggested, addressing
the update to the comprehensive plan in a piecemeal fashion as we go through each chapter, rather than trying to do the
whole thing, all at once. I wonder if that wouldn't be very useful to us, because the first thing you do is look at the
existing data. And that'll make it much easier for us to figure out what questions we should be asking and what, what
other data. For example, the first chapter in our current plan is pretty much basic data. I think the first two chapters are.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I could start putting together a new format for that, especially if you saw a plan that you
really liked. We could get everything ready, and then we could just put the numbers in and then leave a section for
analysis after we find out what the numbers are.
Chairman Johnson: In building off of that, something that we know we've looked at in the past, but I mean, is there a
good inventory out there of zoned land for particular? Probably rural residential primarily, that is already in place, but
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undeveloped? Is there a good real estate inventory in Jefferson County, about how much is already zoned out there,
particular development that hasn't been developed?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Oh, we can work on that right away, too, with the help of our GIS department, hopefully
they'll have time.
Secretary Scherer: Erin, may have already noticed that we asked that question a couple years ago and got some sort of
response. I don't recall what it was, a table I believe.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, and Kirk created an interactive map of undeveloped parcels under 40 acres for me at
the last meeting, but we didn't run any real analysis, he just created the map.
Chairman Johnson: Then that gets into the whole question about the undeveloped lots around the lake to?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yes. All of them.
Chairman Johnson: That's all private land around the lake. Right? And then the question is, if we wanted to make
some of those lots of little more appealable, as far as joining a few of them together for a larger lot? Is that all within the
homeowner associations? And if some of those lots have fallen into our County Land Bank, does that give us more
opportunities to put together different size lots?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, I think we would have to see if they had any rules about that in their HOA if there is an
active HOA, because that sometimes can impact their dues that they collect, you know, if they collect based on the
number of lots, for example. But that’s somebody we really do need to also talk to is to start talking to these HOAs to
find out what their issues are, what they would like to see, how we can help.
Chairman Johnson: How many HOAs do we have in Jefferson County?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Erin is that something that you know?
Commissioner Benyshek: I can think of at least five off the top of my head, and there's probably a few more than that,
just to be honest.
Chairman Johnson: And where would those five be Tim?
Commissioner Benyshek: They're all in the subdivisions along the lake.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Plus, I live in one, which is Lake Dabinawa, which is more east of there. I don’t know if the
Meril Vanderpool one has an HOA, for example, I think there'll be others.
Commissioner Rudolph: I do believe that there is one right off 40, I'm sorry, 92nd, right across from the Tee It Up, golf
shooting thing? I think it's just one road, but I believe they even have one.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): We should figure out who they are, put together a contact list, and then you guys can come up
with a plan of how you'd like us to involve them.
Chairman Johnson: Well, I appreciated the comprehensive plans that you drew up and some of your comments about
plans we ought to be looking at, at this point. So, if we have a, you know, if we set up a meeting with the county
commission that say within a couple months, that starts to set us a baseline for moving forward. And then hopefully the
County Commission can offer their thoughts about goals that the Planning Commission can react to. What other action
steps seem essential at this point to I mean I guess I can see us at every meeting going forward for this year and next
year, having you know, kind of continual updates on how this process is moving forward?
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Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, it depends on how much you guys want to be involved in, how much homework you
want to have, or if you want to have an exercise at each meeting that we work through, or give us direction of something
to accomplish before the next meeting, and we'll bring you back a report or, you know, we probably can figure that out as
we go.
Commissioner Rudolph: I do have a couple of questions, Kelly. For the meeting in a box, about how long would it take
to put something like that together? Would it be something they can access online? Is it something you would have to put
together and possibly email to say, whoever wants to conduct that kind of meeting or to the association head person?
And then who would man hotlines? I was kind of curious when I saw that, what kind of hotline would that involve?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Um, so if we came up with a stakeholder group of people who wanted to sort of lead this
process or help lead this process, they could be participants in the hotline, we set up a hotline for people who'd rather call
in to give their input. It could be the county commissioners, you never know, who might want to do that? Might be you
guys? It could be a Chamber of Commerce organization, some of them, you know, could be anybody. We'd have to give
them guidance of what we're trying to find out.
Commissioner Rudolph: So, it would be the questions that you printed out towards the end?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): No, not necessarily. I mean, that was just an example of some survey questions. But as far as
the meeting in the box, I think as soon as we get the project webpage put together, it'd be great to just have anybody be
able to download that meeting in a box right from the site. And it’s safer technology wise. But if they can't, you know,
we certainly can print everything out for them. We have people that just don't want to go to a website and download and
print things, we can print them. And they can pick them up or we can mail them. So, I think we just have to keep our
options open because it's never, you just can’t make everybody happy with one strategy. I do have to do some research
into county wide mailings, because whenever they're going out, I think we need to take advantage of that. For notices to
get sent out about a survey, if you liked, you know, the survey that I put together, for example, I would want to be able to
put that out whenever the next direct mailing goes out, because that saves us money. I want to have a plan for when we're
going to do that outreach.
Commissioner Rudolph: That would definitely be something to look into. Because I know when I get my water bill,
they've got quite a few announcements that are set in that as well.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Maybe we can piggyback with the water districts.
Commissioner Rudolph: That would be great because they've got a printout on when the meetings are sometimes what
their test analysis is. So that could be a good possibility.
Commissioner Phillips: I think we only get one of those once a year and everything else is a postcard from our water
district.
Chairman Johnson: They say the water quality, or they tell you what their tests were.
Commissioner Rudolph: I think once they had that where they were going to have some meeting and then another time,
I got the water quality.
Secretary Scherer: Some of us receive our water from districts that are not in the county.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): A lot of them, there are so many water districts.
Chairman Johnson: Well, the county also has a phone network that goes out for Do Not Burn Days, you know, or if
maybe some highway construction pieces. That was on my landline now I've moved to a cell phone. I'm not sure what
the capabilities are of the county to reach residents at this point.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That would be a good thing to talk to the County Commission about too.
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Commissioner Phillips: I know that people appreciate unsolicited calls and texts.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): We have a pretty strong network through Keith Jeffers through social media and other email
blasts and things where he, I can see how many people he actually covers. It's a lot. So that's something we could start
with, too.
Chairman Johnson: What else do you need from us tonight?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, let me tell you what I think I've heard from you so far.
Chairman Johnson: I hope this is coherent.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, I heard the first thing is yes, we like the joint meeting with the County Commission and
try to do that within a couple of months. That maybe you think starting with the first two chapters, or I think Matt said it's
two chapters, but the data chapters, maybe trying to get a format put together so that we can update those and see what
other studies we might need to do. And that would also include the inventory or basically the undeveloped lot inventory.
Chairman Johnson: And building permits, and how’s the housing changing in Jefferson County?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, so usually, there's housing income, population, commuting patterns, your work kind of
stuff. I can put together sort of an outline of what kind of information would be in there, at least by the next meeting.
Commissioner Rudolph: And out of curiosity, that I've seen, where some counties don't have accessibility to the
internet, do we have any issues like that up this way? That that's something that might be prohibitive to people wanting to
come as well.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, and I'm not sure. It seems like the providers don't like to really advertise their service
areas do they? We're going to have to probably find that out by asking people in a survey, how's your internet service?
Who is your provider?
Commissioner Rudolph: With more people working from home, that is quite an issue. My internet, I had to get the next
package up so that I could work from home. And it thankfully, it doesn't drop. But, you know, I'm lucky enough to be in
this area where it's provided, but not too far from here, I've understood that there hasn't been any accessibility. And, you
know, there, they weren't able to work from home unless they did the satellite situation. So that's just a curious, you
know, if you you're able to obtain that as well, or maybe put it on a survey.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah.
Commissioner Phillips: There is a map that shows which areas received federal government grants for expansion of
broadband and which didn't. I can't say the name, there's an acronym. My house received it right across the road from
me didn't and I understand the people across the road from me just have essentially no internet at all. I mean, I got really
lucky.
Commissioner Benyshek: I can tell you there are several areas in Jefferson County where there is, as far as like what
you would consider your standard T1 line internet, which is what you think of like an ethernet cable type style internet
does not exist in lots of Jefferson County. I know. My house is one of those. My only option where I live is Satellite
Internet.
Secretary Scherer: I would think that KCC would have some information along those lines.
Chairman Johnson: Department of Commerce is probably the one that has, you know, had the task force and taking
some of the Federal COVID money etc. to expand broadband. Do we get any of that information out of all these cell
towers that we approve in Jefferson County?
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Kelly Woodward (Staff): No, I think that might be one of the things you cannot ask them under the new legislation.
Ok, and then I think I was going to search for potential people to help with a project web page. The Economics of
development question. Do some preparations for discussions on that with the county commission. The real estate
inventory we talked about that. Get more land bank information, we can definitely do that. Start getting some information
on the HOAs. And how to contact them and how to involve them. I think that's it.
Commissioner Rudolph: Oh, Perry Lake plan looking to see if they had anything.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Oh, yeah. So, if I can find another plan that sort of has some synergies with a public area plan
of another agency or jurisdiction?
Commissioner Rudolph: Yeah, because I see on the Jefferson County Comprehensive plan page 32, they stated the
source as the Perry Lake master plan from December of 1991.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): And then I guess, if you can continue to think about the survey questions that I put out there,
and the different methods of public participation, so you can talk about those with the county commission as well, that'd
be helpful. Does that sound good? Okay. I appreciate the input. Definitely. Want to do something that you guys feel is
useful and will make you proud. So?
Commissioner Rudolph: Well, we appreciate your guidance.
Commissioner Phillips: I think meeting with the County Commission is just essential, so we get some direction.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I like doing that because then people are bought into it from the beginning. We don’t want to
spring it on them later.
Commissioner Phillips: Absolutely.
Secretary Scherer: I had one comment on the survey, so that I don't forget it that I'd like to make, I think it's important
to ask people what kind of restrictions they find are acceptable in order to achieve the various improvements that the rest
of the questions talk about? What kind of restrictions they find acceptable on these private properties? Or what kind of
extra regulation that (inaudible).
Kelly Woodward (Staff): So, try to find out a way to figure out where the value tips so much that they're willing to
tolerate some regulation to do that?
Secretary Scherer: Exactly. How much are you willing to pay for this? I’ve noticed in a lot of these kinds of surveys,
that question doesn’t get asked.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, and I think I have had some survey questions like that, that I have put together before
so I will take a look at that.
Commissioner Rudolph: How did you word that again, please, Matt?
Secretary Scherer: Well, I've had a lot of trouble wording it. But basically, how much are you willing to pay for what
you're going to get? In this case, it's not just economic payment, it's how much restrictions there might be on an
individual's use of their own property. For example, if you were going to actually protect a view shed, that means people
in the view shed that are restricted to what they can do with their property. I think it's important to ask people what
limitations they (inaudible).
Commissioner Rudolph: And I'm also curious. I'm sorry. Kelly, I was also going to ask, I know that there's some
historic places around that need to be preserved. Do you guys have anything on record what we already have historical
preservation?
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Kelly Woodward (Staff): I think there were a few of them in the plan, but are most of them in the cities or not? I don't
know.
Commissioner Rudolph: I only know of, I think two, maybe. So, I was just curious.
Secretary Scherer: I don't see anything in the existing plan that refers to historical sites.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): But you do or don't?
Secretary Scherer: Do not. But that's just looking at the table of contents.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I think it had strategies in there for historic preservation and other kinds of preservation, but it
probably didn't have a historic inventory, did it?
Commissioner Rudolph: I don't remember seeing one, but I didn't look close enough. I was just curious, because, you
know, we don't, I don't think any. I mean, we've got Perry Lake as an attraction. We've got the little, tiny museums in the
rented, you know, rented out in the buildings, but I don't, I was just curious if that was any kind of draw for our
community.
Commissioner Phillips: Listed properties. I'm sure you could get a list from the State Historical Society and for
national list of properties I think it'd be relatively easy to get those lists.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah. There might be other ones that aren't protected yet that we want to protect. Maybe that
would be a question for a survey. You know, are you aware of any historic properties that should be protected?
Commissioner Phillips: Property owners aren't always enthusiastic about that though.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, they love historic design standards, Steve.
Secretary Scherer: And there's also all the little cemeteries around along those same lines.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Oh, yeah. So as far as county recreational facilities we have the Memorial Park by where the
trails are by the police station right? What I'm not sure really what else we have at this point. But do you guys have some
that you know?
Commissioner Rudolph: I can't think of anything outside the lake, aside from that one near the jail.
Secretary Scherer: Access points to the Kansas River.
Commissioner Phillips: Doesn’t Wildlife and Parks own some new land, kind of
Kelly Woodward (Staff): What was that? Kansas Wildlife and Parks?
Commissioner Phillips: Yeah, there's some new land that I think was donated to them it's kind of northeast of Billtown.
They put some trails on it. If you look at a county ownership map, you can spot it pretty easy.
Chairman Johnson: It’s a hunting reserve that Lance Burr and Roger Johnson donated 600 or 800 acres that's right
along Buck Creek between 35th then not sure how far south it goes.
Commissioner Phillips: That's what I'm talking about. That's it.
Chairman Johnson: Well, have we exhausted all the details right now.
Commissioner Phillips: I'm exhausted.
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Kelly Woodward (Staff): I think you guys did a good job for your first time out on the comp plan right?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): So, I guess we don't have to get specifically into the timeline and the other things that are in
here. The examples, that's just something you might want to, if you have extra time and you want to look at these
examples more and if you find awesome ideas that you'd like to see in your plan then let us know and we can try to
incorporate that.
Secretary Scherer: Kelly, not to beat a dead horse, but did Marion County not have a comprehensive plan?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I did look for them. But I don't remember if they didn't have one. I don't think I found one.
Secretary Scherer: I just wonder because it's similarly situated county with a federal reservoir, smack dab in the middle
of it.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Okay. Maybe I was looking at them for the regulations but not the plan. So, I'll check that
out. Any other suggestions for plans we should look at?
Commissioner Rudolph: Right now? I can't think of any myself.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Okay, you can always send me an email too. Any suggestions that pop in your head, always
feel free to send them along? I don’t see a planning department. There it is. Okay, I found it. So, I'll send that link out.
Guess that's all we have then Mr. Chair.
Chairman Johnson: Well, we're pushing this rock up a hill, so we'll just keep at it for the next year or so. Anybody else
have anything they want to add this evening? For new business or interesting tidbits. I'll gladly take a motion for
adjournment.
Commissioner Benyshek moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Rudolph seconded.
Item 9.
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PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
MEETING DATE: April 26, 2021
PREPARED BY: Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP

AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING I

Z2021-02: A request to consider a change in zoning from Suburban Residential and Agricultural to Rural Residential
(resulting from a boundary shift enlarging a residential parcel) at property located at 7538 Wellman Rd.
Date of Application: 03/04/2021
Type of Request: Rezoning
Owner/Applicant: Brett and Shelley Mullenix
Address: 7538 Wellman Rd
General Location:
East side of Wellman Rd between 70th and 78th Streets
CAMA #:
044-196-13-0-00-00-007.00-0 and a portion of 044-196-13-0-00-00-006.00-0
Site:
SR and AG
Existing Zoning:
North: AG
East:
AG
South: AG, SR, I-2
West: AG
Site:
Residential and Agriculture
North: Agriculture
East:
Agriculture and Farm Homesite
Existing Land Uses:
South: Agricultural, Farm Homesite
West: Agricultural and Farm homesite
and Commercial/Industrial
Lot Size:
11.05 +/- Acres
Notification:
Published and notified as required
Floodplain:
None
Roads Report:
See attached Letter from Jefferson County Road and Bridge Department
Water:
See attached letter from Rural Water District No. 12
Wastewater:
See the attached letter from the Jefferson County Health Department
Ag Enhancement Area: Yes
Commercial/Industrial: None
Prior
The almost 6-acre parcel was in existence at time of adoption of the 1995
Application/History:
Subdivision Regulations.
EXISTING CONDITIONS:
There is an existing home and various sized accessory buildings existing on the 6-acre parcel, and a nearby pond on
the adjacent parcel.
APPLICATION HIGHLIGHTS:
The proposed Boundary Line Adjustment that necessitates the rezoning application is attached. This Boundary Line
Adjustment will result in the pond being included with the homesite rather than the surrounding ag land. The
increase in acreage for the newly configured home site necessitates the zoning change from Suburban Residential
to Rural Residential.
CONSISTENCY WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
Both parcels are located in the “Ag Enhancement” area per the Comprehensive Plan. Soils are 3e (including area
around the pond), 6e (majority of home site) and 6w. The transfer of five acres including the pond from the 71-acre
agricultural parcel to the 6-acre homesite will not have a detrimental impact on the viability of the agricultural use.
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The subject property is not in an area with known Sensitive Habitat areas, and is not designated with Natural
Features/Cultural Attributes that are meant to be preserved.
Wellman Rd is indicated in the Comprehensive Plan as a Rural Major Collector roadway. This type of roadway
requires a total of 100’ right-of-way (ROW) per the Subdivision Regulations, but at this time only 80’ is indicated;
additional right-of-way may need to be dedicated at time of land division or development.
INFRASTRUCTURE, TRAFFIC AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS:
The Jefferson County Health Department communications conclude that the proposed boundary line adjustment
will have no impact on the approved existing lagoon for the homesite. Rural Water District No. 12 indicates that
domestic water service is available. The Road and Bridge department communications show that the existing
residential entrance meets current standards.
STAFF ANALYSIS - APPLICATION:
ARTICLE 30 REZONING FACTORS:
a. Whether the change in classification would be consistent with the intent and purpose of these regulations;
Staff Comment: Yes. The rezoning will make the proposed lot as indicated in the boundary line adjustment
survey compliant with applicable zoning classifications.
b. The character and condition of the surrounding neighborhood and its effect on the proposed change;
Staff Comment: The area includes scattered parcels of both Suburban Residential and Rural Residential
classifications, and is thus this proposal is consistent with the surrounding neighborhood.
c. Whether the proposed amendment is made necessary because of changed or changing conditions in the
area affected, and if so, the nature of such changed or changing conditions;
Staff Comment: Staff is unaware of changing conditions in the area; the application is proposed to
accommodate a proposed boundary line adjustment.
d. The current zoning and uses of nearby properties, and the effect on existing nearby land uses upon such a
change in classification;
Staff Comment: The resulting parcel will remain consistent with nearby zoning districts and uses.
e. Whether every use that would be permitted on the property as reclassified would be compatible with the
uses permitted on other property in the immediate vicinity;
Staff Comment: The proposed reclassification from Suburban Residential to Rural Residential will result in
no change in permitted uses except for the additional opportunity for oil and gas facilities. The same
performance regulations are applicable.
f.

The suitability of the applicant’s property for the uses to which it has been restricted;
Staff Comment: The subject property is suitable for continued low-density residential use.

g. The length of time the subject property has remained vacant or undeveloped as zoned; provided, the use
of land for agricultural purposes shall be considered as viable use of the land and not be considered as
allowing the land to be vacant or undeveloped;
Staff Comment: Not applicable.
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h. Whether adequate sewer and water facilities, and all other needed public services including transportation,
exist or can be provided to serve the uses that would be permitted on the property if it were reclassified;
Staff Comment: All public services are currently available.
i.

The general amount of vacant land that currently has the same zoning classification proposed for the
subject property, particularly in the vicinity of the subject property, and any special circumstances that
make a substantial part of such vacant land available or not available for development;
Staff Comment: This property is not proposed for additional development – this is considered a downzoning
to a less intense district.

j.

The recommendations of permanent or professional staff;
Staff Comment: Staff recommends approval as proposed.

k. Whether the proposed amendment would be in conformance to and further enhance the implementation
of the Comprehensive Plan;
Staff Comment: This amendment is consistent with the implementation of the Comprehensive Plan.
l.

Whether the relative gain to the public health, safety, and general welfare outweighs the hardship imposed
upon the applicant by not upgrading the value of the property by such a reclassification; and,
Staff Comment: This reclassification does not negatively impact the public health, safety and general
welfare and extends the applicable zoning designation.

m. Such other factors as may be relevant from the facts and evidence presented in the application.
Staff Comment: None.
ATTACHMENTS:
A. Notification maps and letter
B. Floodplain map
C. Ag Enhancement Area map
D. Water District letter
E. Jefferson County Health Department letter
F. Jefferson County Road and Bridge Department letter
ACTION:
After holding the required public hearing, the Planning Commission shall prepare a recommendation to do one of
the following:
1. Approve the Rezoning.
2. Approve the Rezoning with conditions as offered by the applicant.
3. Deny the Rezoning with findings of fact.
4. Continue the application to allow further analysis.
EFFECT OF DECISION:
The proposed Rezoning, if approved by the County Commission, shall become effective upon publication of the
adopting resolution.

Page 23 of 156

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the application as proposed.
Recommended motion:
The Planning Commission recommends approval of application Z2021-02 as proposed based on findings in the staff
report.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY 300 Jefferson St Toll Free: (844) 679-0748
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT P.O. BOX 628 Phone: (785) 403-0000
www.jfcountyks.com/planninRandzoning Oskaloosa/ KS 66066 Fax: (785) 403-0783

Date of Notice: 03/31/2021
Dear Property Owner:
NOTICE is hereby given to any and all persons that the following will be considered at a Public
Hearing by the Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission to be held on Monday, April 26th, 2021 at
7:00 p.m. via Zoom Video Conference. This meeting format is being utilized in the interest of public safety.
All application materials and reports will be posted online at https://www.jfcountyks.com/agendacenter (click
on arrow next to Planning Commission) no later than Wednesday, April 21st.
To view or participate in the Zoom meeting, please request the meeting link by calling (785)403-0000, option
3, or emailing kwoodwardf%ifcountvks.com. You will be provided with instructions and given the option to
participate in a practice meeting in advance.
The County will provide a method for individuals without access to the internet or a telephone — and only
such persons - to observe or participate in the meeting from the Jefferson County Courthouse. Face masks are

required at all times inside all County facilities.
To provide written public comment: Written public comment must be received by the Planning and Zoning
Department by 3 pm on Monday, April 26th to be included in the meeting materials. Send correspondence
electronically to kwoodward(A>ifcountyks.com, or mail to P.O. Box 628, Oskaloosa, KS 66066, or place it in the
drop box by the south entrance of the Courthouse. Comments placed in the drop box should be marked for the
Planning Commission.

Z2021-02: A request to consider a change in zoning from Suburban Residential and Agricultural to Rural
Residential (resulting from a boundary shift enlarging a residential parcel) at property located at 7538 Wellman
Rd, McLouth, KS 66054. This request is brought by owners Brett and Shelley Mullenix of the same address.
You are receiving this letter in compliance with the Kansas State Statute 12-757 and in accordance with Article
30-102 of the Jefferson County Zoning Regulations, which requires notice be given to "...all owners of record of
lands located -within at least 1,000 feet of the area proposed to be altered...."

Please be aware that attendance at the public hearing is not limited to those individuals who have received copies
of this notice. If you know of any neighbor or other potentially affected property owner who did not receive a
copy of this notice, it would be appreciated if you would inform them of this public hearing.
The Planning Commission may continue consideration of this matter at the conclusion of the public hearing to a
future date without further notice.
Respect,

///^
['elly Drake Woodward, AICP Erin George
Community Development Director Planner II
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AMt:.l"(/(.;AN :::,Ul"(Vt. TIN<i
Steve Tufte & Garret Tufte
7531 Hwy 59, Oskaloosa, Kansas 66066
785-231-8090

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY
BOUNDARY LINE ADJUSTMENT
TRACT 1 DESCRIPTION

A tract ofland located in the West Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 13 Township 10 South, Range 19 East of the
Sixth PM., Jefferson County. Kansas~ descnbcd as follows: Commencing at the Southwest comer of said Northwest

ADDRESS: 7538 W!lJ.JIAN RD., IICUMH, KS

our

Quarter, thence N00°00'00"W assumed bearing, along the West line of said Northwest Quarter 1378. 75 feet for the Point

OF SU/MY: 12/22/20 JOB NO: JF2-120920
ORDE1IED 8Y: BRITT IIIJlLENIX

of Beginning; thence continuing N00°00'00"W along said West line 261.00 feet; thence N52°3 l '07"E 612.00 feet; thence
S01°31'10"W 695.00 fee~ thence N84°11'36"W 58.00 feet; thence N00°00'53"W 55.00 feet; thence N89°55'56"W 409.51

THIS SURVEY DOES NOT CERTTFY OWNERSHIP

feet to the Point of Beginning. Containing 4.94 acres, more or less. Subject to casements of record and public road

TRACT 2 (J & JA) DESCRIPTION

right-of-way.

A tract of land located in the West Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 13 Township 10 South, Range 19 East of the

Sixth P.M., Jefferson County, Kansas, described as follows: Commencing at the Southwest comer of said Northwest

BEARINGS ARE ASSUMED
ORIGIN OF MONUMENTS
UNKNOWN UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

Quarter; thence N00°00'00"W asswned bearing, along the West line of said Northwest Quarter 728.24 feet for the Point of
Beginning; thence continuing N00°00'00"W along said West line 911.51 feet, thence N52°31'07"E 612.00 feet; thence

S01°31'10"W 695.00 f~ thence N84°11'36"W 58.00 f~ thence S00°00'53"E 595.01 fee~ thence S89°59'52"W 409.67
feet to the Point of Beginning. Containing 11.05 acres, more or less. Subject to casements of record and public road
right-of-way.

TRACT 3 DESCRIPTION

t

78TH ST. (NOR1H UNE NWl/4)

~

IIPRfNEJIEN1S AMJ ZONING
~

REFERENCE SURYa

A tract of land located in the West Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 13 Township 10 South, Range 19 East of the
Sixth P.M., Jefferson County, Kansas, described as follows: Beginning at the Northwest corner of said Northwest Quarter;
thence S00°00'00"E asswned bearing, along the West line of said Northwest Quarter 1008.64 feet; thence N52°31 '07"E
612.00 fe~ thence S0l 0 3l'10"W 695.00 f~ thence N84°11'36"W 58.00 f~ thence S00°00'53"E 595.01 f~ thence
S89°59'52"W 409.67 feet to said West line; thence S00°00'00"E along said West line 728.24 feet to the Southwest comer
of said Northwest Quarter; thence N89°17'46"E along the South line of said Northwest Quarter 1321.20 feet to the
Southeast comer of said West Half of the Northwest Quarter, thence N00°03'50"E along the East line of said West Half
2650.60 feet to the Northeast comer of said West Half; thence S89°12'07"W along the North line of said Northwest
Quarter 1324.18 feet to the Point of Beginning. Containing 69 .39 acres, more or less. Subject to easements of record and
public road rights-of-way.
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PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
MEETING DATE: April 26, 2021
PREPARED BY: Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP

AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING II

Z2021-03: A request to consider a change in zoning from Suburban Residential and Agricultural to Agricultural (to
facilitate an associated Ag Lot Split application) at property located at 6207 58th St, Meriden, KS 66512.
Date of Application: 03/04/2021
Type of Request: Rezoning
Owner/Applicant: Michael and Angela Casey
Address: 6207 58th St
General Location:
South side of 58th St between Decatur Rd and Dickinson Rd
CAMA #:
044-178-27-0-00-00-007.00-0
Site:
SR and AG
Existing Zoning:
North: USA COE property and RR
East:
USA COE property
South: AG
West: USA COE property and AG
Site:
Residential and Agriculture
Existing Land Uses:
North: Vacant and Agriculture
East:
Vacant
South: Farm Homesite
West: Vacant and Farm homesite
Lot Size:
77.7 +/- Acres
Notification:
Published and notified as required
Floodplain:
None
Roads Report:
See attached Letter from Jefferson County Road and Bridge Department and email
communication regarding improvements
Water:
See attached letter from Rural Water District No. 1
Wastewater:
See the attached letter from the Jefferson County Health Department
Ag Enhancement Area: None
Commercial/Industrial: None
Prior
The almost 5-acre parcel was in existence at time of adoption of the 1995
Application/History:
Subdivision Regulations.
EXISTING CONDITIONS:
There is an existing home and various sized accessory buildings existing on the 5-acre parcel. The almost 72-acre
parcel is unimproved pasture and woodlands.
APPLICATION HIGHLIGHTS:
The applicants propose to combine the 5-acre and almost 72-acre parcels into one parcel zoned Agricultural, and
then split a small parcel off along Decatur Rd.
CONSISTENCY WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
The subject properties are not in areas with known Sensitive Habitat, and are not designated with Natural
Features/Cultural Attributes that are meant to be preserved. The parcels are not designated for Ag Enhancement.
58th Street is indicated in the Comprehensive Plan as an “Other Minor Collector” roadway. This type of roadway
requires a total of 80’ right-of-way (ROW) per the Subdivision Regulations, but at this time only 40’ is indicated;
additional right-of-way should be dedicated at time of land division or development. Decatur is a local roadway,

Page 34 of 156

which requires a total of 60’ ROW per the Subdivision Regulations, but at this time the narrows from about 75’
down to about 50’ along the Decatur road frontage. Additional ROW will be obtained at time of land division.
INFRASTRUCTURE, TRAFFIC AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS:
The Jefferson County Health Department communications conclude that the rezoning will have no bearing on the
current wastewater system that was compliant when installed. Rural Water District No. 1 indicates that domestic
water service is available. The Road and Bridge department communications show that the existing entrance for
the residence, and field entrances on both 58th Street and Decatur Rd, require culvert extensions for compliance.
Further communications indicate the applicants have made arrangements for such improvements.
STAFF ANALYSIS - APPLICATION:
ARTICLE 30 REZONING FACTORS:
a. Whether the change in classification would be consistent with the intent and purpose of these regulations;
Staff Comment: Yes. The purpose of the District is to provide for the full range of agricultural activities on
land used for agricultural purposes. Minimum lot size is 40 acres, although the regulations provide for the
creation of one additional lot on lands used for agricultural purposes to accommodate a single-family use.
After the rezoning, lot combination and Ag Lot Split that are planned, there will be a potential for two homes
on about 76 acres, very near the ideal for agricultural areas of 40 acres per dwelling.
b. The character and condition of the surrounding neighborhood and its effect on the proposed change;
Staff Comment: The area includes many parcels zoned for Suburban Residential and Rural Residential and
also a small-lot single-family subdivision. This parcel is adjoined by U.S. Army Corp of Engineers (USACE)
property on two sides, and larger lot agricultural and farm homesites the other sides. This is consistent with
the proposed rezoning to agriculture.
c. Whether the proposed amendment is made necessary because of changed or changing conditions in the
area affected, and if so, the nature of such changed or changing conditions;
Staff Comment: Staff is unaware of changing conditions in the area; the application is proposed to
accommodate a future ag lot split.
d. The current zoning and uses of nearby properties, and the effect on existing nearby land uses upon such a
change in classification;
Staff Comment: The resulting parcel will remain consistent with nearby zoning districts and uses.
e. Whether every use that would be permitted on the property as reclassified would be compatible with the
uses permitted on other property in the immediate vicinity;
Staff Comment: The proposed reclassification from Suburban Residential to Agricultural is considered a
downzoning to a less intense use category. Agricultural uses are compatible with surrounding rural uses.
f.

The suitability of the applicant’s property for the uses to which it has been restricted;
Staff Comment: The subject property is suitable for agricultural purposes and open space.

g. The length of time the subject property has remained vacant or undeveloped as zoned; provided, the use
of land for agricultural purposes shall be considered as viable use of the land and not be considered as
allowing the land to be vacant or undeveloped;
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Staff Comment: Not applicable.
h. Whether adequate sewer and water facilities, and all other needed public services including transportation,
exist or can be provided to serve the uses that would be permitted on the property if it were reclassified;
Staff Comment: All public services are currently available.
i.

The general amount of vacant land that currently has the same zoning classification proposed for the
subject property, particularly in the vicinity of the subject property, and any special circumstances that
make a substantial part of such vacant land available or not available for development;
Staff Comment: This property is not proposed for additional development except for a typical single-family
dwelling associated with an ag lot split.

j.

The recommendations of permanent or professional staff;
Staff Comment: Staff recommends approval as proposed.

k. Whether the proposed amendment would be in conformance to and further enhance the implementation
of the Comprehensive Plan;
Staff Comment: This amendment is consistent with the implementation of the Comprehensive Plan.
l.

Whether the relative gain to the public health, safety, and general welfare outweighs the hardship imposed
upon the applicant by not upgrading the value of the property by such a reclassification; and,
Staff Comment: This reclassification does not negatively impact the public health, safety and general
welfare and extends a compatible zoning designation.

m. Such other factors as may be relevant from the facts and evidence presented in the application.
Staff Comment: None.
ATTACHMENTS:
A. Notification maps and letter
B. Floodplain map
C. Ag Enhancement Area map
D. Water District letter
E. Jefferson County Health Department letter
F. Jefferson County Road and Bridge Department letter
ACTION:
After holding the required public hearing, the Planning Commission shall prepare a recommendation to do one of
the following:
1. Approve the Rezoning.
2. Approve the Rezoning with conditions as offered by the applicant.
3. Deny the Rezoning with findings of fact.
4. Continue the application to allow further analysis.
EFFECT OF DECISION:
The proposed Rezoning, if approved by the County Commission, shall become effective upon publication of the
adopting resolution.
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RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the application as proposed.
Recommended motion:
The Planning Commission recommends approval of application Z2021-03 as proposed based on findings in the staff
report.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY 300 Jefferson St Toll Free: (844) 679-0748
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT P.O. BOX 628 Phone:(785)403-0000
www.jfcountyks.com/planninRandzoninR Oskaloosa/ KS 66066 Fax: (785)403-0783

Date of Notice: 03/31/2021
Dear Property Owner:
NOTICE is hereby given to any and all persons that the following will be considered at a Public
Hearing by the Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission to be held on Monday, April 26th, 2021 at
7:00 p.m. via Zoom Video Conference. This meeting format is being utilized in the interest of public safety.
All application materials and reports will be posted online at https://www.jfcountyks.com/agendacenter (click
on arrow next to Planning Commission) no later than Wednesday, April 21st.
To view or participate in the Zoom meeting, please request the meeting link by calling (785)403-0000, option
3, or emailing kwoodward(®jfcountyks.com. You will be provided with instructions and given the option to
participate in a practice meeting in advance.
The County will provide a method for individuals without access to the internet or a telephone — and only
such persons - to observe or participate in the meeting from the Jefferson County Courthouse. Face masks are

required at all times inside all County facilities.
To provide written public comment: Written public comment must be received by the Planning and Zoning
Department by 3 pm on Monday, April 26th to be included in the meeting materials. Send correspondence
electronically to kwoodward(A)Jfcountvks.com, or mail to P.O. Box 628, Oskaloosa, KS 66066, or place it in the
drop box by the south entrance of the Courthouse. Comments placed in the drop box should be marked for the
Planning Commission.

Z2021-03: A request to consider a change in zoning from Suburban Residential and Agricultural to
Agricultural (to facilitate an associated Ag Lot Split application) at property located at 6207 58th St, Meriden,
KS 66512. This request is brought by owners Michael and Angela Casey of the same address.
You are receiving this letter in compliance with the Kansas State Statute 12-757 and in accordance with Article
30-102 of the Jefferson County Zoning Regulations, which requires notice be given to "... all owners of record of
lands located within at least 1,000 feet of the area proposed to be altered. ..."

Please be aware that attendance at the public hearing is not limited to those individuals who have received copies
of this notice. If you know of any neighbor or other potentially affected property owner who did not receive a
copy of this notice, it would be appreciated if you would inform them of this public hearing.
The Planning Commission may continue consideration of this matter at the conclusion of the public hearing to a
future date without further notice.

?/^
.elly Drake Woodward, AICP Erin George
Community Development Director Planner II
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'LAT
(LAND COMBINATION)
THIS SURVEY DOES NOT CERTIFY OWNERSHIP OR EASEMENTS

Page 1 of 2

58th STREET
[ N88°30'13"E 662.06'
Reviewed in compliance with K.S.A. 58-2005

50'-

L

North line SW 1/4 27-10-17

William Noll PS No. 1599
Jefferson County Surveyor

LEGEND:
• Found Corps of Engineers Monument

R/W Right-of-way
POB Point of Beginning

South line SW 1/4 27-10-17
SWCor.SWW
Sec.27-10-178.POB

NOTES:
1) Except as shown, no easements, restrictions or
other encumbrances are a part of this survey.
2) All bearings are assumed.
Survey ordered by: Sean Casey

STEBBINS SURVEYING LLC

DannyL.StebbinsPSNo.1356
I certify this to be a true and correct copy of a survey made

4778 Decatur Road

SCALE; 1"= 400'

by me or under my direct supervision on March 12, 2021.
If the signature on the face of this drawing is not in BLUE
INK it is not an original and may be subject to ALTERATION.
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Meriden, Kansas 66512
785-246-3513

Page 2 of 2

DESCRIPTION:
A parcel of land in the Southwest Quarter of Section 27, Township 10 South, Range 17 East of the 6th P.M., Jefferson County, Kansas
and more particularly described as follows:
Beginning at the Southwest comer of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 27; thence North 01 degrees 31 minutes 42 seconds West along
the West line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 27 a distance of 498,48 feet; thence North 88 degrees 30 minutes 22 seconds East a
distance of 662.05 feet; thence North 01 degrees 37 minutes 31 seconds West a distance of 831.82 feet; thence North 24 degrees 50 minutes
35 seconds East a distance of 1487.79 feet to the North line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 27; thence North 88 degrees 30 minutes
13 seconds East along the North line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 27 a distance of 662.06 feet; thence South 01 degrees 36 minutes
45 seconds East a distance of 2664.00 feet to the South line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 27; thence South 88 degrees 30 minutes
54 seconds West along the South line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 27 a distance of 1987.47 feet to the Point of Beginning,
containing 78.45 acres, more or less. Subject to rights-of-way, easements and restrictions of record.

STEBBINS SURVEYING LLC
4778 Decatur Road
Meriden, Kansas 66512
785-246-3513
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OFFICE PHONE SER VICE PHONES
1-785-484-2883
Monday
9

a.m.

to

1

1-785-484-2680

thru
p.m.

Friday

or

1-785-221-8572

FAX 1-785-484-24 '17

JEFFERSON COUNTY

Rural Water District No. 1
P.O. BOX 266

MERTOEN, KANSAS 66512

March 17, 2021

RE: Benefit Unit/Available for area of 58th and Decatur Rd.

To Whom It May Concern:
There is a benefit unit/water service available into the Jefferson County R.W.D. #1 at a
cost of $3,510.00 per unit. The cost includes the meter, meter pit, meter lid,
installation. Fee of $1,000.00 if road bore is needed for connection.
Excerpt from the By-Laws and Rules & Regulations: pages 15 & 16.
Meters: Meters will be furnished, installed, owned, inspected, tested and kept in
proper operating condition by the District, without cost to the consumer.
Meter Location: Meters shall be set in an accessible place on the outside of
buildings except where otherwise directed by the District. Meters set outside of a
building shall be placed in a meter box furnished and installed by the District.
The water line from the Benefit Unit to the house is the owners responsibility.
If you have any questions, feel free to contact Paul Heinen at 785-945-3245 or Dede
Taylor at 785-484-2883.
Sincerely,

Jefferson County R.W.D. #1
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l'"':Mefferson

\.S}JC O U N T Y
HEALTH DEPARTMENT
HOME HEALTH & HOSPICE

DATE:

March 19, 2021

TO:

Jefferson County Planning & Zoning

FROM:

John Heston, Environmental Specialist
Jefferson County Health Department

RE:

Michael & Angela Casey
6207 - 58 th St.
Meriden, KS 66512 (27-10-17)

1212 Walnut Street
Oskaloosa, KS 66066-4200
{785) 403-0025
Public Health Fax
(785) 863-2652
Home Health & Hospice Fax
{785) 863-3323
jeffersoncountyhealth.com

The Jefferson County Health Department received a request for an Environmental Consult to
rezone the above referenced property. The rezoning of this property will have no bearing on the
current wastewater system that was installed in 1988. When installed the system meet all
Jefferson County Environmental/Sanitary codes.
Cc: Sean Casey
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3/31/2021

Mail - Kelly Woodward - Outlook

RE: Casey driveways 58th/Decatur
Erin George <egeorge@jfcountyks.com>
Wed 3/31/2021 12:29 PM

To: Sherri Hoffman <SHoffman@jfcountyks.com>; Kelly Woodward <kwoodward@jfcountyks.com>; Donna Jones
<djones@jfcountyks.com>

Great, thanks!
From: Sherri Hoﬀman <SHoﬀman@jfcountyks.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 31, 2021 12:26 PM
To: Kelly Woodward <kwoodward@jfcountyks.com>; Erin George <egeorge@jfcountyks.com>; Donna Jones
<djones@jfcountyks.com>
Subject: Casey driveways 58th/Decatur
The Casey’s have made arrangements for all the driveways to be corrected per their entrance le er on 3/23/21.
Thanks
Sherri Hoffman, Admin Asst./GIS 911 Address Coordinator
Jefferson County Public Works/Road Div.
PO Box 322
14991 94th St
Oskaloosa, KS 66066
785-403-0279 ext 1
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PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
MEETING DATE: April 26, 2021
PREPARED BY: Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP

AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING III

DP2021-01: A request to consider an amended Development Plan for planned improvements at an existing
Agritainment farm business permitted as conditional use CU2002-01. This request is on property located at 5991
17th St, Grantville, KS 66429 and is brought by owners Julie and Gary Starr of Gary’s Berries at the same address.
Date of Application: 3/17/2021
Type of Request: Amended Development Plan for CU2002-01
Owner/Applicant: Gary and Julie Starr
Address: 5991 17th St, Grantville, KS 66429
General Location:
South side of 17th St between Decatur Rd and Douglas Rd
CAMA #:
Existing Zoning:

Existing Land Uses:
Lot Size:
Notification:
Floodplain:
Roads Report:
Water:
Wastewater:
Signage:
Prior
Application/History:

044-248-27-0-00-00-003.00-0
Site:
Agricultural (AG)
North: Agricultural (AG)

East:

Agricultural (AG) and Rural
Residential (RR)
South: Kansas River and County border
West: Rural Residential (RR) and
Suburban Residential (SR)
Site:
Farm homesite and Agritainment Farm business
North: Farmland
East:
Prairie Creek and farmland
South: Kansas River
West: Farmland, farm homesites, and
residential
35.53 acres
Published and notified as required.
Entire property is in the floodplain. Lower portion along Kansas River is in the floodway.
See attached Letter from Jefferson County Road and Bridge.
Two wells on-site.
Awaiting report following a site inspection from Jefferson County Health Dept.
Existing permitted sign is being replaced.
Applicant was approved for a Conditional Use Permit in 2002 for the existing
agritainment business (CU2002-01). The dwelling was permitted in 1993. Two
additional buildings associated with the conditional use were permitted in 2002
(including a 1,000 gallon septic tank) and 2011 (open sided pole barn – kids play area).

EXISTING CONDITIONS:
The property owners live full-time on the site of the conditional use agritainment farm business. There are three
sizeable buildings and many small buildings and shelters clustered around the site. The site is mostly open field with
either grass or crops. The southern portion of the property along the Kansas River is planted with rows of trees to
help stabilize the steep bank. The eastern portion of the property along Prairie Creek has a large wooded buffer
along which tables, benches and pallets are currently stored. Other farm equipment and vehicles such as wagons
are stored around the site, along with play structures and games. Hay bales are also used for entertainment
activities. See site images included in a brief visual tour attached. There is lighting for the grass parking areas, main
circulation routes, gathering areas and play structures.

1
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APPLICATION HIGHLIGHTS:
Some new terms that have become associated with farms include agritourism (attracting visitors to a farm,
potentially including lodging or hospitality services), agritainment (farm-based public entertainment), and
agrieducation (providing educational experiences for visitors). These terms are often interchangeable. The Starr’s
are focused on their mission to provide the public with fun on-farm activities, which are generally termed as farmbased entertainment i.e. agritainment such as hayrides, corn mazes, harvest festivals, children’s games and
discovery areas, and concessions. They also support educational experiences.
This request is for an amended development plan for an existing Conditional Use. The applicants have plans for
new entertainment-related improvements to enhance the visitor experience. Jefferson County has only partial
views of the current approved Development Plan on file (see application CU2002/01 attached). Therefore, an
amended development plan is needed to clarify what will be located on the site once applicable floodplain
development permits and buildings permits are obtained. The applicant is not filing for additional uses on-site that
are unrelated to the agritainment use. All elements proposed are within the expected scope of an agritainment
use. The applicant is not increasing the land area designated for the Conditional Use. See attached Development
Plan and narrative for details.
Anything that is not a minor adjustment to an approved Development Plan is to be submitted to and approved by
the Planning Commission and Governing Body. Section 16-105 states that “At no time shall the Conditional Use
previously approved be subject to disapproval. The only issue in said review shall be the requested revisions to
the previously approved Development Plan.” The Planning Commission is being asked to render a
recommendation regarding approval of an amended Development Plan for this existing Conditional Use.
Zoning Summary:
Article 16 of the Zoning Regulations provide guidance for approval of Development Plans. The regulations state that
prescribed regulations pertaining to height, open space, setbacks, parking, loading and signs may be adjusted or
modified so that the property in question may be developed in a reasonable manner and, at the same time, will not
be detrimental to the public welfare and interests of the community, but in keeping with the general intent and
spirit of these regulations. These adjustments or modifications may be made as an amendment to a previously
approved Development Plan.
Per Section 16-104, in the process of reviewing any Development Plan, the Planning Commission and/or Governing
Body may provide approval of the Development Plan conditioned upon certain limitations or restrictions deemed
necessary to protect the public interest and surrounding properties, including, if any, the following:
1. Limitations on the type, illumination and appearance of any signs or advertising structures.
2. Direction and location of outdoor lighting.
3. Arrangement and location of off-street parking and off-street loading spaces.
4. The type of paving, landscaping, fencing, screening and other such features.
5. Limitations on structural alterations to existing buildings.
6. Prohibition of use or construction of any structure to be used for a single-family dwelling, including a
manufactured home.
7. Plans for control or elimination of smoke, dust, gas, noise or vibration caused by the proposed use.
8. Waiver of any standards, requirements or depiction of information required by this Article when requested
by the applicant and shown to be unnecessary as applied to the specific case in question.
2
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9. Such other conditions and/or limitations that are deemed necessary.
Staff recommendations for these elements are presented in the staff analysis section of this report.
CONSISTENCY WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
This analysis relates to whether the amended development plan associated with this conditional use is consistent
with the Comprehensive Plan.
Chapter 3 of the Jefferson County Comprehensive Plan encourages support of the agricultural business sector to
help bolster the local economy and maintain choices for farmers. The proposed improvements support agriculturerelated retail and accommodating the public to a safe experience in a rural agricultural setting. The improvements
are consistent with the goal to support tourist destinations in all areas of the County.
Chapter 5 Site Plan Review guidelines specify an intent to promote growth in the countryside that is compatible
with rural environments. It is suggested that sites be developed in a manner that balances landowner’s rights to
use their land with the corresponding rights of abutting and neighboring landowners to live without undue
disturbances such as noise, smoke, fumes, dust, odor, glare, and stormwater runoff. Other concerns include safety
for vehicular and pedestrian movement within the site and on adjacent roadways, adequacy of waste disposal
methods, protection of natural environmental features, and maintaining the stability of the rural environment by
promoting compatible development. Any staff concerns with the proposed amended Development Plan are
addressed in the recommended conditions of approval under Staff Analysis. Please be advised that Jefferson County
does not currently have nuisance regulations related to noise (i.e. a Noise Ordinance).
The subject parcel is not within a designated commercial/industrial area and does not contain any areas of known
sensitive habitat or natural features/cultural attributes per the Comprehensive Plan. The subject parcel is within a
designated Agricultural Enhancement Area. The Land Evaluation and Site Assessment System (LESA) is not
applicable at this time as it is intended to guide decisions that allow the conversion of farmland to non-agricultural
uses. The LESA analysis was performed at time of approval of the original Conditional Use and was thus considered
as a decision factor at that time. The site retains Agricultural zoning and is still used for agricultural purposes along
with the entertainment use.
INFRASTRUCTURE AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS:
The Conditional Use is accessed via an existing driveway that meets Road Department standards. Water supply is
provided by two wells. The Health Department is completing field research on this use at time of publication of the
staff report and a report is anticipated to be available by the Planning Commission meeting.
STAFF ANALYSIS - APPLICATION:
All required application materials have been received, except the outstanding communication from the Health
Department, and the Development Plan includes all required information. The applicable performance standards
for the AG district and for Conditional Uses have been met. Any recommended conditions of approval in this
section are intended to address impacts that go above and beyond that which is typical in a rural environment to
promote compatible development. In other words, agricultural settings are not expected to be free of noise and
dust (whether arising from travel along gravel roads or from farmers tilling adjacent fields), but impacts that rise
above the typical should be mitigated to a reasonable extent.
3
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Floodplain Development: The site is quite level and entirely within the floodplain. During the floodplain
development permit approval process, finished floor elevations of all buildings and structures will be verified. Staff
recommends a condition of approval for the amended Development Plan that “the applicant shall successfully
obtain all applicable Federal, State and Local permits, including Health Department permits, for all activities,
buildings, structures and development within the Special Flood Hazard Areas, and occupancy/use of buildings,
structures and development shall only commence upon approval of a final post-construction inspection and issuance
of a certificate of occupancy”.
Signs: Any signs will need a separate permit and will be expected to comply with regulations. No additional
limitations are deemed necessary.
Outdoor lighting: Lighting is standard security type lighting with fixtures that face inward on the property. Staff
recommends a condition of approval that “any future outdoor electrical lighting for this use shall be minimized to
the scale, location and duration of use strictly necessary to ensure public safety, with a customary intensity of
illumination for rural areas, and meeting the following requirements:
a. Mounting height not to exceed 25’
b. Designed and located to prohibit direct light or glare onto any adjacent property and to minimize
uplighting.”
Parking: Using the overall dimensions of the temporary grass parking areas shown on the plan, a total of 855 cars
could potentially be accommodated on-site. That assumes 10’ x 20’ parking spaces (regulations call for 9’ x 19’
spaces) and 25’ wide two-way drive aisles. The applicant has not conducted an hourly traffic count for events, but
this information indicates that there is ample area designated for on-site parking for this use. The regulations offer
no guidance for a particular minimum parking requirement for a similar use. Staff recommends a condition of
approval that “all parking associated with this use shall be accommodated on-site, and parking will be managed so
that the designated parking areas are maintained in continuous vegetated cover and shall not contribute to
increased runoff”.
Landscaping and screening: Staff recommends a condition of approval that “to further low impact development,
stormwater management and erosion control benefits, the applicant shall retain and prevent damage to or
replace/improve the existing tree cover as shown on the Development Plan”.
Noise: Staff recommends a condition of approval that “any sources of amplified sound shall be buffered and
directed away from adjacent parcels so as to be minimally detectable at the property boundaries, and fireworks
shall not be used past 10 pm”.
Dust: Staff recommends a condition of approval that “the applicant shall utilize County-approved dust control
measures on roadways within 1/3 mile of the property to help mitigate dust associated with high traffic events”.
Sanitation: Additional conditions of approval may be offered for your consideration pending the findings of the
Health Department site visit.
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ATTACHMENTS:
A. Application/Development Plan and Applicant Statement of Intent
B. Application and approvals from Conditional Use 2002-01
C. Aerial site view
D. Image tour
E. Notification map and letter
F. Zoning map
G. Floodplain map
H. Ag Enhancement Map
I. Rural Water District letter
J. Jefferson County Road and Bridge letter
K. Jefferson County Sheriff communication
ACTIONS:
The Planning Commission shall prepare a recommendation to do one of the following:
1. Approve the amended Development Plan for CU2002-01 as proposed.
2. Approve the amended Development Plan for CU2002-01 with conditions or stated modifications to the
Development Plan as deemed necessary to carry out the spirit and intent of the applicable regulations.
3. Deny the amended development plan application for CU2002-01 with findings of fact.
4. Continue the application to allow further analysis.
EFFECT OF DECISION:
The applicant may proceed with construction based on the entire Development Plan, or may elect to develop the
property in successive phases. The applicant may submit the Development Plan separately for the first and each
successive phase of construction, or for all of the project with a depiction of the phasing sequence; however, all
Conditional Uses approved with a Development Plan shall have construction begun within one (1) year of said
approval by the Governing Body. The applicant may request a one (1) year extension of this time restriction by
submitting a request in writing to the Governing Body stating the reasons construction has not begun and at what
time construction is expected to begin. If the Governing Body agrees, the one (1) year extension may be granted
one time but shall not be granted for any longer period.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the amended Development Plan DP2021-01 for CU2002-01 for property located at
5991 17th St with recommended conditions as shown in the recommended motion.
Recommended motion:
After review of application DP2021-01, an amended Development Plan for CU2002-01 for property located at 5991
17th St, Grantville, KS, and staff report dated April 26, 2021, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the
application with the following conditions:
1. It is understood that the improvements related to this existing Conditional Use may proceed to be
developed in phases as yet undetermined, as shown on the Development Plan, and subject to all other
conditions of approval.
2. The applicant shall successfully obtain all applicable Federal, State and Local permits, including Health
Department permits, for all activities, buildings, structures and development within the Special Flood
5
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3.

4.

5.

6.
7.

Hazard Areas, and occupancy/use of buildings, structures and development shall only commence upon
approval of a final post-construction inspection and issuance of a certificate of occupancy.
Any future outdoor electrical lighting for this use shall be minimized to the scale, location and duration of
use strictly necessary to ensure public safety, with a customary intensity of illumination for rural areas, and
meeting the following requirements:
a. Mounting height not to exceed 25’
b. Designed and located to prohibit direct light or glare onto any adjacent property and to minimize
uplighting.
All parking associated with this use shall be accommodated on-site, and parking will be managed so that
the designated parking areas are maintained in continuous vegetated cover and shall not contribute to
increased runoff.
To further low impact development, stormwater management and erosion control benefits, the applicant
shall retain and prevent damage to or replace/improve the existing tree cover as shown on the
Development Plan.
Any sources of amplified sound shall be buffered and directed away from adjacent parcels so as to be
minimally detectable at the property boundaries, and fireworks shall not be used past 10 pm.
The applicant shall utilize County-approved dust control measures on roadways within one-third mile of the
property to help mitigate dust associated with high traffic events.
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^ Plannine & Zonine Department
Jefferson County Courthouse

Phone: (785) 403-0000
Toll Free: (844) 679-0748
Fax: (785) 403-0783

www.jfcountyks.com/planningandzonmg

P.O. Box 628
Oskaloosa, Kansas 66066

APPLICATION FORAREZONING REQUEST, CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT, AND/OR DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT
This form must be completed and filed at the Office of the Zoning Administrator in accordance with directions on the

accompanying instruction sheet. AN INCOMPLETE APPLICATION WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED
1. Name of ALL Applicant(s)/ Owner(s) and/or Agent(s). (Use separate sheet if necessary)

i

Applicant/ OwnerGrdr^j P.= ^T'-A^t i "3^1^/^^ ^^Agent:
Address: Sclcff H^ Sjira/vt-u^c/
City

^

Address:

.O^Y^C--^
State

^^^
Zip

City

Zip

State

Phone: (7^- )^%-?/^^) 7^5-- ^-Y -72^ ^ (^^ phone:
2. The Applicant hereby requests:
D A change of zoning from:.

to

D A Conditional Use for the following:.
Development Plan Amendment for the following existing CUP: C ^ 2-^<>?-^

3. This property address is: 5~^?/ /7^ S- Q^^\^ 1^ ^Y^^
The property is legally described as (Lot and Block OR Metes and Bounds):^ r^c-<-[ 1^> ^ V ^i^ / ^>^ \

Tii, 9.011 t^^ 3:5"3ui-

The general location is (use appropriate section):

A. At the (NW) (NE) (SW) (SE) comer of.

and

B. On the (N) (S) (E) (W) side of_ SQ^II

^JL^l^be^ />fi ^

(StreefRoad)i

'c-c^rcyvc/

-,or

(Street/Road)

(Street/Road)

(Street/Road)

^nd
,(Street/R^a<;

4. Please attach a statement of intent. (Conditional Use or Development Plan Applicants, including Amendments)
I (We), the applicant(s), acknowledge receipt of the instruction sheet explaining the method of submitting this
application. I (We) realize that this^pplication cannot be processed unless it is completely filled in, submitted with
all relevant and^or^fequest^d-lloc^entation and accompanied by the appropriate fee.

OR Authorized Agent:

Owi/er:

'^^
Owner6 / A^/ ^^
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i

OR Authorized Agent:
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Statement of Intent
It is the intent of Gary’s Berries (still) to use our property for the sell and resell of
produce and agritainment. Along with this our goals are to promote Family values
and make Gary’s Berries a place where Family Traditions Grow, and help in the
education of Children. We shall maintain the agriculture theme behind our place
of business.
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Statement of Value
Gary’s Berries, what is the value to the community?
• We employee 100+ people throughout the year whom become part of our
family.
o Many of these family members are between 14-18 years old.
o Some have never had a job before.
o We teach life skills.
 How to interact with their peers.
 To look people in the eye when speaking.
 To say “My Pleasure” when thanked.
• I know this works because our educators have expressed
to me that these young adults go back to school and
continue to say “My Pleasure”.
 We now have some of these same young adults coming back
and bringing their children to the farm and telling stories of the
hard work and fun they had while working here.
 How to use TOOLS.
 How to repair things.
 We empower them to make decisions
• To succeed and fail.
o We employ people with many different backgrounds and life
experiences.
o Our payroll is over $150,000 a year
 Much of this money is spent here in Jefferson County.
• Generated over $50,000 in sales tax.
• Benevolent:
o The Topeka Rescue Mission is invited out each year
o The boys and girls clubs
o The Salvation Army
o Many other organization at no cost.
• Future Goal:
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o To create a Foundation and use profits form the Christmas light show
and help feed families
• Gary’s Berries is a place where families can come and feel safe.
o Can see farm animals
o Learn different experiences besides watching T.V. or and Ipad.
o We provide experiences to non rural families that those in the
farming community enjoy daily
• It has allowed us to raise 4 children on this farm that are successful in their
own careers.
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Justification
1. What use is to be made of the area in question?
Currently we are an agritainment business. We wish to continue with

all the approved activities from our previous zoning approval. Listed
below by category are both past and future attractions:
2. Future Structures

Paint Ball Target
Tilt House
Ropes Course

Combine Slipper Slide
New Exit Building
Mothers BreastfeedingArea
Other items related to agritainment Business
Ideas that come from the Maize Group
Additional Restrooms
Additional Concession Area
3. Animal Attractions

Pony Rides
Bird House for Humans

Bird Feeding Cage
Honey-Bee Display

Pig Races
Goat Mountain

Petting Zoo
Bunnyville
Chicken Coop
4. Children's Games/Attractions

Bubble Area

Sand Pit
Swings
Human Foosball
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Duck Races
Bean Bag Forest

Gaga Ball
Roller Ball
Pumpkin Head
Giant Pumpkin
Ball Toss
KonkThe Crow
Tiny Tot Area

Skeet Ball
Basketball
Tether Ball

Ladder Golf
Barnyard Tie Tac Toe
Tire Swings
Corn Hole
Giant Jenga
Giant Legos
Steer Roping
Tug of War
Tractor Pull (human powered with rope attached to tractor)
Haybale Pull (human powered with rope attached to pallet)
5. Discovery Area

Gemstone Mining
Educational Walkway
Farm Implement Education Walkway
6. Entertainment
Stage for plays, musician, and performers
7. Attractions

Apple Cannons
Jumping Pillows
Corn Pit
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Teepee

Slides
Jungle Gym

Walk Through Light Show
Fireworks
Corn Maize
Sunflowers

Zinnias
Haybalesto climb
Kansas Cyclone

Giant Porch Swing
Giant Rocking Chair
Campfires
8. Events

Fall
Christmas
Valentines
Easter

Butterflies and Balloons
Fourth of July

9. Give some factual data showing need for the proposed use in the area to
be served.

10.Will it be necessary to build a new structure?
• Yes
i. We will need a new exit building to the east of our house. Size

will be 40x100x12 with 12 foot overhang on the south side.
And a 12x12 area for the exit doors on the north side. We are

currently using a tent. Our items for sell are getting dirty and
we can't store food in it overnight because of animals.

ii. We have added many small shacks on the farm that are
temporary and on skids that can be moved to a different
locations.
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ill. Most all of the small building are designed to be movable.
iv. We will be needing additional building in the future currently
ideal size would be in the 40x 80 foot range or bigger. Because
of the interest of the community we are growing.

11.What are qualities are there about the property in question, other that
ownership that make it more feasible to upgrade the zoning rather than
attempt to acquire property presently zoned for the type of use
proposed?
12.Will the proposed use increase traffic in the area? If so, will an increase in
traffic be detrimental to the adjoining properties:
13.How will the surrounding property values be maintained or increase?
Show the basis for your assumptions in detail.
14.1s the area presently served by a similar type zone and use?
15.What physical qualities are there about the property in question which
prohibits a less intense use? Start what these might be.
16. How will the proposed use increase or maintain health, safety, morals,
order, convenience, prosperity, or general welfare neighborhood?
17.

Most of these questions (3-10) are answered in the previous zoning plan
attached.
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Development Plan
• Restroom Facilities:
o There are 11 fully functional restrooms on the farm. We have
scheduled crews to clean them hourly. We use out houses in far
reaching parts of the farm.
o We believe in the future will we need to build additional restroom
facilities.
o We will need an area for nursing mothers. 12 x 10 approximately
o
• Parking
o Parking will now encompass all of the north side of the property 300
feet to the south of the gravel road. Cars park facing north and south
in rows. 700-800 cars can park in this area.
• Exit Building
o This is a new building currently planned to be 40x100x12 or a little
less. It will have a 12 foot overhang on the south 100 foot side. On
the north side a 12x12 area enclosed for an exit to reduce wind flow.
It will have concrete floors. Currently we are looking at a post frame
or Red iron building depending who we can get to build the building.
Because of COVID we are having trouble getting a builder to commit.
• Buildings in Future
o More shacks. These are small buildings on skids that are moveable
(12X20) is currently the largest. Used for concessions Built Stong.
o Additional sales barn or animal Barn or educational barn. Generally
40x80 foot one on the east and one on the west of the house.
• Insurance
 Liability
• $2 million umbrella
 Workers comp
 Hail wind
 Etc.
• Neighbors
o We have not received any complaints from our neighbors. Many of
them have worked for us in the past.

Page 64 of 156

• Community Service
o We provide free admittance to the Salvation Army, Boys and Girls
Club, Topeka Rescue Mission and feed them when they come out.
We provide free passes for the Sheriff’s office to use and distribute
for community service and goodwill.
• Sponsors
o This past year we have had several sponsors:
 McDonalds
 Coke
 Tarwater’s

• Alcohol
o We do not allow
• Animals
o Chickens
o Goats
o Pigs
o Rabbits
o Petting zoo
• Security
o We have our own personal security at all times
o In addition on Friday and Saturday Nights we hire 3 off duty Sheriff’s
officers. Jeff Has given permission to do so.
o We also have Jefferson County EMT’s.
o Julie Starr is an RN along with our daughter-in-law Allision Reid
o We also have off duty Sheriff’s officers working in different capacities
on the farm most of the time.
• Festivals
o Currently we do a Fall Festival
o We are expanding into Christmas Festival this year.
 Christmas Trees
 Walk thru light show
o We would like the option to expand into more Family Festivals as we
see need
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•

•

•

•

•
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 Easter, Fourth of July, Mother Day, Etc
Hours of Operation
o Could be:
 Monday through Sunday 9 AM – 10PM
o Normally
 Sunday 10 am – 6pm normal and possibly as late as 10pm
 Saturday 9am – 10pm
 Friday 4pm-10 pm
 During the week school groups 8am-3pm
 During the week we have groups form 5-10pm
Employees
o Our employees become family and many come back many years. We
have the opportunity to share Christ with many of our family
members. We believe that by working here you can effect someone’s
life in a positive way.
Lighting
o Orange halide vapor lights are used to provide security and safety of
our customers Most all lights are 150 watt farm lights with four being
a 400 watt which face to the south and two face to the north.
Fire Protection
o We have two wells. One is a hundred gallons a minute and the other
is a thousand gallons minute. We purchased a fire truck from the
Grantville fire department. It holds 1600 gallons It is set up for brush
fires and water the road. It also has a reel hose on it. The Grantville
Fire Department is only 3 miles away. We only allow smoking in one
area of the farm. We keep things mowed and free of debris.
o

JEFFERSON
COUNTV
PLANNING &
ZONING

Memo
To; File
From: Donna

CC: Jennifer
Date; 10/2/2006
Re: CU2002/1 Agritainment (Agriculture/Entertainment) Farm Business

Went out to Gary's Berries September 27, 2006 to verify compliance on the conditional
use permit. Area was set up for the Fall Festival at the facility. Pictures 012-019 verify
the facility is in compliance. Therefore, in three years I will conduct a review according
to the conditional use permit.
Donna
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Gary Starr CU2002/1 - Picture 012 taken 09/27/06

Gary Starr CU2002/1 - Picture 013 taken 09/27/06
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Gary Starr CU2002/1 -Picture 014 taken 09/27/06

Gary Starr CU2002/1 - Picture 015 taken 09/27/06
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Gary Starr CU2002/1 -Picture 016 taken 09/27/06

Gary Starr CU200^1 - Picture 017 taken 09/27/06
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Gary Starr CU2002/1 - Picture 018 taken 09/27/06

Gary Starr CU2002/1 - Picture 019 taken 09/27/06
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Jefferson County Planning & Zoning
Department
P 0 Box 628
Oskaloosa,KS 66066
EIoise Tichenor - Zoning Administrator Toll Free 1-877-278-4118

Fax # (785) 863-3325 Phone # (785) 863-2241

August 25, 2006

Julie and Gary Starr
5991 17th Street
Grantville,KS 66429
Re: Compliance and Conditional Use Permit Review
Record Owners of Property: Julie A. & Gary D. Starr

Property Site Address: 5991 17th Street, Grantville, KS 66429
Legal Description: A part of Lot C of Lot 2 of Survey 13 of the Kaw Half Breed
Indian Lands, in Township 1 1 South, Range 17 East of the 6 P.M., in Jefferson County,
Kansas.

Dear Mr. & Mrs. Starr:
Our office has scheduled a compliance review on Conditional Use Permit

CU2002/1 issued to you March 18, 2002. A copy of the Conditional Use Permit and its
conditions are enclosed

This office would like to solicit your cooperation by setting up a site visit of the
conditional use area on Friday September 22, 2006 at 10:00 a.m. Please find for your
information enclosed copies of the referenced conditional use permit.
Please call me to confirm if this time will work for you. Please contact me at
(785) 863-2241 or toll free (877) 278-4118. Our office hours are 8:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m.
on Monday and 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Tuesday through Friday.
Sincerely,

Donria Shimmin
Building Compliance Officer
/dms
Enclosures
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Jefferson County, Kansas
Board of County Commissioners

CONDITIONAL USE PERMTT
WHEREAS IT APPEARS that under the provisions of Article 17 of the Jefiferson
County Zoning Regulations, the application of Gary D. and Julie A. Starr for a Conditional Use
Permit for an Agritainment (Agnculture/Entertainment) Farm Business on property described as:
A part of Lot C of Lot 2 of Survey 13 of the Kaw Half Breed Indian Lands, in Township 11
South, Range 17 East of the 6th P.M., in Jefferson County, Kansas, described as fpUows:

Beginning at the Northwest comer of said Lot C of said Lot 2 of said Survey 13; thence East
along the North line of said Lot C to the "Colley Ditch"; thence Southedy along the said "Colley
Ditch" to the North bank of the Kansas River, thence Northwesteriy along the North bank of said
Kansas River to the Southwest comer of said Lot C; thence North along the West line of said Lot
C to the place of beginning; all according to survey dated January 22,1902, by E. E. dark,
County Surveyor, and recorded in Book 167, Page 551, of records of Register of Deeds of
Jefferson County, Kansas and Lot B of Lot 2 of Survey 13 of the Kaw Half Breed Indian Lands,
in Township 11 South, Range 17 East of the 6th P.M., in Jefferson County, Kansas, described ay

follows: Beginning at the Southeast comer of Lot A of Lot 2 of said Survey 13 (said pomt also<y
being the Southwest comer of Lot B of Lot 2 of said Survey 13); thence North long the Wesflme
of said Lot B 19.52 chains, more or less, to the Northwest comer of said Lot B; thence East ribng
the North line of said Lot B 12.49 chains, more or less, to the Northeast comer of said Lot B;
thence South along the East line of said Lot B to the North bank of the Kansas River; thence
Northwesterly along the North bank of said Kansas River to the place of beginning; all according
to the survey dated January 22,1902, by E. E. dark. County Surveyor, and recorded in Book

167, page 551, of records of Register of Deeds of Jefferson County, Kansas. Record Owners of
Property: GaryD.andJulieA.Starr. ?^^

-It was referred by the JeffersonCounty Regional Planning Commission to the JefifersonGounty^^
Board of County Commissioners on the 26th day ofFebmary, 2002. The report of said Planning
Commission was to approve the application for a Conditional Use Permit for an Agntainment
Farm Business with the following condition:
1. A review in one year and then every three years.

AND WHEREAS, after due consideration, the Board of County Commissioners of Jefferson
County, Kansas, decided that said Permit should be Approved with this condition:
!• A review in one year and then every^three years. . < ^^ s ^ .. .^^N^-

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that on this 18th day of March, 2002, that a
Conditional Use Permit for an Agritainment Farm Business be approved on the above described
property with the condition as stated above.
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The Board of County Commissioners of Jefferson County met in regular session on
Monday March 18, 2002. Present were Chairman Travis Oliver, Vice-Chairman George
Mathews, Francis Grollmes, member and County Clerk, Linda Buttron.
The Board signed tax abatements orders #23120-#23141.
The minutes of March 11, 2002 were read and approved.
The Board signed a Notice to the Township Board for a cereal malt beverage license for
Port Perry at 6768 50th St. Meriden.
Susan Newell, 911 Communications met with the Board. Susan updated the Board on the
replacement of a repeater in the County.
The Board signed a contract with Southwestern Bell for the purchase of electronic
equipment for the fiber project.
The Board signed an agreement for service with Ruralnetworks, LLC. The agreement
provides for the T1 connection for Jefferson County.
Ron Karn, Road and Bridge met with the Board. Ron discussed the Northeast Kansas
Highway Officials meeting on April 3 in Lawrence. Ron discussed the progress on the
74th street and 27th street projects. The Board discussed their recent meeting with
Secretary Carlson of KDOT with Ron. Travis moved to go into executive session for 5
minutes to discuss non-elected personnel. Francis seconded. George agreed. A vote was
taken. All voted in favor. The Board recessed at 1:50 p.m. The Board reconvened at
1:55 p.m. The chairman announced that no binding action was taken during executive
session.
Mark Roberts, Jail Administrator met with the Board. Mark asked for an executive
session to discuss non-elected personnel. Francis moved that the Board go into executive
session for 5 minutes to discuss non-elected personnel. George seconded. Travis
agreed. A vote was taken. All voted in favor. The Board recessed at 1:58 p.m. The
Board reconvened at 2:03 p.m. The chairman announced that no binding action was
taken during executive session.
Bob Metzger, Ozawkie met with the Board. Bob asked about Lakewood Hills dumping
sewage into a pond on his property. Eileen Filbert, Health Department arrived. The
Board asked Eileen to address the issue. Eileen will attempt to assist Mr. Metzger
resolve this problem.
Bob Abel, Auxiliary Services met with the Board. The Board signed purchase card
requests for changes. Bob discussed the purchase of an eight-foot weed wiper. The
equipment will be used as a rental item for the department. The Board approved the
purchase. Bob also discussed the purchase of computer equipment for Noxious Weed
and Auxiliary Services. The Board approved the purchase. Bob asked the Board for
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their support for a tri-county symposium on seresa lespediza. It would be held in August
at the Shawnee County State Lake and sponsored by Jefferson, Jackson and Shawnee
counties. The Board indicated that they would support the symposium.
The Board signed sewer district vouchers and checks.
Eloise Tichenor, Planning & Zoning met with the Board. Eloise presented a request for a
conditional use permit by Gary D. & Julie A. Starr for an agri-entertainment farm
business at the site of his current business. Gary Starr spoke in favor of the request. No
one spoke in opposition to the request. Francis moved that the request be approved with
the conditions set out by the planning commission. George seconded. Travis agreed. A
vote was taken. All voted in favor. The next case is a request from Brayden and Robin
Jernberg for rezoning of 30 acres of agricultural land to rural residential. The property is
located in Section 24, Township 9, Range 16. No one spoke in favor of or in opposition
to the request. George moved that the request be approved. Francis seconded. Travis
agreed. A vote was taken. All voted in favor. Also presented was a request for rezoning
of 12 acres in Section 7, Township 9, Range 20. Jerome and Margaret Kramer made the
request. They want to rezone the property as rural residential. Margaret Kramer spoke
in favor of the request. No one spoke in opposition to the request. Francis moved to
approve the request. George seconded. Travis agreed. All voted in favor. Motion
carried. A request for rezoning of 30 acres was made by James Cool. He wants to change
the zoning from agricultural to rural residential in Section 33, Township 10, Range 17.
James Cool spoke in favor of the request. No one spoke in opposition. George moved
that the request be approved. Francis seconded. All voted in favor. Motion carried.
Eloise Tichenor and Ron Karn met with the Board. Also present was Jim Cox. They
discussed the interior road in Cox subdivision. Mr. Cox is requesting that the Board
agree to allow him to proceed with Phase 1 of the road development. The proposed
phase is shorter than the original length agreed upon by the Commission. He would like
to complete the project in three phases instead of two. The Board discussed the issue.
The Board took the matter under consideration for one week.
Francis moved that the Board go into executive session for 15 minutes to discuss
attorney-client privilege. George seconded. All voted in favor. The Board recessed at
4:15 p.m. The Board reconvened at 4:30 p.m. The chairman announced that no binding
action was taken during executive session.
Patrick Barnes, Lakeshore Estates resident met with the Board. Patrick presented a
petition signed by the residents of Lakeshore Estates regarding phone calls made to the
Sheriff by Mike Higgins, also a Lakeshore Estates resident. Patrick stated that the
residents are fed up with Mr. Higgins making false reports to the Sheriff. Four other
residents of Lakeshore Estates were also present.
Roger Coleman, Oskaloosa met with the Board. Roger asked that the road in front of
their house not be mowed and the ditch not be cleaned. There are growing native grass
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and wildflowers in that area. Roger asked that the Board talk to the Road and Bridge
department about this issue.
There being no further business to come before the Board they adjourned to meet again
on March 25, 2002.
ATTEST: /s/Linda M. Buttron, County Clerk /s/Travis Oliver, Chairman
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Jefferson County Planning and Zoning
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa, Kansas 66066 785-863-2241

February 28, 2002

Gary & Julie Starr
5991 17th St.
Grantville, Ks. 66429
Mr. & Mrs. Starr:

In compliance with the Zoning Regulations of Jefferson County, Kansas, the
Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission held a public hearing on February 26th,
2002, pertaining to Request CU2002/1 . At that time, the Planning Commission voted to
recommend approval of the Conditional Use to change the land use to an Agritamment
Farm Business on property described as: Approximately 35 acres located in a part of Lot
C of Lot 2 Survey 13 of the Kaw Half Breed Indian Lands and Lot B of Lot 2 of Survey
13 of the Kaw Half Breed Indian Lands, Township US, Range 17E of the 6th P.M.,
Jefferson County, Kansas. Record Owners of Property: Gary & Julie Starr.

In accordance with the State Statutes, rezoning requests will be forwarded to the
Board of County Commissioners for final disposition on Monday, March 18th, 2002, at
3:30 p.m., in Commissioner's chambers at which tune you may appear in person.

As a reminder you must keep your Conditional Use Sign posted until the final
vote on your request by the Board of County Commissioners on Monday, March 18th,

2002. After that date you may take it down, return it to the Auxiliary Services Buildmg
and bring in your sign check sheet to the Planning and Zoning office and we will return
your $25 deposit on the sign.

Sincerel

Eloise Tichenor
Planning & Zoning Administrator
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Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission
Oskaloosa, Kansas 66066

Minutes of Meeting
Meeting of February 26, 2002
(Minutes tape recorded)
Present: Patrick Reed, Chairman; Shirley Strickler, Vice Chair; Darrell Hammond, David
Hemme, Robb Hensleigh, Bret Frakes and Bill Rhodes, members; Eloise Tichenor, Zoning
Administrator, and Debbie Kmse, Zoning Clerk
Absent:
Meeting was called to order at 1:30 P.M. by Chairman, Patrick Reed

ITEM 1. REQUEST CU2002/1 by Gary D. and Julie A. Starr for a Conditional Use Permit for
an Agritainment Farm Business on property described as: Approximately 35 acres located in a

part of Lot C of Lot 2 of Survey 13 of the Kaw Half Breed Indian Lands, in Township 1 1 South,
Range 17 East and Lot B of Lot 2 of Survey 13 of the Kaw Half Breed Indian Lands, in
Township 11 South, Range 17 East of the 6th P.M., Jefferson County Kansas. Record Owners of
Property: Gary D. and Julie A Starr.

The Zoning Administrator stated the property lies just North of the Kansas River. It is located
South of 24 Highway along 17th Street between Decatur Road and Douglas Road. It has
floodplain area involved. All of the acreage to the North involves the 100 year floodplain and the
Southern portion lies in the floodway. Building activity can occur in the 100 year floodplain if
certain requirements are met, but no building can occur in the floodway. Mr. Starr is not
proposing any structure in the floodway. Mr. Starr has a detailed map that has every structure or
future structure on it. Mr. Starr has two wells for water supply. Ron Kam, Road and Bridge
Superintendent has checked the property for usage of the current access points as well as the
potential access points.- Ron did not see any problems with the access points.
Mr. Starr presented letters from three neighbors which stated they supported his business and
future expansion of Gary's Berries. The Zoning Administrator kept the letters for the file. Mr.
Starr stated he had been miming his business for two years. He had previously discussed a
Conditional Use Permit with June Huston, former Zoning Administrator, when he put in the corn
maze several years ago and she stated they could wait and see how it expanded and then make a
later decision on whether or not to require a Conditional Use Permit. Mr. Starr had recently
visited with Eloise Tichenor, current Zoning Administrator, and they agreed with the current
expansions, and future plans for development a Conditional Use Permit was needed. Mr. Starr
stated they have the corn maze, hay rack rides, hay bales to play on and live music among other
activities. There is no alcohol allowed on the property. Mr. Starr asked the Planning Commission
to take a look at the detailed plan he had drawn for them. He then stated he could answer any
questions they had or he could tell them a little about the Agritainment business. Pat asked him to
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go over what was already there as an established business. Mr. Starr stated (points to the detailed
map of Gary's Berries) we have a pump house, horse pen, two tents, corn maze, eventually he
would like to build another building. Our concessions are served out of the tents. He showed
where the bon fire is positioned and explained the terrain of the area. There are helicopter rides
and the area is fenced. He stated that safety is one of his primary concerns for the business. There
are two large hay bales in a sand pit for the kids to play on. We have two running water
restrooms, along with four out houses. There is a five acre corn maze, which is netted and all

participants are given flashlights for the evening tour. The areas all have lighting including the
pumpkin patch. The lighting does not bother the neighbors. There are church groups that come
out and enjoy the facilities. This year they are planning on having the stage rented from the
Oskaloosa Chamber of Commerce for music and entertainment. Mr. Brown and Wayne Smith are
neighbors and their only concern was the dust. When it is dry, the dust increases. We have come
up with a solution. We have talked to Ron Kam about the situation and it was suggested to spray
water to dampen the road. He has secured a water tank and plans on doing this on Saturday
mornings. The business is community oriented. We have the Ronald McDonald House, Salvation
Army and the Boys & Girls Club come out. We feel the community supports us, so we should
give back to the community. We like to do activities for different organizations in Jefferson
County and surrounding areas. We have had a lot of support and positive response from the
schools that tour our facility. I wear a yellow hat that says Gary's Berries on it. That is my
identification. When I go into a store somewhere and a little kid will recognize me from a class
tour and give me a hug, that is very rewarding as a business owner. Our slogan is "Come to
Gary's Berries where family traditions grow." That is what we try to focus on at Gary's Berries.
We have major sponsors such as Dr. Pepper, Falley's, and McDonald's. We have security persons

we call "corn cops". They are off duty sheriff officers that patrol the parking lots for us Friday and
Saturday nights. They also patrol the corn maze. There is no parking allowed along the county
road. Our hours are Saturday 10a.m. -llp.m., Sunday 1p.m. -6p.m., Tues - Thurs 4p.rn.-10p.rn.,

Fridays 4p.rn.-l 1p.m. The rest is by appointment. During the week are the school tours. We work
well with the other business in the area, such as Rees Fruit Farm. We are very compatible with
them. We buy apple cider from them and they buy pumpkins and strawberries from us. We have a
nurse on duty every weekend just in case something comes up. Safety is my number one concern.
We take a lot of pictures of the facility to see if there is a potential for safety concerns. For
example we have rails on the hay wagons and a back step for people to get on and off the
wagons. Anyone driving a tractor takes a tractor safety course before they can drive on the farm.

Pat asked about the floodplain area and how he would go about building it in the floodplain area?
The Zoning Administrator stated that he would need to get a certified engineer or surveyor to
shoot a elevation as the area exists presently and he would have to build one foot above the
recommended elevation. After the floor is poured he would need to have another elevation shot
and certificate stating the building is one foot above the required elevation.
Pat also wanted to know about the lighting and which direction it was directed toward. Mr. Starr
stated it is all directed toward the center of the facility. Pat wanted to state that the plan submitted
was great. Pat was concerned with the 7 a.m. harvesting of the strawberries. How did the

neighbors feel about that? Mr. Starr stated that he had been doing this since 1993. There is only
one house near the field, and no one has complained. The actual fall festival is not open until 10 in
the morning. Hay rack rides for school tours may start around 8:30 in the mornings during the
week but the one tractor he uses is a 2000 Ford which is not a very big tractor.
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Pat asked about the helicopters. What safety do you have for that9 What is the flight path? Mr.
Starr stated they fly over the farm for maybe a five minute flight. Fred Hetrick, is the pilot and an
experienced flyer.
Dave wanted to know how much sales tax for the county was collected? Mr. Starr stated about
$3,000 to $6,000. Dave was interested in how much business it generated. We have to maintain
the roads for the increased traffic out that way. The police officers also cost the county. Mr. Starr

stated they were off duty and it was approved by Sheriff Roy Dunnaway and JeffHerrig.
Dave suggested calcium chloride for dust control on the roads. Mr. Starr stated that the cost was
high and after application the roads cannot be graded. Dave stated that his experience with water
is sometimes you cannot keep up. Mr. Starr stated that he had a water system in place. Mr. Starr
stated normally in September and October there will be humidity and not too much dust. It is
different from year to year. He understands he needs to try and control the dust. He has a plan to
water the road. Dave suggested he check into the calcium chloride. Mr. Starr stated the average
traffic on week nights maybe 40-50 cars - with more on the weekends.
In Favor: No one.

In Opposition: No one.
Staff: The Zoning Administrator stated that there were no phone calls or written correspondence.
She reviewed Ron Kam's access report. He stated that the entrances would not need culverts until
such time there would be ditching done on the county road. There are currently no ditches.
Mr. Starr asked if he proceeds and in the next year or two he decides to add to the plan, for
example another tent, would he have to come back through the Conditional Use process? Pat
stated not unless it is a major change like you will be having a circus come and stay on the
property.
Motion: There was a motion to accept the conditional use permit for an Agritainment business by

Bill and seconded by Shirley.
Discussion: Darrell had a suggestion to make the bonfire in an enclosed space for public safety
concerns. Mr. Starr stated that the bonfire is basically on sand and it is cleaned out yearly. It is

located close to a creek and it has 10 to 15 foot sloped hills around the bonfire to block out the
wind. They always call Gayle Bikel with the Fire Department for a permit to bum. The creek is to
the East and there are trees to the North & South. Dave suggested he have a water tank down by
the bonfire area. Mr. Starr stated there is a well close to the bonfire, maybe he could mn a hose
from the well to the area. Darrell suggested rocking around the bonfire area to keep the hot
embers from blowing around. Mr. Starr thanked the board for their suggestion and made note of
it.

Staff: The LESA system scoring in this case was at the high end of "moderately rated for
farmland preservation". The Residential Zoning around the area lowered the score and the river is
not classified as an Agricultural use. These unique characteristics have factored in to the site
scoring lower than what you would expect. The soils are unique in this area. The Zoning
Administrator had to contact Jim Marietta to get the classifications for these soil types.
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Pat asked if Bill wanted to amend his original motion to include a time period for a review. Bill
made a motion to amend the original motion to have a review of the Conditional Use Permit after
one year and then again three years later. Shirley seconded the motion to amend.
Pat stated that after one year the commission reviews the Conditional Use Permit and makes sure

the plan submitted is being followed.
Mr. Starr asked if all Conditional Use Permits were subject to review and can be revoked? Pat
stated that it is standard procedure to have a review period. Mr. Starr asked, "Then there is no
permanent zoning?" You can come back on any business and decide to revoke their permit. Pat
stated yes, if they are not following the plan submitted by the owner. He explained the Conditional
Use is subject to review to make sure that when someone puts in for a kennel that they actually
are running a kennel and not a gas station. Mr. Starr then asked if I follow my plan then you won't

revoke my Conditional Use Permit?
The Zoning Administrator stated that if we approve your conditional use permit now, it will be
reviewed next year to see if you are following you submitted plan. If you are, there will be no

problem, if you have made major variations in the plan, there is the possibility of revoking the
permit. Dave stated we will give you opportunity to modify if you need to.
Vote on the amended motion all in favor. Amended motion passed unanimously.

ITEM 2. PETITION Z2002/5 by Braydon E. and Robin Mae Jemberg to change the District
Zoning Classification from "AG" Agricultural to "RR" Rural Residential on property described as:

Approximately 30 acres located in the SW1/4 of Section 24, Township 9 South, Range 16 East of
the 6th P.M., Jefferson County, Kansas. Record Owners of Property: Braydon E. and Robin Mae
Jemberg.

The Zoning Administrator stated the property lies Northwest ofMeriden approximately 4 1/2
miles along 114th Street between Meriden Road and Sherman Road. The Jernberg's originally
made contact with our office in the spring of 2000. They were thinking of dividing 20-30 acres off
of Mrs. Jemberg's grandparents. They were told at that time that any split of less than 40 acres
would require a rezoning request and platting process. They split and purchased a 30 acre parcel
in December of 2000 and are requesting a change in zoning so that they can build a home on the
property. There is a significant amount of flood plain area on the parcel, but there is sufficient area
out of the floodplain where they would like to build. There is no rural water sendng the area. A

private well would provide water supply. Ron Kam, Road and Bridge Superintendent has checked
the requested access point off of 114th street and does not have any problems with it.
Shirley wanted to know on the aerial where the existing access was? The Zoning Administrator
showed her on the map.
Mr. Jemberg stated they would like to build their home on the property. Leavenworth - Jefferson
Electric will provide electric service. Jackson County Rural Water #\ does have meters available,

but the expense is $4000 for the meter plus getting it there. He will be drilling for a well. If he can
not get water from a well, he has budgeted for the rural water from Jackson County. Their house

will be located 140 feet off of the East line and about 700' back from the North property line. The
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house will be built on a rise which is out of the floodplain area. The driveway would be through
the floodplain area but not across the creek. The excavator stated they did not need to build it up.
Robb wanted to know where the creek mns. Mr. Jernberg referred to the map and showed Robb
the direction of the creek. Mr. Jemberg stated the driveway will not cross the creek. It will be on
the east side of the creek. There are trees and brome on the property and that is it.
In Favor: No one.

In Opposition: No one.
Mrs. Clare from the audience had a question. She asked ifrezoning that particular piece of
property would then set a precedent for other owners to do this? Pat stated anyone can do this.

Dave stated that it does lead others to thinking they can divide and sell there land. Whether they
get approved or not is another thing.
Robb wanted to know on all sides of the property if each one had a residence on it. The Zoning
Administrator stated not on each piece.
Dave stated in that general area there are not many 10 acre tracts. Mrs. Clare was concerned
about agricultural pieces being divided up into 10 acre tracts all over.
Pat stated that not everyone is against selling land. On the one hand we have agriculture and want
to preserve it. On the other hand if it's not been productive, people would like to divide it up and
sell it. As a board we have to decide what is best for the county. Our decisions will help improve
situations in the future.
Staff: The Zoning Administrator stated the zoning in the surrounding area. There are other rural
residential parcels in the area. There was one phone call that was from Mrs. Clare and she has
presented her concern today in person. The LESA scoring came out in the high range for
agricultural preservation.

Dave wanted to know if the land would be able to be split again. Robb stated isn't that a
hypothetical question? Dave stated I'm viewing it as a future split and it could happen. Bret stated

if they decide to split it again it will come before us first.
Action: Motion by Bret to approve. Motion seconded by Dave.

Discussion: Darrell proposed a condition be placed on the building permit that water be available
and established before we issue the permit. He stated he has seen many times when people say
they are going to have rural water and then later find out they can not afford it. Shirley stated she

did not think that was our responsibility and that Mr. Jemberg has stated he is fully aware of the
potential problem and has made plans to take care of it.
Pat stated that if Mr. Jemberg were building 5 houses out there in an area, he could see a
potential problem. Mr. Jemberg seems to be responsible and has two options to take if necessary.
\Vhat you are asking for Darrell, is a change in our mles and regulations. Dave, Bret, Pat &
Shirley all felt since it's just one house - the water is Mr. Jemberg's concern.
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It was the consensus of the board not to require Mr. Jernberg to have water before we would
issue a building permit.
Motion to approve case Z2002/5 passed unanimously.

ITEM 3. PETITION 2002/6 by Jerome F. and Margaret I. Kramer to change the District
Zoning Classification from "AG" Agricultural to "RR" Rural Residential on property described as:
Approximately 12 acres located in the NE 1/4 of Section 7, Township 9 South, Range 20 East of
the 6th P.M., Jefferson County, Kansas. Record Owners of Property: Jerome F. and Margaret I.
Kramer.

The Zoning Administrator stated the location of this parcel of land lies on the South side of 134th
Street between Washington Road and Stitz Road. The Kramer's son currently lives in the existing
dwelling on the property. They want to split off about 12 acres around the home site. They want
to keep the property in proper zoning compliance, so they are requesting to rezone the 12 acres

they want to split out. The dwelling is currently served by RWD #12 out of Winchester and there
is already a residential driveway for the dwelling.
Dave wanted to know how big the original tract of land was. The Zoning Administrator stated it
was coming off of a little over 80 acres.
Pat asked Mr. Kramer if his son was living there now? Mr. Kramer stated yes, he was helping him
out with the farm and is currently living in the house. He stated the farm is mostly grass land and
has cattle on it.
Robb wanted to know if Mr. Kramer lived near the farm. Mr. Kramer stated yes he lives down the
road.
In Favor: No one.

In Opposition: No one.
StafT: The Zoning Administrator stated the normal things like water and access are already
established. There were two people that came into the office that wanted information, but had no
problem with it. There were no phone calls or correspondence received regarding this case. The
LESA score was moderate range for farmland preservation.
Robb asked if they approve this 12 acre piece, could someone come in for a building permit on
the rest of the acreage left without rezomng? The Zoning Administrator stated yes, the remaining
acreage has the potential of building another house because it remains agricultural. Mr. Kramer

explained that the rest of this land was hilly and on lower ground. Dave stated that he liked that
there was an existing house. Yet the other aspect of it is like what Mrs. Clare brought up earlier,
we are creating
ls> a smaller tract.
Pat stated we needed a motion on the rezoning case.

Action: Motion to approve Z2002/6 by Dave and seconded by Shirley.
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Discussion: Dave stated he liked it because it has an existing house. He does think that every time
we do this, it does allow the feeling that it can be split again. The Zoning Administrator stated
that if we are talking about setting a precedent where there are only larger tracts and no similar
zoning in the area, she tends to agree. In this case, there are several tracts in the area zoned rural
residential. Dave stated every time you come down in size it makes people think about splitting
their land. He made a motion to approve because it is already an existing site it sounds like the
type oftypography is not conducive for any other use. It meets our requirements.
Motion passed unanimously.

ITEM 4. PETITION Z2002/7 by James G. Cool to change the District Zoning Classification
from "AG" Agricultural to "RR" Rural Residential on property described as: Approximately 30
acres located in the SE1/4 of Section 33, Township 10 South, Range 17 East of the 6th P.M.,
Jefferson County, Kansas. Record Owner: James G. Cool.

The Zoning Administrator stated that the property lies along the South side of 50th Street
between Clark Road and Decatur Road. Mr. Cool was issued a building permit for a storage
building with living area on a 70 acre parcel several years ago. He has since sold off 40 acres to
the South, leaving him with his residence on 30 acres. He is requesting a change in zoning on the
entire 30 acre parcel. His intentions are to retain the East 20 acres with his residence and sell the
West 10 acres as a building site. RWD #1 would provide water supply. Ron Kam, Road and
Bridge Superintendent has reported that a new access would be possible on the West 10 acres,

but would need to be placed on the East 1/3 of the lot at the top of the hill.
Mr. Cool stated he also had Mrs. Kaberline present that wanted to buy the 10 acres to speak to
the commission. Mr. Cool stated Mrs. Kaberline wants to build a house and keep her horses on
the property. Mrs. Kaberline has horses she has been keeping on other property she rents. The
owners of that property have decided they no longer want to rent the property. She had
approached Mr. Cool wantmg to buy 10 acres to build her house and keep her horses. Several

years ago he sold 40 acres to his neighbor which put him out of compliance with the zoning
codes. He did not want to be out of compliance and would like to rezone 10 acres for Mrs.
Kaberline for a residence and his remaining 20 acres. Any consideration of approval would be
appreciated to help him be able to rezone and bring the property into compliance. Mrs. Kaberline
came up to speak to the commission. She stated she currently lives in the Meriden area and would
like to stay in the area. She would like to move in a small modular home and about five horses.
She would build a 12'x40' barn with fenced runs. She planned on keeping it pasture for the horses.
She would have five to ten horses at the most on the property.
In Favor: Judy Mamska was present and stated she was for the rezoning. Connie Neighberger
also stated she was for the rezoning of this parcel of land.
In Opposition: No one.
Staff: One person came by the office and stated they had no problem with his rezoning. There
were no phone calls or correspondence received regarding this case. The LESA Evaluation
indicated a combined score at the high end of "moderately rated for farmland preservation". There
are five other parcels in the immediate area that currently carry a Rural Residential zoning as well
as a lot directly North across the road which was rezoned to a residential use back in the 70's.
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Bret wanted to know if this met our 4 to 1 ratio. The Zoning Administrator stated the 10 acre
piece did just fit the requirement.
Mrs. Kaberline stated she already had the entrance flagged and there was plenty of visibility. She
realized that the horse trailer needed sufficient room to enter her driveway and took all that into
consideration.

Motion to accept Z2002/7 by Shirley, seconded by Darrell.
Discussion: Shirley stated she was not happy with shape of the 10 acre lot. She stated she also
could see several other lots shaped that way in the surrounding area. Dave stated it is conducive
to the area. Pat stated that probably most of them were done a long time ago. In most cases the
house is built on the front of the lot and the back acreage does not get used. Later on down the
line they don't want that acreage because it is of no use or value to them. I think in this case Mrs.
Kaberline wants to use and plans on utilizing the entire 10 acres.

Robb stated the shape may not be what we want, but it looks like it is within compliance with the
4 to 1 ratio. Dave agreed and it is like zoning in the area.
Dave wanted to point out that by action of the owner, this parcel is out of compliance. Robb
stated yes, but now he is trying to come into compliance. What is being asked is not outside our
guidelines. He may have made a mistake but he is here now to make it right within full compliance
of our regulations.
Motion passed with one in opposition - Shirley.

ITEM 5. Review of Final Plat of "Heiden's Haven Subdivision" for Paul Weixelman and Jeremy
DeLisle. Property rezoned on Case Z2001/14 at the August 28th, 2001 meeting. Motion to
approve Heiden's Haven Subdivision by Shirley and seconded by Bret. Motion passed with one
opposing the motion, Darrell.

ITE1VI 6. Discuss Zoning Regulation Revisions and LESA Revisions to incorporate
Comprehensive Plan Policy into Zoning Regulations.
After much discussion and fmstration expressed by the board about our LESA program the
Zoning Administrator stated she had talked with Dave Yearout. Dave Yearout was the former
zoning administrator for Johnson County and he also wrote our current regulations. Johnson
County decided not to adopt the LESA system, because no matter what they did with the system
it still would fall in that moderate range. There was more discussion on what the board may want
to do with the current LESA system. Dave suggested we need to have our own system and
parameters. There was more discussion on modifying the agricultural enhancement map that
Darrell and the Zoning Administrator have proposed. Dave stated that regulations and guidelines
are not preserving agricultural land. Bret stated that the soil types should have more control of the
LESA system.

Pat stated the LESA is basically a tool to use in making a zoning decision. Bret stated that LESA
and the proposed agricultural enhancement map are to be used as guidelines not gospel. The map
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may cause problems with people that want to use as a literal map, but it is great for a guideline.
The Zoning Administrator stated that is why she wanted to bring up the issue and what Dave

Yearout had stated. Scott Michie from Bucher, Willis & Ratliffwas in the office last week and the
problem with the LESA system was brought up. He was not aware of any other county in Kansas
using the LESA system. We did not know when we started the Comprehensive Plan in Jefferson
County that Saline County had been using this LESA system for about five years. The Zoning
Administrator learned this from the Saline County zoning administrator and has visited with him.

They have modified their LESA scoring almost annually and the cases still fall in a moderate
agricultural preservation range.
Dave stated that we needed to adapt the LESA system to our specific area. Bret stated that is
what Darrell and Eloise have worked on. Bret stated that the soil types should have more baring
on the outcome. Darrell stated that the map does include that. Darrell stated that there is a
significant difference in the soils on this map. Bret stated that he thought the map was great, but
we are still coming up in the moderate range. Robb stated that we are focusing too much on the
LESA system, and it is not worth the time and effort on the staff to try and figure out a way for
the scores to come out the way we would like them to. Darrell stated that this is relatively easy
information to obtain. We need to tweak some of the numbers again to help it along. Pat stated

that the scoring part ofLESA is not working and we need a better way to deal with it.
The Zoning Administrator stated she had some other concerns she needed to discuss with the
planning commission. The commission moved on to the proposed Zoning Regulation changes.
The Zoning Administrator stated the performance standards in Article 11-105 Agricultural buffer,
which states in #1 "Deeds for new homes built within 300 feet of an agricultural use in the
agricultural district should contain restriction clauses or disclosure agreements acknowledging
adjacent agricultural uses." The problem with this regulation is who is responsible for enforcing it?
Bret stated who will enforce this? The Zoning Administrator stated that we can not make
someone state something in their deed. There is no way to regulate this. The Zoning
Administrator stated we can regulate what goes on a Subdivision Plat, because we see it before it

is filed in the Register of Deeds office. The Zoning Administrator stated she would not feel
comfortable adopting it in the regulations the way it is currently presented. There was more
discussion on the issue of enforcement of a regulation of this nature and it was the consensus of

the board they agreed with the Zoning Administrator.
Bill Rhodes excused himself from the meeting.
Pat stated that in Article 10, the Development Plan, he was concerned with all the information
that was being deleted and was not sure whether we should do that. The Zoning Administrator
stated that the under section 10-105, many of the issues are addressed.
Darrell stated in the preamble in 10-105 it appears it states that a professional land planner is
required. There is no such thing as a land planner. He stated it should be a registered professional
engineer. Darrell stated that 10-106 D. should be deleted because it was ambiguous. There was
more discussion regarding 10-108 and the wording concerning a Conditional Use Permit.

The Zoning Administrator asked the Planning Commission if they had a chance to read through all
the changes carefully. Most of the commission did not have a chance to read through it
thoroughly. Pat stated the minutes needed to be approved.
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The Planning Commission discussed more on the LESA System and our current regulations. It
was the consensus of the board they would discuss these issues next time.
Meeting adjourned 4:20 p.m. Tuesday, Febmary 26th, 2002.

AU-U} /^^y^>

Minutes taken by:_

Debbie Kruse, Zoning Clerk

Approved : ^{\ \ OjA q
Date
Chairman

Patrick R^e<
Secretary
Bret Frakes
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J^ JEFFERSON COUNTY
^ ROAD DEPARTMENT
P.O. BOX 322

^

OSKALOOSA, KS 66066
PHONE (785)863-2211
FAX (785) 863-3026
RICHARD L. TEAFORD, P.E. L.S. RONALD E. KARN

COUNTY ENGINEER ROAD SUPERINTENDENT

ROAD ENTRANCE PERMIT

Applicant: /^(L^\M ^)\O^U~l Date: _cZJLlMl^LAddress: ^Q I H^^-

C^ra^^A^Jb ^ 6 6 W
Phone: 7S5 - ^6- II ^ Or M'O^

^vert address: 6€\c( \ l~i^ S-l ^a^V^^ F/'V^ S
lcd^ c^^</^rl^nt/ve^> o/idg^/c o:^.
First inspection date: /?'-/y'7;
By: 7<^. (<^/-^-

Comments: ^^y^^x^ i^Ut v^t' i^.^^ ^-j^iu^h U^/ f-ff-^ ^W^c^

i^ c^^. f^/l^^L r^/fl^/ e^^t^^' ^ril/ t^¥/ ^ ^

./^/'X 30f e^

Returned call to applicant: ^^ ^ /9-/t/~> /^i^ ^W cr^^f-.

By: (^,^.
2^/<^^- /
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I, Cynthia, Jones, a neighbor of Gary Starr, living Vi mile East of Mr. Starr, do not
object to the strawberry^ackberry farm nor the corn maize in the fall. In fact, I
think it is a great boost for Jefferson County and brings people out into this area for
commercial reasons that would otherwise not come to Jefferson County. It also

appears to be a boost for Reeses' Fruit Farm because it seems to be doing better
business also since Gary Starr has commenced.

/V ^J
/-' ,.4^^-^
y/
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CHECK OUT AND RETURN FORM FOR ZONING SIGNS

APPLICANT

^a ^

DATE CHECKED OUT

¥

cxr

'/^L

DATE OF RETURN

c^

TYPE OF SIG
REZONING

CONDITIONAL USE

PLEASE USE A PERMANENT MARKER FOR LETTERING, THAT WILL
WITHSTAND THE WEATHER. DQjjOT TRY TO REMOVE THE LETTERING
BEFORE RETURNING THE SIGN. WE WILL CLEAN THE SIGN. THANKS!! !
TRANKYOU,
ZONING DEPT.

Page 93 of 156

JEFFERSON COUNTY REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
COUNTY COURTHOUSE
OSKALOOSA, KANSAS

NOTICE TO ADJOINING PROPERTY OWNERS

Dear Resident:

A request for a change in the zoning regulations, as applied to the property
described as: Approximately 35 acres located in a part of Lot C of Lot 2 Survey 13 of the

Kaw Half Breed Indian Lands and Lot B of Lot 2 of Survey 13 of the Kaw Half Breed
Indian Lands, Township US Range 17E East has been filed by Gary D. and Julie A.
Starr. The owners of this property are Gary D. and Julie A. Starr. This property lies
along 17th Street between Decatur Road and Douglas Road.
The request has been submitted for a Conditional Use Permit to change the land
use to An Agritainment Farm Business.

A public hearing will be held by the Jefferson County Regional Planning
Commission on 02/26/2002 at 1:30 PM, in Commisioner's chambers at which time you
may appear if you so desire, either in person or by agent or attorney, in opposition to or
support of the proposed change of land use.
The hearing of this request is not limited to those receiving copies of this notice,
and if you know of any neighbor or affected property owner, who for any reason has not
received a copy, it would be appreciated if you would inform them of this public hearing.
Respectfully,

Jefferson County Regional
Planning Commission

By^' J^M^f y^^ib-L^
Date of Notice: February 4, 2002
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PARCEL: 2482700000003000 ZONING:
ADDRESS: 599117TH ST GRANWILLEKS

AG

OWNER: STARR, JULIE A
MAP CREATED FOR: ZONING CHANGE
DATE: 1/30/2 08:54:16

A
N

1:21067
County Court House
300 Jefferson St.
Oskaloosa, KS 66066

(785) 863 2241
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AG

PUBLIC NOTICE
(Published in The Oskaloosa Inde-

pendent April 4,2002)lt

Jefferson County, Kansas Board of
County Commissioners

CONDITIONAL VS]E PERMIT

WHEREAS IT APPEARS that

under the provisions of Article 17 of
the Jefferson County Zoning Regulations, the application of Gary D. and
JulieA. Starr for a Conditional Use
Permit for an Agritqinment (Agriculture/Entertainment) Facm Business

oh property described as?
; j^art^fLotpofBoi2ofSur-

; ^eylS^t^lC^ Breed

Irididn Lands, m Township 11
South, Rang&lTEaStt of the

„,. 6th:.;RM.,i^Jel?irsQn?f^^|y;

•: Kausas^descnbedya&^iliwi:

Beginning at the Northwest
comer of said Lot C of said Lot
.' \^.|iJ|sM^Siiiriv;iy,13;l'thilhce^

SiEis^aJoA^the^ North line of
said Lot C to the "CoUey Ditch";
thence Southerly along! the

said "CpUeyffiteh" to the North

-bank pifythefKansas {River;
thenceNorithweste^ly along
t^heNoi'(ii;b>ai^
River to itlie $onthwe8t.cpimer

^Okf saidjXip^ip^ thence jNorth
alongtlie|^|est litte of said Lot
jQI'l

.dark, County Surveyor, and

recordechin Book 167, Page

551,(^i^i^li<^
DQeas of IJeffersoh <!|0unty,
Kansas and t<b( B oflibt2of
Survey 13;'6f the Kiaw .Half
Breed Indian Lands, in Town-

ship 11 South, Range 17 East
• ^;^of^hg;^^E|^.>.iffi|r^^-s((m

'^; .€^i|^|^6a8,'<^s|P^|E?

fbHowl^SltmmnrWfliSfe
Southeast corner of iLot A Of

Lot 2 of said Survey 43 (said
point also being the Sbuthwest
cornerof Lot B of Lot 2 of said
Survey 13); thence North long

the West line of said Lot B

19-52 chains, more or less, to

the Northwest corner of said
Lot B; thence East aging the
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North line^f6ttidLotB 12.49

ckaimS, more or lessi, to the
Northe&st comer of said tot B;

the JSorthwest corner of said

Lot B; thence East aging the

^i|g;^^jll^(»f,Slri(3lI.Ol?fi'^^ .
Qg .Glta|®|i:||i<|re|ftr liBs8,:.^|a||^
' ^NWielSt.'cbnier ofsaid'Sot'B;
thence South along the East

line of said Lot B to the North

bank of the Kansas River;
thence Northwesteriy; along

the North bankofsdid Kansas

River to the place of beginning;
all according to the survey
dated January 22,1902, by E.
E. dark, County Surveyor, and

recorded in Book 167, page 651,
of records of Register of Deeds
of Jefferson County, Kansas.

Record Owners of Property:
Gary D. and Julie A Starr.
It was referred by the Jefferson
County Regional Planning Commission to the Jefferson Comty Board of
County CommisSioflers on the 26th

da^^ftF'iySi'aBh^lOO^IT&^^brtof

tional Use Permit for an Agritainment Farm Business with the followw&x^di^m^-/.^.,^...^.: ., ..

I^Teyiew|n^oneyear and| then

Nbl1"IK::tT?cl) r8'i

•"•y- f >» '"--ij y r.

"MS^SsSSA^Vbe/M consideration, the Board pf County €pm-

I s^^i^t^^J^E^^DQSxi^y, KansaClectded tKafc lairf^eVtitih^uld
be Approved with this condition:

1. A review intone year and then
every three years.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that on* this 18th day of
March, 2002, that a Condititoal Use
Permit fot a% AgritaiAment Farm

Business be &pprovic(d on the above
described property with the condition as stated above.

BOARD C^VW^n
COMMISSIONERS
. Tra,vis,OUver

Chairman

Francis Gh?cftlmes
^Member
George Mathews
Member

ATTEST:

REQUEST NO. Z2002/1

Byr Linda M. Buttron
CoujaitjfcGIerk ,.•: .'1 ^ • i;';: .^ •- .\. ;
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(SEAL) ;

GapV ^^r Ci^oo^//
Application for

Conditional Use Permit
Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission
^^ Jefferson County Courthouse, Oskaloosa. Kansas

Fill out completely and submit along with a filing fee of$100.00
1. Applicant's Name ^c\ r ^ In c < .\A "^ i.' (i. /- /-^ »-\ -^ -^ 4-c\ r r

2. Applicants Address 5cia i /7^ ^ ^Vc^^M^ K$ ^^
3. Telephone Number(Home) 7^-S ^ik -M'^S (Work) 7(<5 ^^ /€6

_L_/

4. Present use of subject property /-/q, \ ^G \v\, y^c^A- / 'R.^ ^

5. Desired use of subject property
6. Present Zoning /^ <^ ^ i C ^' I \-u r e-

7. Legal description of subject property:
Approximate Street Address & Location 5 ci 'ci i n ^ 5^ S i c A ^ y ;i( ^ ks

Lots
_ In Block No.
In • Subdivision.

Metes and bounds description, if unplatted:

8. Area of subject property, square feet and/or acres ^^ ^-c^'05

r

9. How are adjoining properties used:
North ^y^-LLh-L^ _South fic^r /, «.\l^^^
East Ac^n c^u..i^^ _ West /4cr?c<. )^^^
"T—'^ • T

10. Furnish a site plan, plot plan or development plan of the entire
property being considered, drawn to a reasonable scale and showing
the location of all abutting streets or roadways, the location of

existing and proposed structures, types of buildings and the uses
proposed, easements, water courses, topography, etc. and indicate

the proposed methods of furnishing water and sewage disposal for
the project. If wells or sewage treatment are to be located on the site,
show the locations on the development plan.
Signature of Owner - w/' A^^f.^'
c
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^

^/d'/. .'/^^, ^ yyr^^L_

°~7

,^^ -y-l'O-oo-oo-oo^-w-Q

Statement of Intent

It is the intent of Gary's Berries to use our property for the sell and resell of produce
and agritainment. Along with this our goals are to promote Family values and make
Gary's Berries a place where Family Traditions Grow, and help in the education of our
children and others children. We shall maintain the agriculture theme behind our place of
business. Gary's Berries is providing semces to others that people in the farming
community have available daily.
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Justification
1. What use is to be made of the area in question?
Currently we sell small fruit and provide entertainment on our farm in the form of
Agritainment. We wish to continue to do the same things we are presently doing
and expanding the Agritainment side of our business.
Uses of farm:
• Sell fruit and vegetables we raise and buy to resell
• Sell concessions such as (but not limited to)
1. Strawberry slush
2. Apple cider slush
3. Cotton candy
4. Popcorn
5. Soy nuts

6. Bottled pop
7. Snacks (chips, cookies, etc)
8. Hamburgers and Hotdogs
9. Honey and Honey sticks
® School Tours
• Hay rack rides
® Bonfires

® Pumpkin picking and painting
® Hay bales to play on
® Nature Trail

• Birthday Parties
® Helicopter rides
® Craft Show
® Children Characters in costume such as Clifford the Big Red Dog through
KTWU.
® Sell souvenirs
® Glow Sticks and related items
® Live music
® Large Group Meetings

® Weddings
® Receptions
® Private parties
• Other items related to the Agritainment business
2. Give some factual data showing need for the proposed use in the area to be
Served.

Gary's Berries is a place where family traditions can grow. We promote Family
values and a safe secure environment for people to come and experience the
outdoors and farm life. We try to educate children through our school tours about

farm life and the opportunities that we face daily such as:
• How erosion affects our farm.
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• How dumping trash into creeks and others property can cause problems.
® Why it is necessary to imgate.
® What happens when the farmer does everything right and can still have a
poor hardest due to the elements, pests, or other factors.
® Riparian projects.
® Retention dams.
People need to be educated about what it takes to produce the food they eat and
the impact of their choices they make on the mral community. We offer education
through our school tours and talking with the many people that come to Gary's
Berries. Young people continually say there is nothing to do. We offer them an
environment that is friendly, safe, and an alternative to the mail. Gary's Berries is
an alternative to Halloween. Parents come to our farm knowing there are no scary
creatures and we promote Family values, they feel safe. I have many parents,
young adults and children that see me throughout the year and make a point to
come over and tell me just how much fun they have had at our farm. People
young and old enjoy our farm; I have heard many comments attesting to we have
never been on a hayride before. There are few places people can go for a farm
outing for the day or evening without owning a farm.
3. Will it be necessary to build a new structure?
We currently operate out of our existing buildings and tents. We have desires to
move away from tents to permanent structures in the future as finances permit.

We hope to build a new sales and meeting facility within the next three to five
years.

This facility will have the following:
® Built large enough to hold 100-300 people. Apprx. 60X300
® A kitchen to keep items warm.
• Restrooms with running water. These restrooms will not replace the porta-potties during high use times. I like to keep the port-a-potties more
accessible.

• The buildings will be built using the Barn theme.
® It may double as a barn for storage in the off-season.
® This building will also house our concession sales.
• Electricity and running water will be installed.
A second building maybe required, replacing the Army tent. It would be more of
a sales area 30x30. It will have electricity.

It is understood that our farm is in the 100-year flood plain and it will be
necessary to accommodate any 100-year flood requirements for buildings.

4. What qualities are there about the property in question, other than
ownership that make it more feasible to rezone rather than attempt to
acquire property presently zoned for the type of use proposed?
Location!
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• There is a creek to the east of our property with a full tree line. This acts as
a noise barrier and an ideal spot for a Nature trail.
® The Kansas River is to the South of our property, which is another natural
barrier. It also gives us an ideal opportunity to educate people on the
impact of erosion and how we as farmers deal with environmental issues.
• The type of soil is ideal for growing our crops.
® There is ample water supply.
® The secluded nature of our property.
® There are very few neighbors within a mile radius and those that are
within that area have visited our farm with favorable results.
We have established ourselves in this area as a fruit and vegetable
farm/Agritainment business for NINE years. The business is evolving using our
available natural resources.
5. Will the proposed use increase traffic in the area? If so, will an increase in

traffic be detrimental to the adjoining properties?
Yes. I have received no complaints from my neighbors. I try to address any
possible problems before they arise. One way is to ask my neighbors if there are
any objections before I do anything new.
6. What is the economic structure (high, low, medium, etc.) and character of the
area? Describe.
The area would be defined as more of a medium to low area. There are no new
houses in the area most have been here for over 50 years. There are two retired
families, five working age families in the area.
7. How will surrounding property values be maintained or increased? Show the
basis for your assumptions in details.
I believe that property values will be maintained.
® Majority of the surface area or property is agriculture. This ground will
continue to rise in value because it is highly sought after farm ground.
® We keep the right-of-ways from 24 highway mowed and try to keep the
trash picked up.
® We maintain tree lines on three sides of our property.
® This area is not developable for housing.
8. Is the area presently served by a similar type zone and use?
At present the area is zoned for agriculture. We are currently using our farm as a
farm and educational opportunity with a fun aspect.
9. What physical qualities are there about the property in question which
prohibits a less intense use? State what these may be?

Not Applicable
10. How will the proposed use increase or maintain health, safety, morals, order,
convenience, prosperity, or general welfare neighborhood? (In answering
this question present factual information that would lead to this conclusion.)
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During the evenings on weekends we hire an off duty Sheriff officer to be
on location to provide security. This also gives the local neighborhood
added protection. We have an excellent working relationship with our
local law enforcement. It is our belief that proactive measures are taken
instead of being reactive.

We also hire additional staff to act as help and security. With this staff we
are available to any of the neighbors in an emergency situation.
Saturdays we have a group of nurses that volunteer during the day to sell
concessions. Julie Starr is a registered nurse and available in emergency
situations.

We have hired our local youth and many times their parents to help in our
business.

We do not allow alcohol or dismptive behavior.
We maintain our property in an orderly manner.
We offer our farm to our neighbors to use.

It is our intent to maintain a good working relationship with our neighbors and
provide them opportunities they would not otherwise have.
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Development Plan
® Restroom Facilities:
There are two existing, fully functional restrooms with running water built into
the side of the house. The house was initially designed to accommodate the
restrooms. There is a 1500-gallon septic system installed and complete lateral
system.

Additionally we provide 4 port-a-potties placed throughout the farm that are
maintain twice weekly by Mather Flare rental.
® Hayrack Rides:
We have modified a hay wagon to have side rails and steps at the rear of the
wagon for safety. This is used for school tours and rides around our farm.
® Helicopter Rides:
Are provided by Hetrick Helicopter service out ofBillard airport. They maintain
the rides and we provide a fenced area for safe landing and takeoff. Hetricks
provide Helicopters in Kansas City, Lawrence, and Topeka. All three-television
stations in Topeka, Radio Stations and the area newspapers use them.
® Live Music and Church Meetings;
A portable stage is rented from the Oskaloosa Chamber of Commerce which is
pointed east 700' from the tree line using it as a barrier to suppress the music from
carrying too far. Singers are allowed to sing karaoke and we supply music.
Churches use the stage to perform and deliver gospel messages.
® Bonfires:
Are provided to groups along the creek area for Team Building Sessions, business
parties, church groups, and individuals. Picnic tables, benches and roasting wires
are supplied. The creek is normally 3-6 inches deep and 3 feet wide. The bonfire
and lanterns furnish lighting. The bonfire area drops down 20-30 feet and is
heavily wooded to allow for seclusion.
® Parking:
1. The driveway (P3) into Gary's Berries is 8" thick by 45' over 300' long of
cmshed lime. It is capable of handling 60 cars angle parked facing south.

2. Area (P2) is in the blackbemes. It is 68' wide and 600' long fescue field
and capable of handling 120 cars angled parked facing south. The cars
proceed south and turn into parking area (Pl) to head to the county road.

3. Area (Pl) is also in the blackberries but separated from (P2) by a row of
blackbemes. It is 40' wide and 600' long fescue field and capable of
handling 120 cars parked facing north. To exit cars proceed north to the
county road.

4. We have from 1-4 people parking cars during busy times. This also
eliminates any parking along the side of the road allowing plenty of room
for our neighbors to move equipment easily.
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5. We can handle multiple school buses, motor homes, travel buses and other
large vehicles without any problems.
6. We are considering moving our parking lot to the front field of
strawberries. It is 300' X 300' and easily accessed of the county roads as

there are no ditches. It will have the capability of handling 300 cars angled
parked with 6 rows going north and south. The field will be planted to
fescue. Because of our well drained soil, and the fact that if it rains or is
to wet we are closed, fescue work adequately. This change will occur in
June of 2002 after strawberries are harvested. Parking Pl and P2 will be
converted into strawberry fields or left as blackbeny fields.
7. We also mow the right-of-way to the highway to the best of our ability.

• Sales Facility;
Currently tents and the front of our house are used to provide facilities to sell
from.

It is our intention in the future to build a more permanent facility. We rent tent (J)
used for picnics, private parties, and concession sales. Tent (K) is an Army tent
we purchased used to sell pumpkins, concessions, and items for resale.
• Insurance:

Farm Bureau Insurance provides A million dollar umbrella policy. Solis
Insurance Company supplies us with a two million dollar policy that specializes in
Agritainment/Com Mazes, product liability, and accidents.
® Neighbors:
We have spoke with our neighbors that live close by and asked for any input to
better meet their needs. We have not received any complaints. Many of our
neighbors work for us and /or use our farm.
® Community Service;
We provide free admittance to the Salvation Army, Boys and Girls Club, passes
to the Sheriffs department to be distributed for community service and goodwill.
We offer a dollar off the price to admission for a can good donation that we give
to area food banks. We support the Ronald McDonald house from each
admission.
® Sponsors:

The past year we had several large companies help with sponsorship. Dr. Pepper,
McDonalds, Food-4-Less, Falleys, and Capital City Bank. Some of the sponsors
have used our facilities to host employee picnics. These companies sponsor us
because they see a need for what we do and our reputation in the community as
running a respectable business.
• Alcohol;
We do not allow.

Page 105 of 156

Animals:
We have a horse, dog, several cats, and an occasional cow. As time permits we
will add a few more farm animals.

® Security:
On Friday and Saturday Evenings we hire off duty uniformed Sheriffs officers to
provide security and as a preventive measure. During the week we have 1-3 Corn
Cops, which provide customer services but also maintain security around the
farm.

On the weekends we will have 6-10 Corn Cops providing parking, security, and
help with customer relations.
® Hours of Operation:
Hours for our Summer Harvest usually starts in May and continues through
August:
Monday - Friday 7am - 7pm
Saturday 7am - 3pm

Sunday Closed
These hours will vary through the summer depending on our crops.
These hours are for our Fall Festival that usually runs from late August to the first
week of November. As items are added or change these hours could change. The
business is growing and by some blessing it could become a full time operation.
Monday - Thursday 8am-3pm school tours
4pm-10pm general public
Friday's 8am-3pm school tours
4pm-11pm general public
Saturdays 1 Oam-11 pm general public
Sundays lpm-6pm general public
® Employees:
Our Employees are one of our biggest assets. We believe that God has blessed us
with an exceptional group of employees and volunteers. We pride ourselves with
the service our help provides.

® Lighting:
Yellow mercury vapor lights are used to provide security and safety of our
customers. X2 lights are 150-watt yellow mercury vapor lights. Xl is a 400-watt

yellow mercury vapor light. X3 is a 400-watt flood lamp for nighttime pumpkin
picking. It is pointed towards the river.
® Fire Protection:
We have two wells. One well is a hundred gallon a minute well with ov^pa^l fill

ability. The other well is a thousand gallon a minute well. The Grantvill^ ^re
Department is within 3 miles of our farm. Julie is a registered Nurse anc( ^
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available during operating hours. On Saturday's we have 6-10 Nurses
volunteering to provide concessions and are on hand to provide additional
medical care if needed.
We keep all areas mowed and allow no smoking once you have entered our farm
in public areas. We have a sign at the entrance stating such.
® General Comments:
We have laid out our farm to accommodate large numbers of people at any one
time (0-1700 people). As opportunities arise for change we adapt very quickly.
When more parking is needed we section off more area, more restrooms or
cleaning needed to the port-a-potties we can have them delivered within hours.

The type of business we are in requires flexibility and adaptability by our staff
and us.

Because of crop rotation it will be necessary to rotate our crops through out our
farm over the years.
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Google aerial view of areas adjacent to 5991 17th St, Grantville, KS 66429.
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Google image of farm and adjacent residences.
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Subject property topography
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6

1
1: Highway approach. 2: Decatur Rd approach.

2
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3
3: Decatur Rd - View of farm left and residence right. 4: View of residences west of farm.

4
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5
5: 17th St - Residence adjacent to farm. 6: View of farm from west on 17th St.

6
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8
9-11
12
36-37

32
34
33 30-31
35

29

13-15
16,17
18-20
21-22

23
28
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7
7: Pedestrian entrances to farm and parking area. 8: View of NW corner of farm adjacent to parking.

8
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9

10
9: Corn maze ladders at right, small sheds. 10: Goat mountain. 11: Pumpkin house and corn maze ladders.

11
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12

13
12: Barn. 13: View of basketball court. 14: Restroom buildings. 15: East/West circulator road.

14

15
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16

18

17

19

16: Photo area behind stage. 17: Stage. 18: Tilt House. 19: Storage. 20: Concession shacks.

20
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21

22
21: Games area. 22: Farm equipment education area. 23: Apple house storage.
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23
2

24
2

25
24: Apple cannon. 25: Targets for apple cannon.
2
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26
2

27
26:
2 Light show area. 27: Example light show structure. 28: View of farm from the south.

28
28
2
2
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29
2

30
29:
2 View of farm from east. 30: Trampoline area. 31: Game storage.

31
2
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32
2

33
2

34
2
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32: Play
structures.
33: Corn pit.
34: Slides.

35
2

36
35:
2 Dining area with lights. 36: Concession shacks. 37: Typical shack.

37
2
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JEFFERSON COUNTY 300 Jefferson St Toll Free: (844) 679-0748
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT P-0. BOX 628 Phone: (785) 403-0000
www.jfcountyks.com/planningandzoning Oskaloosa/ KS 66066 Fax: (785) 403-0783

Date of Notice: 03/31/2021
Dear Property Owner:
NOTICE is hereby given to any and all persons that the following will be considered at a Public
Hearing by the Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission to be held on Monday, April 26th, 2021 at
7:00 p.m. via Zoom Video Conference. This meeting format is being utilized in the interest of public safety.
All application materials and reports will be posted online at https://www.Jfcountyks.com/agendacenter (click
on arrow next to Planning Commission) no later than Wednesday, April 21st.
To view or participate in the Zoom meeting, please request the meeting link by calling (785)403-0000, option
3, or emailing kwoodward(a>Jfcountyks.com. You will be provided with instructions and given the option to
participate in a practice meeting in advance.
The County will provide a method for individuals without access to the internet or a telephone - and only
such persons - to observe or participate in the meeting from the Jefferson County Courthouse. Face masks are

required at all times inside all County facilities.
To provide written public comment: Written public comment must be received by the Planning and Zoning
Department by 3 pm on Monday, April 26th to be included in the meeting materials. Send correspondence
electronically to kwoodward(%jfcountvks.com, or mail to P.O. Box 628, Oskaloosa, KS 66066, or place it in the
drop box by the south entrance of the Courthouse. Comments placed in the drop box should be marked for the
Planning Commission.
DP2021-01: A request to consider an amended Development Plan for planned improvements at an existing
Agritainment farm business permitted as conditional use CU2002-01. This request is on property located at
5991 17th St, Grantville, KS 66429 and is brought by owners Julie and Gary Starr of Gary's Berries at the same
address.

You are receiving this letter in compliance with the Kansas State Statute 12-757 and in accordance with Article
30-102 of the Jefferson County Zoning Regulations, which requires notice be given to "...all owners of record of
lands located within at least 1,000 feet of the area proposed to be altered. ..."
Please be aware that attendance at the public hearing is not limited to those individuals who have received copies
of this notice. If you know of any neighbor or other potentially affected property owner who did not receive a
copy of this notice, it would be appreciated if you would inform them of this public hearing.
The Planning Commission may continue consideration of this matter at the conclusion of the public hearing to a
future date without further notice.
Respectfully

^

Lelly Drake Woodward, AICP Erin George
Community Development Director Planner II
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CU2002-1 Conditional Use Permit Agritainment
Development Plan Amendment
A = Location of 40’ x 100’ exit building with 12’ overhang

Existing permitted agricultural building

B = Location of 40’ x 80’ Building for personal use

Existing residential building

C = Location of temporary parking (700 to 800 spaces)

W

Existing well

D = Field entrances and Main entrance to farm

R

Existing retention dam

Proposed agricultural buildings and additions to be permitted

S

Existing septic tanks

Farm Lights

Existing business sign

Location of future bathrooms and area for nursing mothers

X

Items in floodway to be relocated

Location of future small concession shacks
Location of future animal/educational barns
Location of future light show
Location of tractor / hay bale pull

*Miscellaneous location of agritainment structures and portable
storage of farm equipment located around the property.

Telephone
Line

Electrical

R
W

A

W

S

X
X
X
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Statement of Intent
It is the intent of Gary’s Berries (still) to use our property for the sell and resell of
produce and agritainment. Along with this our goals are to promote Family values
and make Gary’s Berries a place where Family Traditions Grow, and help in the
education of Children. We shall maintain the agriculture theme behind our place
of business.
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Development Plan
• Restroom Facilities:
o There are 11 fully functional restrooms on the farm. We have
scheduled crews to clean them hourly. We use out houses in far
reaching parts of the farm.
o We believe in the future will we need to build additional restroom
facilities.
o We will need an area for nursing mothers. 12 x 10 approximately
o
• Parking
o Parking will now encompass all of the north side of the property 300
feet to the south of the gravel road. Cars park facing north and south
in rows. 700-800 cars can park in this area.
• Exit Building
o This is a new building currently planned to be 40x100x12 or a little
less. It will have a 12 foot overhang on the south 100 foot side. On
the north side a 12x12 area enclosed for an exit to reduce wind flow.
It will have concrete floors. Currently we are looking at a post frame
or Red iron building depending who we can get to build the building.
Because of COVID we are having trouble getting a builder to commit.
• Buildings in Future
o More shacks. These are small buildings on skids that are moveable
(12X20) is currently the largest. Used for concessions Built Stong.
o Additional sales barn or animal Barn or educational barn. Generally
40x80 foot one on the east and one on the west of the house.
• Insurance
 Liability
• $2 million umbrella
 Workers comp
 Hail wind
 Etc.
• Neighbors
o We have not received any complaints from our neighbors. Many of
them have worked for us in the past.
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• Community Service
o We provide free admittance to the Salvation Army, Boys and Girls
Club, Topeka Rescue Mission and feed them when they come out.
We provide free passes for the Sheriff’s office to use and distribute
for community service and goodwill.
• Sponsors
o This past year we have had several sponsors:
 McDonalds
 Coke
 Tarwater’s

• Alcohol
o We do not allow
• Animals
o Chickens
o Goats
o Pigs
o Rabbits
o Petting zoo
• Security
o We have our own personal security at all times
o In addition on Friday and Saturday Nights we hire 3 off duty Sheriff’s
officers. Jeff Has given permission to do so.
o We also have Jefferson County EMT’s.
o Julie Starr is an RN along with our daughter-in-law Allision Reid
o We also have off duty Sheriff’s officers working in different capacities
on the farm most of the time.
• Festivals
o Currently we do a Fall Festival
o We are expanding into Christmas Festival this year.
 Christmas Trees
 Walk thru light show
o We would like the option to expand into more Family Festivals as we
see need
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•

•

•

•

•
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 Easter, Fourth of July, Mother Day, Etc
Hours of Operation
o Could be:
 Monday through Sunday 9 AM – 10PM
o Normally
 Sunday 10 am – 6pm normal and possibly as late as 10pm
 Saturday 9am – 10pm
 Friday 4pm-10 pm
 During the week school groups 8am-3pm
 During the week we have groups form 5-10pm
Employees
o Our employees become family and many come back many years. We
have the opportunity to share Christ with many of our family
members. We believe that by working here you can effect someone’s
life in a positive way.
Lighting
o Orange halide vapor lights are used to provide security and safety of
our customers Most all lights are 150 watt farm lights with four being
a 400 watt which face to the south and two face to the north.
Fire Protection
o We have two wells. One is a hundred gallons a minute and the other
is a thousand gallons minute. We purchased a fire truck from the
Grantville fire department. It holds 1600 gallons It is set up for brush
fires and water the road. It also has a reel hose on it. The Grantville
Fire Department is only 3 miles away. We only allow smoking in one
area of the farm. We keep things mowed and free of debris.
o

Statement of Value
Gary’s Berries, what is the value to the community?
• We employee 100+ people throughout the year whom become part of our
family.
o Many of these family members are between 14-18 years old.
o Some have never had a job before.
o We teach life skills.
 How to interact with their peers.
 To look people in the eye when speaking.
 To say “My Pleasure” when thanked.
• I know this works because our educators have expressed
to me that these young adults go back to school and
continue to say “My Pleasure”.
 We now have some of these same young adults coming back
and bringing their children to the farm and telling stories of the
hard work and fun they had while working here.
 How to use TOOLS.
 How to repair things.
 We empower them to make decisions
• To succeed and fail.
o We employ people with many different backgrounds and life
experiences.
o Our payroll is over $150,000 a year
 Much of this money is spent here in Jefferson County.
• Generated over $50,000 in sales tax.
• Benevolent:
o The Topeka Rescue Mission is invited out each year
o The boys and girls clubs
o The Salvation Army
o Many other organization at no cost.
• Future Goal:
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o To create a Foundation and use profits form the Christmas light show
and help feed families
• Gary’s Berries is a place where families can come and feel safe.
o Can see farm animals
o Learn different experiences besides watching T.V. or and Ipad.
o We provide experiences to non rural families that those in the
farming community enjoy daily
• It has allowed us to raise 4 children on this farm that are successful in their
own careers.
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Justification
1. What use is to be made of the area in question?
Currently we are an agritainment business. We wish to continue with
all the approved activities from our previous zoning approval. We will
only be updating the zoning for all the new ideas:
• Bubble area
• Pony rides
• Sand pit swing area
• More swings
• Christmas walk thru light show
• Festivals to be added:
i. Christmas
ii. Easter
iii. Valentines
iv. Fourth of July
• Human Foosball
• Gemstone mining
• Bird house for humans
• Bird feeding cage.
• Duck races
• Honey Bee display
• Bean bag forest
• GAGA Ball
• Roller ball
• Pumpkin head
• Giant pumpkin
• Combine slipper slide
• New jungle gym
• Plays on stage
• Sell Christmas trees
• Low ropes course
• Tilt house
• Ball toss
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• Konk the crow
• Tractor pull
• Hay bale pull
• Paint ball target area
• Tiny tot area
• New exit building currently using a tent
• Mothers feeding area
• More slides and more slides
• Hay maize
• Zinnias
• Truck bed skee ball
• Other items related to the agritainment business,
• Ideas that come from The Maize Group.
2. Things we are currently doing
• Apple Cannons
• Pig Races
• Goat mountain
• Petting zoo
• Bunnyville
• Jumping pillow
• Corn pit
• Corn hole
• Chicken coop
• Teepee
• Slides
• Jungle gym
• Basket ball
• Tether ball
• Walk thru light show
• Fireworks
• Sunflowers
• Hay bales to climb on
• Tug of war
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3.
4.

5.

6.
7.
8.
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• Kansas cyclone
• Ladder golf
• Barn yard tic-tac-toe
• Tire swings
• Giant porch swing
• Giant rocking chair
• Campfires
• Along with the items listed in the current zoning.
Give some factual data showing need for the proposed use in the area to
be served.
Will it be necessary to build a new structure?
• Yes
i. We will need a new exit building to the east of our house. Size
will be 40x100x12 with 12 foot overhang on the south side.
And a 12x12 area for the exit doors on the north side. We are
currently using a tent. Our items for sell are getting dirty and
we can not store food in it overnight because of animals.
ii. We have added many small shacks on the farm that are
temporary and on skids that can be moved to a different
locations.
iii. Most all of the small building are designed to be movable.
iv. We will be needing additional building in the future currently
ideal size would be in the 40x 80 foot range or bigger. Because
of the interest of the community we are growing.
What are qualities are there about the property in question, other that
ownership that make it more feasible to upgrade the zoning rather than
attempt to acquire property presently zoned for the type of use
proposed?
Will the proposed use increase traffic in the area? If so, will an increase in
traffic be detrimental to the adjoining properties:
How will the surrounding property values be maintained or increase?
Show the basis for your assumptions in detail.
Is the area presently served by a similar type zone and use?

9. What physical qualities are there about the property in question which
prohibits a less intense use? Start what these might be.
10. How will the proposed use increase or maintain health, safety, morals,
order, convenience, prosperity, or general welfare neighborhood?
11.
Most of these questions (3-10) are answered in the previous zoning plan
attached.
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4/19/2021

Mail - Kelly Woodward - Outlook

Re: Gary's Berries amended Development Plan
Jeff Herrig <jherrig@jeffersoncountykssheriff.com>
Fri 4/16/2021 3:47 PM

To: Kelly Woodward <kwoodward@jfcountyks.com>

Hi Kelly! I don’t have any concerns. Thanks
Sent from Sheriff Jeff Herrig
On Apr 16, 2021, at 1:40 PM, Kelly Woodward <kwoodward@jfcountyks.com> wrote:

Forgot the a achments.
Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP
Planning & Zoning / Community Development Director
Jeﬀerson County Courthouse
Planning & Zoning
300 Jefferson St.
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa, KS 66066
kwoodward@jfcountyks.com
Oﬃce phone: (785) 403-0000 Ext. 3
Fax: (785) 403-0783

From: Kelly Woodward
Sent: Friday, April 16, 2021 1:38 PM
To: Jeﬀ Herrig <jherrig@jeﬀersoncountykssheriﬀ.com>
Subject: Gary's Berries amended Development Plan

Hi Jeﬀ,
Just making sure you do not have any concerns or addional r ecommended condions of
approval for this amended development plan for Gary's Berries at 5991 17th St. Please
indicate support or recommended condions of appr oval. Here are my comments thus far:
Floodplain Development: The site is quite level and enr ely within the ﬂoodplain. Staﬀ recommends
a condion of approval for the amended Development Plan that the applicant shall successfully
obtain all applicable Federal, State and Local permits for all buildings, structures and development
within the Special Flood Hazard Areas, and occupancy/use of buildings, structures and development
shall only commence upon approval of a ﬁnal post-construcon inspecon and issuance of a
cerﬁc ate of occupancy. During the ﬂoodplain development permit approval process, ﬁnished ﬂoor
elevaons of all buildings and s tructures will be veriﬁed.
Signs: Any signs will need a separate permit and will be expected to comply with regulaons.
addional limit aons ar e deemed necessary.

No
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Outdoor lighng: Lighng is of a standard security light type with ﬁxtures that face inward on the
property. Staﬀ recommends a condion of approval that any future outdoor electrical lighng for
this use be minimized to the scale and locaons strictly necessary to ensure public safety, with a
customary intensity of illuminaon for agricultural uses in rural areas, and meeng the following
requirements:

1. Mounng heigh t not to exceed 25’
2. Designed and located to prohibit direct light or glare onto any adjacent property and to
minimize uplighng.

Parking: Using the overall dimensions of the temporary grass parking areas shown on the plan, a
total of 855 cars could potenally be accommodated on-site. That assumes 10’ x 20’ parking spaces
(regulaons call for 9’ x 19’ spaces) and 25’ wide two-way drive aisles. The applicant has not
conducted an hourly traﬃc count for events, but this illustrates that there is ample area designated
for on-site parking for this use. The regulaons oﬀer no guidance for a parcular minimum parking
requirement for a similar use. Staﬀ recommends a condion of approval that all parking associated
with this use shall be accommodated on-site, and parking will be managed so that the designated
parking areas are maintained in connuous vegetated cover and shall not contribute to increased
runoﬀ.
Landscaping and screening: Staﬀ recommends a condion of approval that to further low impact
development, stormwater management and erosion control beneﬁts, the applicant shall retain and
prevent damage to or improve the exisng tr ee cover as shown on the Development Plan.
Noise: Staﬀ recommends a condion of approval that any sources of ampliﬁed sound shall be
buﬀered and directed away from adjacent parcels so as to be minimally detectable at the property
boundaries, and ﬁreworks shall not be used past 10 pm.
Dust: Staﬀ recommends a condion of approval that the applicant shall uliz e County-approved
dust control measures within 1/3 mile of the property during high traﬃc me periods.

I have to send my staﬀ report out to the Planning Commission by end of day Monday so
please respond as soon as possible.
Thank you,
Kelly
Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP
Planning & Zoning / Community Development Director
Jeﬀerson County Courthouse
Planning & Zoning

300 Jefferson St.
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa, KS 66066

Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP
Planning & Zoning / Community Development Director
Jeﬀerson County Courthouse
Planning & Zoning
300 Jefferson St.
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa, KS 66066
kwoodward@jfcountyks.com
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Oﬃce phone: (785) 403-0000 Ext. 3
Fax: (785) 403-0783

<Gary Starr Site Plan.pdf>
<DP2021-01 Application Complete Combined.pdf>
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PLANNING AND ZONING DIVISION

Memo
To:

Planning Commission

From: Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP
Date:

April 26, 2021

RE:

Procedures pertaining to required attendance for applicants at public hearings.

ISSUE:

The Planning Commission inquired about potential implementation of procedures to ensure the applicant
participates in public hearings.

BACKGROUND:

During the October 24, 2016 meeting, a motion was made to ask staff to develop the means to make sure
that applicants must be present for public hearings. No further applicable communications were
discovered within the minutes of the following meetings, so we believe this was not resolved.
This topic does not seem to be addressed in Kansas Statute. Statutes merely state that the Planning
Commission shall adopt bylaws for the transaction of business and hearing procedures (K.S.A. 12-745).
Kansas Statutes do provide deadlines for decisions on platsi, however public hearings are not required for
plat approval per Statute. Although not required by State statute, Jefferson County Subdivision
Regulations provide that the Planning Commission shall conduct a public hearing on a preliminary plat.
Public hearings are required for zoning amendments such as conditional uses and rezonings that involve
applicants.
Example Regulations
Geary County just adopted the following provision which actually requires attendance and if the applicant
does not attend the public hearing they have to reapply and pay a duplicate fee:
“If the applicant and/or agent thereof, of the agenda item requiring a public hearing is not present for said
hearing, the Chair shall continue the public hearing to another specific date, time and location, and
additional application with appropriate fee(s) as well as additional legal publication of notice of the public
hearing shall be required.”
Pottawatomie County has regulations for the conduct of hearings as follows:
“An Applicant, or an agent for the applicant, must be present to introduce a proposal for change, except
that this rule may be waived by a majority vote of the Planning Commission. If an applicant or agent is not
present, and the item is tabled, then the applicant shall automatically be granted an extension until the
next regularly scheduled meeting of the Planning Commission. If the applicant or agent fails to appear at
the next regularly scheduled meeting, the item shall be deemed void and the applicant must reapply. If the
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applicant or agent fails to attend a regularly scheduled meeting that involves a public hearing, they shall
be assessed the full cost of public notification, including postage, abstractor search (if necessary) and a
$50.00 zoning administrator surcharge for reprocessing.”
Rice County has adopted procedures for the public hearing that I would interpret to mean mandatory
attendance of the applicant is not required:
The joint Planning Commission “should hear a report from staff, a presentation from the applicant, and
comments from anyone present wishing to speak.”
Example Bylaws Provisions
Seward County’s bylaws “recommend” the petitioner or agent be present or provide written
communication. If neither of those options occurs, the board may defer those items at their discretion.
Ford County’s bylaws state that applicants must be represented for their cases to be heard by the Zoning
Board.
Other tactics
Sumner County does not cover this in the regulations or bylaws, but in a letter sent to the applicant they
state that if there is no representation at the public hearing, the Commission has the choice of denial,
tabling, or other appropriate action.
Butler, Finney, and Crawford Counties do not require attendance, but they do make a suggestion to the
applicant to be present. The Planning Commission has tabled cases to the next meeting when there are
questions from neighboring landowners and no one is available to answer them. Otherwise, they may go
ahead and approve without the representative in attendance.
Miami County does not require attendance but encourages a representative to be available to answer
questions. Their Planning Commission has continued public hearings when they do not appear to give
them another opportunity, particularly if it is anticipated the application may be denied.
Franklin County does not cover this in the regulations or bylaws. Staff encourages the applicant or owner
to be present. The Planning Commission has continued items previously, but only requires a factual
response to any concern or question that the Planning Commission had regarding that item. The
information may be presented by the owner, owner’s representative or staff as long as it is factual and
adequately addresses the concern of the Planning Commission.

ALTERNATIVE

PROPOSALS: (black text indicates existing language, red text indicates additions, strike-

through indicates recommended deletions of existing language)
Potential Amendment to the Zoning Regulations:

Article 30 Amendments
Section 30-102 Procedures for Consideration of Request for Amendments, Revisions or Changes
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The Planning Commission shall hold the public hearing at the place and time so stated within the legal
notice. The hearing may be adjourned from time to time, and at the conclusion of the same, the Planning
Commission shall take action on the request by preparing a recommendation either to approve, approve
with conditions as authorized by these Regulations, or disapprove the application by a majority of the
members of the Planning Commission present and voting at the hearing. When the Planning Commission
fails to make a recommendation on an application, the Planning Commission shall be deemed to have
made a recommendation of disapproval. Any such hearing may, for good cause at the request of the
applicant, or in the discretion of the Planning Commission, be continued.
An Applicant, or an agent for the applicant, must be available to participate in the associated public
hearing, except that this rule may be waived by a majority vote of the Planning Commission. If this
requirement is not waived, and an applicant or agent is not present, and the item is tabled, then the
applicant shall automatically be granted an extension until the next regularly scheduled meeting of the
Planning Commission. If the applicant or agent fails to appear at the next regularly scheduled meeting, the
item shall be deemed void and the applicant must reapply. If the applicant or agent fails to attend a
regularly scheduled meeting that involves a public hearing, they shall be assessed the full cost of public
notification, including postage, abstractor search (if necessary) and a $50.00 zoning administrator
surcharge for reprocessing.
Potential Amendment to the Subdivision Regulations:
Article 2 Procedure for Approval of Subdivisions
Section 2-103 Preliminary Plat, Subsection 5 Jefferson County Planning Commission Review and Action
Jefferson County Planning Commission Review and Action: The Jefferson County Planning Commission shall
conduct a public hearing on the preliminary plat. Notice shall be published once in the official County
newspaper 20 days prior to the date of the hearing. In addition, notice of the public hearing on the
proposed preliminary plat shall be mailed to all property owners within the notification area of the
proposed plat 20 days prior to the date of the hearing. The notification area shall be the same as for a
zoning case and the same notification procedures for a zoning case shall be followed. The Jefferson County
Planning Commission shall review the preliminary plat for compliance with the provisions of these
regulations. After reviewing the preliminary plat based on the objectives and requirements of these
regulations, comments from concerned citizens, and the report from the Zoning Administrator, the
Jefferson County Planning Commission shall take action on the acceptance, modification or rejection of
the preliminary plat. If an applicant or authorized representative is not present in some form to participate
in a required public hearing, the Planning Commission may defer the final decision to the next meeting, or
continue the public hearing to a future date. In no case shall lack of participation by the applicant in a
public hearing cause more than one month delay in rendering a final decision.
Approval of the preliminary plat by the Jefferson County Planning Commission shall permit the applicant
to proceed with the filing of a final plat as described in Section 2-104. The Zoning Administrator shall
forward a statement of the action taken by the Jefferson County Planning Commission to the Governing
Body. The Governing Body, at its request, may require that it must approve the preliminary plat before the
applicant can submit a final plat.
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Potential Bylaws Amendment:
Article V, No. 2
If an applicant or authorized representative is not present in some form to participate in a required public
hearing, the Planning Commission may defer the final decision to the next meeting, or continue the public
hearing to a future date. In no case shall lack of participation by the applicant in a public hearing cause
more than one month delay in rendering a final decision.

ATTACHMENTS:

A. Planning Commission Minutes 10-24-2016

RECOMMENDATION:

The most effective way to ensure participation by the applicant is to adopt amendments to both Zoning
and Subdivision regulations as proposed above (or as amended to satisfy your intent). The proposed
regulatory amendments clarify the consequences of lack of participation in public hearings, while still
offering flexibility for the Planning Commission to waive the requirement when it is unnecessary. The
strike-out is recommended because it is expected that the Planning Commission will fulfill its role and
make a recommendation. This will also help avoid conflicts with statutory requirements for approval of
specific uses such as telecommunication facilities. Any denial should be documented with detailed
findings-of-fact in case the decision is challenged, thus a presumption of denial after inaction may be
problematic.
If the Planning Commission only amends the Bylaws, and does not recommend amending the zoning and
subdivision regulations, enforcement of the desired participation is questionable. Applicants generally
are not aware of any Bylaws requirements, so it would have to be promoted by Staff through other
communications. This is not very transparent and may lack consistency upon staff changes.
Adoption of a Bylaws amendment is not necessary in support of the proposed regulatory amendments.
But the Planning Commission may decide to recommend amending the regulations and to amend the
Bylaws to serve as a procedural reminder to Planning Commission members.
If the Planning Commission reaches consensus that regulatory amendments are advisable, then a text
amendment should be initiated (TA2021-02) and public hearing held at the next meeting before a final
recommendation is made.
If the Planning Commission wishes only to amend the Bylaws, that can be done by approval of a motion
at any time.
K.S.A. 12-752 reads “The planning commission or the joint committee shall determine if the plat conforms to the
provisions of the subdivision regulations. If such determination is not made within 60 days after the first meeting of
such commission or committee following the date of the submission of the plat to the secretary thereof, such plat
shall be deemed to have been approved and a certificate shall be issued by the secretary of the planning commission
or joint committee upon demand.”
i
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OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
Minutes of Planning Commission
Meeting of October 24th, 2016
Item 1.

Call to Order.

Item 2.

Approval of the Agenda

CHAIRMAN SCHERER CALLED FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA. MATTHEW FINLEY MAKES A MOTION
TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED. VICE CHAIR JOHNSON SECONDS THE MOTION.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Matt
Scherer
DNV

Paul
Johnson
Aye

Alex Noll

Jerry White

---

Aye

Denise
Streeter
Aye

Matthew
Finley
Aye

Brandon
Newman
---

Denise
Streeter
Present

Matthew
Finley
Present

Brandon
Newman
---

The motion carried unanimously, 5-0.
Item 3.

Roll Call (Recording starts here)
Matt
Scherer
Present

Paul
Johnson
Present

Alex Noll

Jerry White

---

Present

Staff Members Erin George, Planner I, and Dustin Parks, Zoning Administrator were present.
Item 4.

Approval of the September 26th, 2016 minutes.

Chair Scherer asked if there were any corrections or additions to the minutes.
ACTION: COMMISSIONER WHITE MAKES A MOTION TO APPROVE THE SEPTEMBER 26TH, 2016 MINUTES, VICE
CHAIR JOHNSON SECONDS THE MOTION.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Matt
Scherer
DNV

Paul
Johnson
Aye

The motion carried unanimously, 5-0.
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Alex Noll

Jerry White

---

Aye

Denise
Streeter
Aye

Matthew
Finley
Aye

Brandon
Newman
---

October 24th, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – Official
Item 5. Public Hearing of PR2016-08 and Z2016-08 - Applicant had not arrived – Chairman Scherer Moved to Item
7.
Item 7. Old Business, General Staff Report
Zoning Administrator Parks updated the Planning Commission on case PR2016-07. Discussion was had
about the future of the comprehensive plan. the nature of future cases and tiny house regulations changes/creation.
During this discussion, Staff asked if the Applicant’s agent could be reached by phone and hold the hearing by
phone. Zoning Administrator advised that would be fine.
Steve Tufte was reached by phone, and placed on speaker phone for the hearing.
Item 5. Public Hearing of PR2016-08 and Z2016-08
Matt Scherer: At this time, I’m going to open the public hearing for PR2016-8 and Z2016-08 a request of final
plat for the Shughart Acres subdivision at 14961 US 24 Perry and a request to rezone lot 1 of that subdivision from
RR to SR. Is Steve on the line?
Erin George: Hey Steve, can you hear okay?
Steve Tufte (By phone): Yeah.
Matt Scherer: Since Steve is the only one here, I’m going to dispense with the regular stuff about the hearing,
except to ask if there is anyone on the planning commission that has a potential conflict of interest or has had
exparte communication with regard to the application. Since we have no one who will be testifying, except Steve
in some regard. At this time, I’ll ask staff for an over view of the applications.
Dustin Parks: I’ll make this pretty quick, it’s pretty cut and dry on this one. As you stated when you said what the
requests were for a 2 lot subdivision and the other case that we’re doing simultaneously is the request to rezone lot
1 of that subdivision. The location of the request is right here (referencing map on projector) and is being requested
because of this division here. Since it doesn’t qualify for an ag lot split. The current zoning, as you can see, for the
whole parcel is RR. Right across the street is SR, a large AG tract, and a cemetery. This is the notification area
which is 1000ft around the property. We did have one request for information as you’ll see in the staff report from
the neighbor to the west. All that neighbor wanted to know was the reason behind the split. We stated that’s not
really a question for us, that would be for the applicant at the hearing. This is a close up of the division. You’ll see
down here, this is the current entrance to the property. They are proposing that this lot (Lot 2) have access here
(referencing Lot 1’s access) However, after talking with K-Dot they stated they could have an entrance here (middle
of lot 2) or on the west side of the property. Currently, based on the situation as it stands, they could have access
to US 24 there (pointing to west side on map) or in the middle of the property. So it does have access to 24, it doesn’t
have to have that easement as the only access. There is floodplain on the property. The southern probably third of
the property. That floodplain does go up into the residence area where their residence and buildings are. Steve has
actually been working on doing a LOMA and sending that to FEMA to get those buildings out. They do qualify for
a LOMA so we’re waiting to hear back from FEMA to see if they can get the buildings out. Steve, how long ago did
you submit that?
Steve Tufte (By phone): Actually, what we did what was building elevation certificates, and we’re not submitting
those for a Loma.
Dustin Parks: Oh, Okay. I thought Daryl was talking about getting the LOMA too. So I apologize about that.
Steve Tufte (By phone): Actually, because these were. The actual house and buildings are about 4 to 6 feet above
the base flood elevation. So they were, with that kind of, (incomprehensible) with the exception of the ditches, most
of the property is above the base flood elevation. It’s just in an Approximate Zone A according to what they had it
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mapped, but we proved out that all of the buildings were 4 feet or more above that flood elevation. I Think, I can’t
remember, if I forwarded those to you or not, Dustin, but I’ll go ahead and get those sent to you.
Dustin Parks: Okay. If they’re that high, then it’s recommended they get the LOMA just to get them out of the
floodplain at some point. Since they’re probably trying to sell this, then the person that buys it could also try to get
the LOMA with those elevation certificates. There’s the report. It’s not in a RWD and it’s not in any Ag Overlay
District. The waste water system was installed in 2009 and met requirements, there’s the stuff about us fielding the
question from the neighbor and so those staff comments there about receiving letter of map amendments is incorrect
at this point. I would still suggest that the applicant or the people that buy it go through with that because it will
help in the long to get those properties up out of the floodplain. If they’re already high enough. That’s pretty much
the entire overview.
Chairman Matt Scherer: Questions for Staff? Could you tell us where it’s located on 24 Hwy. Is it near Perry or
Bill Town or where?
Dustin Parks: Right there, where it curves up (pointing to map) then Perry is there on the west.
Erin George: Those are the S curves.
Chairman Matt Scherer: Oh, that’s the S Curves? Okay. Other questions?
Vice Chair Paul Johnson: Well, I didn’t see in the staff report the surveyed lay of the land.
Dustin Parks: Oh, the Topography?
Vice Chair Paul Johnson: Right. What’s the building that would be in Lot 2?
Dustin Parks: That’s just an AG structure. That’s what they’re using to store their equipment for this field.
Vice Chair Paul Johnson: When would K-Dot make a determination on the second entrance.
Dustin Parks: They already have. They applicant is working with K-Dot to decide where they want it. K-Dot told
me directly that they could have one of those two locations. It’s just up to the applicant which one they want to go
through.
Chairman Matt Scherer: Any other questions?
Denise Streeter: So there’s already a house on Lot 1?
Chairman Matt Scherer: Steve, do you have anything you’d like to say on behalf of the applicant?
Steve Tufte (By phone): Well just that, a little history of it is that Daryl Shughart and Gail the two brother’s; Their
dad passed away a few years back so the reason for the whole thing is that neither one of them is going to be
needing the living quarters. The natural thing was to split out the residence with the buildings and sell that. Then
the two brothers are going to keep the crop ground and just continue farming that as they’re doing now. So that’s
a brief purpose and objective as to why they’re platting it.
Chairman Matt Scherer: Any more questions for Steve? (after a pause) I’ve got a completely unrelated one for
either Steve or Staff: Is that a drainage ditch or a modified stream?
Dustin Parks: Drainage Ditch I believe. Steve, that’s a drainage ditch, right?
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Steve Tufte (By phone): Right. It is. And actually, the boundary line is the in the center of that drainage ditch.
That drainage ditch has been in there, believe it or not, since the 1800’s. It’s I guess, there’s a creek up at the road
that’s actually called Jaybird Creek, but it dissipates quite a bit and basically dry but once a year.
Chairman Matt Scherer: Do you happen to know if there’s a district responsible for that ditch or it’s a land owner
owned ditch?
Steve Tufte: Oh as far as I know it’s just a property owner ditch.
Chairman Matt Scherer: Other Questions? (after a pause) Okay, for the record I’d like to point out there is not
public present other than Steve Tufte via phone. So at this time I’m going to close the public comment portion of
this hearing so we may prepare a recommendation for the county commissioners. Are there questions for staff that
we need to deal with yet?
Vice Chair Paul Johnson: This is probably for staff; Obviously they said they wanted to keep it in crop land? Lot
2? But, new owners would have an ability to construct housing that one?
Dustin Parks: It would be, yes. There’s enough ground, they’ve got the frontage. They could definitely build a
house if they desired to, or if they sold it and the new owners wanted to they could do that as well.
Vice Chair Paul Johnson: They could also split this? Possibly into a two or three. But then it would have to come
back here?
Dustin Parks: They’d have to replat it.
Vice Chair Paul Johnson: They’d have to replat it in order to do that?
Dustin Parks: Yeah, and with the frontage there they may be able to split it in half. But K-Dot may make them run
a frontage road.
Denise Streeter: What about a cul-de-sac? Could they put a cul-de-sac in?
Dustin Parks: Well, yeah, but that would be a public road and I doubt anyone would pay for that just for 10 acres.
They’d have a build a public road to put a cul-de-sac in there if they wanted to do that.
Chairman Matt Scherer: You mentioned that the only source of water is by well. I assume there’s an existing well
for the existing house? Steve, this is perhaps for you; Is it a productive well that’s sufficient for the house? And if
there is another house built would there be a problem in getting water?
Steve Tufte (By phone): As far as having the lot 2 share that well? Yeah, typically what we’ve had in most cases
where there is a private well is that they would have some kind of lease agreement where they share the well. I
haven’t heard of any misgivings or problems with that where people share a well. Although there’s always
something. More than likely there’s district water service available. A lot of time, when the first lot is sold, it will
be written into the deed as a reservation of water rights.
Chairman Matt Scherer: Are there any other questions or is anyone ready to make a motion?
Denise Streeter: Is someone living in that house? This has been residential for a long time? I guess I just wanted
to understand that this has been kind of a farm stead.
Vice Chair Paul Johnson: I think right now, lot 1 is being sold. So it’s been occupied, but right now it’s up for
sale.
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Denise Streeter: I just feel that it’s a grandfathered thing in my eyes. I just wanted to confirm that it’s an active
farmstead and had been.
Chairman Matt Scherer: I need a motion to either approve or recommend disapproval.
Denise Streeter: I would make a motion to approve.
Chairman Matt Scherer: We have a motion to approve PR2016-08 and Z2016-08 based on staff recommendations
and findings.
Matthew Finley: Second.
Chairman Matt Scherer: We have a second is there further discussion? (after a pause) Hearing none, all in favor
say Aye? We have a vote of 3 to 1. Can you let Steve know when this goes before the County Commissioners?
Action: A seconded motion to approve cases PR2016-08 and Z2016-08 was made. Voting was as follows:
Matt
Paul
Denise
Matthew
Brandon
Alex Noll
Jerry White
Scherer
Johnson
Streeter
Finley
Newman
DNV
Nay
--Aye
Aye
Aye
--The motion carried, 3-1.
Dustin Parks: November 14th, 2016.
Steve Tufte (By phone): And it was approved?
Dustin Parks: Yes, it was recommended for approval.
Steve Tufte (By phone) Okay, well, apologize to those folks for us not being there. We’re really sorry. Thanks a
lot Erin. Bye Now.
Chairman Matt Scherer: For the record I’ll note there is no one here for item 6 so we are ready for Item 8.

Item 8. New Business
Discussion was had between staff and the planning commission in regards to proposed changes to the
comprehensive plan, creation of tiny house regulation and the Outdoor recreation overlay district. It was discussed
how hopefully in the next two to three months, Staff can prepare to discuss changes to the regulations regarding
tiny houses and the outdoor recreation district, and how those would tie into the potential changes for the
comprehensive plan. Discussion was also had about the two upcoming cases in November.
It was emphatically stated by planning commissioners, that it should be a necessity for the applicant to be present
during the hearing. Staff agreed and requested that the board make a motion to adjust our applications to state that
the applicant must be present.
Vice Chair Paul Johnson: I move that it is a necessity that the applicant be present at our planning meetings.
Dustin Parks: What we can do is just add that to our applications and not create any new regulations for it.
Chairman Matt Scherer: That can be done without adding regulations?
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Memo
To:

Planning Commission

From: Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP
Date:

April 26, 2021

RE:

Identification of topics for the joint Planning Commission/Board of County Commissioners
meeting on May 3, 2021 at 2 pm

BACKGROUND:

During the March 2021 meeting, the Planning Commission discussed the possibility of a joint meeting with
the Board of County Commissioners to obtain some direction on moving forward with the Comprehensive
Plan update. Following that meeting, staff brought the request to the Board of County Commissioners,
who proposed a meeting date of May 3. Subsequently, Chair Paul Johnson asked for an agenda item at
the April meeting to settle on key issues to raise with the Board of County Commissioners. Please see
draft minutes for more information, starting on page 10.
Please review all materials you have been given on the Comprehensive Plan to date, and come prepared
with a few identified items you would like to discuss with the Board of County Commissioners.
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JOHN H. HUTTON
jhutton@hhmglaw.com

File No.: 18258.00001

April 26, 2021
Via Email kwoodward@jfcountyks.com
Jefferson County Joint Planning Commission
c/o Kelly Woodward
PO Box 628
Oskaloosa, KS 66066
Re:

Gary D. Starr and Julie Ann Starr Proposed Development Plan Amendment for
CUP CU2002/1 (DP2021-01)
Our Clients: Tracey and Jay Brown, 1548 Decatur Road, Grantville, KS 66429
Mae Brown, 5937 17th Street, Grantville, KS 66429

Dear Board Members:
This firm has been retained by the above-named individuals concerning their opposition
to the above-referenced conditional use permit amendment application. My clients own
residential and agricultural property immediately to the west of the subject site. While my
clients understand that the Gary’s Berries business has been in operation for quite some time,
they are concerned that the proposed amendment has not been well conceived or thoroughly
planned. It is also clear from the application that the applicant intends to significantly expand
the scope of their present fall festival while also expanding the timeframe for operations into the
remainder of the year. This significant expansion both in scope of the existing festival and
adding additional festivals throughout the year will lead to significant negative consequences for
my clients and other surrounding landowners. This proposed amendment will subject
neighboring landowners including my clients to dangerous conditions, economic loss and a
general inability to fully use and enjoy their real estate which provides them a home and a living
through agriculture. As a result, my clients are opposed to the proposed conditional use permit
amendment for the following reasons:
1. Traffic Concerns.
a. Dust – Even when the roads are treated the dust is unbearable during the Gary’s
Berries Fall Festival. It gets so thick on the weekends that a driver cannot see the car in front of
_________________________________________________________
3649 SW Burlingame Road, Ste. 200 | Topeka, Kansas 66611-2155 | (785) 232-2200 | Fax (785) 232-3344
www.hhmglaw.com
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them. Given certain weather conditions, the dust will linger in the air for days. My clients’
homes, automobiles and crops are covered in dust during the fall festival.
b. Volume of Traffic – The normal volume of vehicles on Decatur and 17th Street
averages from five to ten cars per day. Most of these vehicles are driven by people that live in
the area. During the fall festival, my clients see 500 to 1,000 cars on Saturdays and Sundays.
This doesn’t include the increased traffic for field trips and special events that are held
throughout the week during the fall festival. Traffic is nonstop and often lines up on the highway
to turn and in the vicinity of the railroad tracks. During most of the year, other vehicles will not
be encountered while driving down Decatur Road or 17th Street, but during the Gary’s Berries
Fall Festival, you can literally be stuck in traffic on these rural gravel roads. In the more narrow
parts of the roadway, vehicles have to pull off to the side of the road to allow vehicles and
delivery trucks to go by safely.
c. Road Conditions – The roads in the area, including 17th Street are paved in gravel.
Given the volume of vehicles that use the road during the fall festival, the rural gravel road is
significantly deteriorating over time. When there is rain or snow, the roads become muddy and
increased traffic during these times can cause road ruts and general safety concerns. Both the
road dimension and the pavement material are inappropriate for the significant traffic that uses
the access roads during the fall festival.
2. Noise concerns.
a. Many people including my clients that live in the country will tell you that a big
reason for choosing a rural lifestyle is the peace and quiet it affords. My clients have tolerated
the Gary’s Berries Fall Festival each year for many years which interrupts their peace and quiet.
Expanding the Gary’s Berries operations to the entire year would be intolerable for my clients.
My clients’ family have lived in their present location for four generations and have owned
property next to where the Starrs now live for over 80 years.
b. From the Starrs’ application, it is apparent that they intend to continue with the apple
cannons and in fact expand their use throughout the entire year. During the Gary’s Berries Fall
Festival, these cannons go off nonstop throughout the weekends and intermittently during the
week. They are so loud that they can be heard inside my clients’ homes with the doors and
windows closed. During the fall festival, Gary’s Berries shoots off fireworks every Friday night
at 9:00 p.m. Again, they are beautiful for the Gary’s Berries patrons who are there once every
several years, but for the neighbors that are forced to see and hear them every week, they are a
significant disturbance. They are extremely loud and make animals very nervous.
c. During the Gary’s Berries Fall Festival, there is live music, people screaming and
having a good time. Again, my clients are not against live music or people having a good time,
but it becomes a nuisance when you are subjected to it in your own home and cannot get away
from it. The present application not only seeks to expand to year-round operation, but to expand
the hours of operation. Again, the possibility of this for the entire year is intolerable.
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d. Traffic – In addition to the safety concerns mentioned above, during the Gary’s
Berries Fall Festival, the bulk of the patrons leave at 10:00 p.m. on Friday and Saturday nights.
Again, several hundred cars leaving at the same time in the middle of the night is a significant
disturbance.
3. Environmental concerns.
a. Well Water – All residents in this area utilize well water. This includes several wells
throughout the area that are presently being used for center pivot irrigation. With the increase in
the number of wells on the Starrs’ property and the significant proposed increase in usage that
year-round operation would bring, my clients are very concerned that the aquifer serving
everyone’s wells in the area cannot support the increased water use. My clients are concerned
that lowering the water table, even for a short time, can cause contamination from the water
being returned to the aquifer through septic systems. Jefferson County and/or the Starrs at the
very least should be responsible for obtaining a professional study of the potential impacts of the
Gary’s Berries proposed water use. Unfortunately, there is not a rural water district that serves
the subject area.
b. Septic System – All residents in this area utilize septic systems for waste. The
applicant has not sufficiently explained to the county how 700-800 families utilizing restroom
facilities each day will impact the septic system and the surrounding properties. Does the
proximity of the laterals to the river given the increased usage create water pollution issues for
the Kansas River? The water table in the area is only about 15 feet below the surface.
c. Flood Zone – The subject property is in a flood zone and the land naturally carries
flood water to the river. Recently the Starrs have been developing their property for new
attractions and altering the flow of water. This has caused the water to back flow and damage
neighboring fields.
d. Trash – The original permit mentions an intent to educate people on agriculture and
the detrimental effect of dumping trash improperly on waterways. Unfortunately, during the fall
festival, my clients consistently see trash along the roadway. This is inescapable given the
number of vehicles from outside of the area that come and go.
e. Wildlife – Hunting and fishing in the timber along the river was abundant in this area
prior to the start of the Gary’s Berries Fall Festivals. The increased population of people has
driven the wildlife to other areas, and many do not return. While the fish still bite in the Kansas
River, it is not enjoyable to fish while listening to the apple cannon blast or hearing crowds of
people. Again, this type of disturbance year-round would be intolerable. Ironically, the Starrs’
development plan talks about sharing rural experiences with non-rural families, while at the same
time taking the rural experience away from the residents who live in the area.
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4. Safety, Liability and Property Value.
a. With more eyes on my clients’ homes there is an increased risk of theft, vandalism,
and illegal dumping. During the fall festival many times people will drive down my client’s
private lane alongside their residence on Decatur Road to stop and ask questions about river
access and for permission to hunt and fish. Again, these people would never be in the area if it
were not for the Gary’s Berries Fall Festival.
b. Corn Maze – For the last several years, the corn maze was extended to the additional
lot that is alongside my client’s property. It does not appear that this property is included in
either the present CUP or the proposed amendment. Oftentimes, people come out of the corn
and walk through my client’s field along the back of the corn maze to go around it when they are
not able to find their way out. Obviously, if they were injured on my client’s property there is
potential for liability on the part of my clients. There is no fence or other barrier between the
Starrs’ property and my clients’ property.
c. Harvest – The crops are dry and ready for harvest at the time of the fall festival, there
is a potential risk for fire. Even if one fire truck were able to handle a fire that potentially
spreads quickly, how can hundreds of people be evacuated in this case of fire?
d. Property Value – The value of my clients’ property relies heavily on the land and the
rural way of life. Living in the close vicinity of a year-round “agritainment plus” enterprise next
door, that is basically an amusement park, it is going to impact the value of neighboring
property. The planning commissioners and county commissioners should question in their own
minds as to whether they would be interested in buying property and living next to a year-round
“agritainment” business.
Clearly, there are issues that the subject application does not address. At a minimum, the
planning board should require answers and, if necessary, studies to address all of these issues to
protect the property rights of surrounding neighbors and their right to live free of nuisance. As
you know, changes in zoning in Kansas are administered by local governments, in this case, the
Jefferson County Commission under the framework provided by the Kansas Supreme Court in
Golden v. Overland Park, 224 Kan 591, 584 P2d 130 (1978). In that case, the court developed
factors for local governments to consider when hearing requests for zoning changes.
Unfortunately, the Starrs’ proposed zoning change (proposed development plan amendment)
does not bear well under the Golden factors:
1.

The Neighborhood. The neighborhood can best be described as rural residential and
agricultural. As stated before, there are several residences including my clients’ that are
in very close proximity of the subject site and on the ingress/egress road for that site. The
character of this neighborhood does not accommodate a year-round ‘agritainment”
business and the volumes of people and vehicles that it entails.

2.

Zoning and Uses of the Property Nearby. Again, the surrounding property and, in fact,
the property for the proposed use are agricultural and not amenable to this intense use.
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3.

The Suitability of the Subject Property for the uses which it has been restricted. The
subject property is presently restricted to agricultural use. The property is very suitable
for that restriction and has been used as such for over 100 years. It is assumed that the
Starrs will argue that the limited fall festival that the neighbors have been involuntarily
living with for the past several years is “suitable” for the property, but the proposed yearround use is not only unsuitable it is intolerable.

4.

Extent to Which the Removal of Restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby properties.
As described above, the proposed year-round agritainment business will have a
significant detrimental effect on neighbors. The crowds of people, apple cannons and
fireworks will bring additional noise and vibration which can be detrimental to livestock,
human beings, and personal property. Obviously, my clients and other neighbors who
live in close proximity to the site and the ingress/egress road (17th St.) will be subjected
to the dust and road deterioration (potholes). The Starr’s application makes absolutely no
mention of how the increased traffic will be handled or how the increased road
deterioration will be rectified. Frankly, the Starrs’ application creates many more
questions than it answers as it relates to road safety, road deterioration and dust control.

5.

Length of time the subject property has remained vacant as zoned. This property is not
vacant. It is used for agriculture and as a residence.

6.

Relative gain to the public health/safety and welfare by the destruction of value of the
plaintiff’s property as compared to the hardship imposed on the individual landowner. In
this case, the “plaintiff” would be the surrounding property owners. The owner of the
subject property stands to make significantly more money than they are already making
through entry fees and sales from the property. The surrounding landowners stand to
make nothing from this project, but will pay the cost by virtue of the noise, dust, road
deterioration and possibly well water contamination. According to the Starrs, all this
hardship and disruption is apparently supposed to be tolerated by the neighbors for the
sake of the applicant’s increased revenue. If the applicant truly wants to have a yearround business, both the Starrs and Jefferson County need to face the realization that the
Starrs are operating a commercial enterprise that needs to be placed in a commercial zone
with the appropriate infrastructure and surroundings.

7.

A consideration of the recommendations of professional staff. In the present case, there
is no evidence of any staff review or professional consultant review of this project.
Therefore, there is nothing to consider.

8.

The conformance of the requested change to the adopted or recognized master plan being
utilized by the local government. Jefferson County does not have a land use master plan
so this is not applicable.

Unfortunately, the Starrs’ application creates more questions than it answers. Please
understand that my clients are not conceptually against the notion of a limited fall festival which
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was what the original CUP contemplates. Unfortunately, this quaint fell festival has grown and
developed over the years into a significant commercial venture. The proposed expansion of this
business to a year-round enterprise is not in any way, shape or form appropriate for the site, the
surrounding neighbors, or the road system. The applicant does not operate a festival, they
operate a business. Its expansion will create an intolerable situation for the surrounding
neighbors.
For these reasons, application DP2021-01 should be denied. Please see to it that this
correspondence is made a part of the record for the hearing concerning the above-referenced
application.
Very truly yours,
HENSON, HUTTON, MUDRICK,
GRAGSON & VOGELSBERG, LLP

John H. Hutton
JHH/ss
cc: Tracey Brown, Mae Brown (via email)

